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THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
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Indicate by check mark whether the Regigthas submitted electronically and posted oodtporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Diita required to be submitted and posted
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per share closing sale price of the Registrantisneon stock as reported on the NASDAQ Capital Mafaéer giving effect to a 1 for 10 reverse stopktsffected on August 23, 2012). For
purposes of this calculation, the Registrant'sctiims and executive officers and holders of 10%more of the Registrant's outstanding shares ohgatommon stock have been assumed to
be affiliates, with such affiliates holding an aggate of 4,838,944 shares of the Registrant'syatimmon stock on June 30, 2012.
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PART |
Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statemen$

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains "forwaotking statements"—that is, statements relatedttod, not past, events—as
defined in Section 21E of the Securities Exchargy@®1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), teidct our current expectations regardi
our future growth, results of operations, finanatandition, cash flows, performance and businesspects, and opportunities, as well as
assumptions made by, and information currently labéé to, our management. Forwaldeking statements include any statement that dot
directly relate to a current or historical fact. Wrave tried to identify forward-looking statemebysusing words such as "anticipate,"
"believe," "expect," "intend,"” "will," "should," "ay," "plan" and similar expressions, but these vgoade not the exclusive means of identifying
forward-looking statements. These statements are basadaymation currently available to us and are suttjo various risks, uncertainties,
and other factors, including, but not limited thpse discussed in Item 1A "Risk Factors" in Panft this Annual Report on Form 10-K, that
could cause our actual growth, results of operagidimancial condition, cash flows, performance @udiness prospects, and opportunities to
differ materially from those expressed in, or iradlby, these statements. Our forward-looking statésnmay include or relate to the
following: (i) our plans to continue to grow our siness through organic growth; (ii) our beliefs viespect to the sufficiency of our liquid
and our plans to evaluate alternate sources of ifumd necessary; (iii) our plans and assumptionsjuding estimated costs and saving
opportunities, regarding our ongoing restructuriatforts designed to improve our financial performan(iv) our expectations relating to
state, local and federal regulatory frameworks etffeg the industries in which we compete, includimgwind energy industry and the related
extension, continuation or renewal of federal tageintives and grants and state renewable port&ibmdards; (v) our expectations with
respect to our customer relationships and effastdiversify our customer base and sector focuslenerage customer relationships across
business units; (vi) our ability to realize reverfumm customer orders and backlog; (vii) our plamith respect to the use of proceeds from
financing activities and our ability to operate dousiness efficiently, manage capital expenditaras costs effectively, and generate cash
(viii) our beliefs and expectations relating to tsa@onomy and the potential impact it may have arbosiness, including our customers;

(ix) our beliefs regarding the state of the winé:egy market and other energy and industrial marigeiserally and the impact of competition
and economic volatility in those markets; (x) owpectations relating to the impact of pending sé@g litigation, the inquiry by the U.S.
Securities and Exchange Commission, and enviroraheompliance matters; and (xi) the potential lo§sax benefits if the Company
experiences an "ownership change" under Sectiono882e Internal Revenue Code. You should not densiny list of such factors to be an
exhaustive statement of all of the risks, uncetiién or potentially inaccurate assumptions thatldeccause our current expectations or beliefs
to change. Except as expressly required by thedédecurities laws, we undertake no obligatiorufmate such factors or to publicly
announce the results of any of the forward-lookstegements contained herein to reflect future ejafdvelopments, or changed circumstance
or for any other reason.

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

As used in this Annual Report on Form 1GH€ terms "we," "us,"” "our," "Broadwind," "Broadwd Energy," and the "Company" refer to
Broadwind Energy, Inc., a Delaware incorporated jgany headquartered in Cicero, Illinois, and its ishowned subsidiaries. Dollars are
presented in thousands unless otherwise stated.

Business Overview

Broadwind provides technologically advanbégh-value products and services to energy, miaimgjinfrastructure sector customers,
primarily in the U.S. Our most significant preseinsvithin the U.S. wind industry, although we hanereasingly diversified into other
industrial markets in order to improve our capaaiilization and reduce our exposure to uncertaiatyted to governmental
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policies currently supporting the U.S. wind indystur product and service portfolio provides oumdvenergy customers, including wind
turbine manufacturers, wind farm developers anddvf@mm operators, with access to a broad arrapwifponent and service offerings. Outside
of the wind market, we provide precision gearind apecialty weldments to a broad range of industtistomers for oil and gas, mining and
other industrial applications.

The market for new U.S. wind energy instiédins is affected by the following factors: (ijo@momic growth and the associated demand fol
new electricity generation, (ii) the cost of conipgtenergy sources, primarily natural gas, (iijjd¢eal and state-level wind development
incentives, (iv) available transmission infrasturetand the proliferation of smart grid technologyd (v) improvements in wind energy cost
competitiveness resulting from the maturation ohtelogies and services within the wind industngjuding increased turbine efficiencies
improved focus on equipment maintenance and rétyabi

We continue to execute a diversificatioatstgy for our operations, focusing on increasaigsto industrial customers. We have actively
shifted into servicing the installed fleet of windbines and expanded our sales to gearing anda#fyaseldments for industrial customers, ¢
consequently our sales associated with new wirdrtarmanufacturing and installations as a shamuofotal revenue has declined. Of our 1
company backlog at the end of 2012, 23% represedtstrial customer demand, which is up from 169204.1. The following table shows ¢
revenue share for each of these channels for tte\pa years:

Annual
Revenue
2012 2011
New Wind Installation: 62% 73%
Wind Installed Base Suppc 13% 7%
Industrial Gearing & Weldmen 25% 20%
Total 10(%  10(%

Segments

The following is a description of produetsd services offered in each segment:

Towers and Weldments

The Towers and Weldments segment specsailizehe production of wind turbine towers, andtaures to diversify its customer base by
expanding the portion of the business which falegapecialty weldments for oil and gas, mining atieér industrial applications. Our
production facilities, located in Manitowoc, Wis@imand Abilene, Texas, are situated in close pmiyito the primary U.S. domestic energy
and equipment manufacturing locations. We spee@atizheavier "next generation” wind towers thatlarger, more technically advanced
towers, designed for two megawatt ("MW") and largird turbines. Since starting commercial produtiio 2005, we have produced
approximately 1,400 towers for a wide variety ohd/turbine manufacturers. Our two facilities haweabined annual tower production
capacity of up to approximately 500 towers, suéfitito support turbines generating more than 1000of power. However, pursuant to our
diversification strategy, we have shifted a portidrour capacity to support the expansion of owcsty weldments business.

Our towers are predominantly sold to wiakbine manufacturers who utilize our products m &issembly of wind turbines. Due to the
customized nature of our products, they are gelyesald through our direct sales force followingeraluation, qualification and testing per
which may occur over a number of months. We compased on product performance, quality, price,tlonsand available capacity.
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We are also applying our core competenayétding large structures to other industries,udaig the mining and heavy equipment
industries. We have production facilities to faht& specialty weldments in Manitowoc, Wisconsin Abdene, Texas, which provide large-
scale sites, capacity and support equipment. Cpahikities include integrated blasting, cuttingyélkng, rolling and welding capabilities. In
addition, the Abilene facility offers the industaylarge, modern blast booth and a large, modent pabth.

Gearing

We engineer, build and remanufacture piatigears and gearing systems for wind, oil and gésing and other industrial applications.
We use an integrated manufacturing process, whidhhdes machining processes in Cicero, lllinoigtheatment in Neville Island,
Pennsylvania, and a finishing process in a secaoer€factory. We are in the process of consolitgthe operations of the two Cicero
facilities into one of the existing facilities.

As demand for U.S. wind gearing has dee@ase have increased our sales force and shittetbous to the manufacture of custom-
engineered gearing systems and gearboxes foraigas, mining and other industrial customers. VEe ahticipate some growth in demand fol
replacement gearing on the existing aging instadledl turbine fleet. Due to the highly specializesture of our gearing, it is generally sold
through our direct sales force following an evahmatqualifying, prototyping and testing period,iaihmay occur over a number of months.
We compete based on product performance, quahityinee delivery, price and available capacity.

Services

We offer a comprehensive range of servizenarily to wind farm developers and operators. §gecialize in non-routine blade and
gearbox maintenance services for both kilowattrmedawatt turbines. We also offer comprehensive sekvices to the wind industry. We are
increasingly focusing our efforts on the identifioa and/or development of product and servicerofégs which will improve the reliability an
efficiency of wind turbines, and therefore enhatieeeconomic benefits to our customers. We prowihel services across the U.S., with
primary service locations in South Dakota and Tetas dedicated drivetrain service center in Alglefiexas (the "Abilene Service Facility")
services the growing installed base of maiggawatt wind turbines as they come off warranty, &m a limited extent, industrial drivetrains &
gearboxes requiring assembly, repair and testing.

Our Services business competes with a nuotheind turbine manufacturers and independentisemproviders in a highlyragmented bt
growing industry. Sales contacts are typicallyiéd through a small direct sales force, and tiincaperating unit managers located in our
service locations. Sales are generally made undéridual purchase orders, although we periodicafiter into blanket purchase orders with
key customers.

Business and Operating Strategy

We intend to capitalize on the markets indrenergy, oil and gas, mining and other industeaticals in North America by leveraging ¢
core competencies in large precision gearing aivettiains, industrial welding and non-routine figlgrvice repairs. Our strategic objectives
include the following:

. Diversify our customer base. In 2012, sales derived from our top five custamepresented 67% of total sales, down from "
in 2011. To further reduce the concentration oésab a few large wind tower customers, we havamoed our sales force and
centralized our commercial organization in suppbexpanding our customer base. In 2012, we begaatuping wind towers
for two new significant turbine manufacturers. Wavéd also expanded our industrial sales of bothiggand weldments and
have begun our expansion into gearboxes in thanoilgas,
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mining and construction space. In Services we@aded on expansion with large wind farm ownersaiginal equipment
manufacturers ("OEMs") and on developing new vadded products for our customers.

. I mprove capacity utilization and profitability. Tower and gear manufacturing and drivetrain rexfesturing all require
significant capital investments. As a result ohgfigant capital expenditures made in 2008 and 20@9have manufacturing
capacity available that will potentially allow ws gignificantly increase our annual revenues. Wenith to improve our capacity
utilization and financial results by using our eixig platform of manufacturing capacity to contirtogpenetrate the North
American wind market and further expand into o#reergy and infrastructure sectors. In addition aneeexecuting a
restructuring plan to reduce overhead and operatists and increase the overall efficiency of quarations while maintaining
required manufacturing capacity.

. I mprove production technology and operational efficiency. We believe that the proper coordination and irgtgn of the
supply chain with continuous improvement initiad\ere key factors that enable high operating efficies, increased reliability,
better delivery, and lower costs. Our manufactufagjlities include state-of-the-art equipment deah processes to help
enhance our operational efficiency and flexibilithe ongoing restructuring of our gearing facisitghould further enhance
operating efficiency in this segment. We have agidfiZontinuous Improvement techniques to furtheindpé our production
processes to generate increased output, leverageale and lower our costs while maintaining praiduality.

. L everage customer relationships across business units.  We believe that there is a significant opportyiit support our wind
and industrial customers by bundling our produats$ services into integrated solutions. We are taimg our cross-business
competencies in gearing, welding and servicesdntations for customers in the wind, oil and gad anining market verticals.
In wind, we continue to leverage our deep precigiearing expertise and services capability in #meanufacturing of gearbox
both uptower and in our drivetrain service centers.

Restructuring Activities

During 2011, we conducted a review of ousibess strategies and product plans given thealufbr the economy at large, the forecast
for the industries we serve and our own businegs@mment. As a result, we have been executingtueturing plan to rationalize our facility
capacity and our management structure, and to tidasmand increase the efficiencies of our opereti

We have concluded that our manufacturirgfiont and fixed cost base are too large and esiperior our medium-term needs. We are
executing a plan to reduce our facility footprigtdpproximately 40% through the sale and/or closdifacilities comprising a total of
approximately 600,000 square feet through the é2@d4. To date, we have reached agreement to oloszluce our leased presence at five
facilities and achieve an eventual reduction ofrapimnately 250,000 square feet. The most signifigg@anned reductions relate to of one of
Cicero, lllinois gearing facilities and our non-ogtonal Brandon, South Dakota tower manufactufaajity (the "Brandon Facility"). We
believe the remaining locations will be sufficiéatsupport our Towers and Weldments, Gearing, S8esvand general corporate and
administrative activities while allowing for growfbr the next several years. These factors havginedjmanagement to reassess its estimate:
of the fair value of some of our assets. We entaredan agreement to sell the Brandon Facilitfrebruary 25, 2013. For more information,
refer to Note 23 "Subsequent Events" in Part 1¥iitl5 in the notes to our consolidated financitkeshents.

We expect to incur restructuring costs aisged with the restructuring plan totaling anrmastied $14,900, of which $6,000 has been
incurred through the end of 2012. Costs are exgdoteclude approximately $6,000 in capital expemds and $8,900 in expenses, of which
approximately $3,700 is
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anticipated to be non-cash expenses and $5,200icpated to be cash expenses. Net proceeds fssotited asset sales, projected to be
approximately $7,200, will be used to fund cashtdd/e anticipate annual cost savings going forvediapproximately $6,000 related to the
restructuring.

Reverse Stock Split

On August 22, 2012, we filed an amendmermur Certificate of Incorporation to effect a resesplit of our common stock with a ratio of
one post-split share for every ten shares issuéaatstanding. As a result of the reverse stoci spé number of authorized shares of our
common stock decreased to 30 million shares, withoy change in the par value of such shares.efdrences in the financial statements and
notes to the number of shares, price per sharsvaighted average number of shares outstandingraf@uamon stock prior to the reverse st
split have been adjusted to reflect the reversekstplit on a retroactive basis unless otherwideado

COMPANY HISTORY

We were incorporated in Nevada in 1996 lasiBoot Enterprises, Inc. ("Blackfoot"). In Febry&2006, Blackfoot completed a reverse
shell transaction with Tower Tech Systems Inc. (i&oTech"), whereupon Blackfoot became a holdinggany for Tower Tech and
subsequently changed its name to Tower Tech Hadimgy In 2008, Tower Tech Holdings Inc. reincogted in Delaware and changed its
name to Broadwind Energy, Inc. Through our Oct@f#7 acquisitions of R.B.A. Inc. ("RBA") and Braddte Gear Works, Inc. ("Brad
Foote"), and acquisitions of Energy Maintenanceviges, LLC ("EMS") and Badger Transport Inc. ("Bad{ in January and June of 2008,
respectively, we expanded upon our core platforma asd tower component manufacturer and estaliisiue gearing systems, industrial
products, technical services, precision repairargineering and logistics businesses. In DecemiEd, bur Board of Directors approved a
plan to divest our logistics business, Badger, tvhiwas sold to a third party purchaser on Marchd4,12 and is now treated as a discontinued
operation. Effective February 1, 2011, EMS chariteedame to Broadwind Services, LLC ("Broadwind\gegs"), and effective March 1,
2011, Tower Tech changed its name to Broadwind Tewac. ("Broadwind Towers").

SALES AND MARKETING

We market our towers, gearing and weldmprdducts and our maintenance services primarityuiph our direct sales force. Our sales
and marketing strategy is to develop and maintaiigdterm relationships with our energy and infuactinre sector customers and to offer an
integrated suite of products and services to tAmbelieve this strategy best leverages our geaahdxblade knowledge and our core
competency in specialty welding with customers. b&keve this strategy also offers opportunitiesruss-sell products and services across ot
platform of product and service offerings. We atgend for our offerings to fulfill needs that ccustomers may consider non-core and do nof
desire to provide for within their organizationsitiih the wind industry, our customer base consi$tsind turbine manufacturers who supply
endusers and wind farm developers with completed wimbines, as well as wind farm developers and viémoh operators themselves. Witl
the oil and gas and mining industries, our custdnase consists of manufacturers of hydraulic frrmguand mud pumps, mining equipment
and off-highway vehicles. To support the effortoaf sales force, we utilize a number of marketagiics to build our brand and position and
promote our products and services. Our effortaiighelparticipation in industry conferences, mediatiens, use of social media channels, use
of our website and other channels to connect wigtamers.

COMPETITION

We do not believe that any competitorstetkiat have developed a suite of products and ces\for the North American wind industry
similar to those offered by our businesses. Howesach of our
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businesses faces competition from both domestidgraathational companies, and some of our customeiatain internal capabilities that
compete with our offerings. Many of these compeditare larger and better capitalized than we are.

For our Towers and Weldments segment,atgekt North American based competitor is Trinitgtustries. In 2012, a number of tower
producers, including DMI Industries, Katana Sumaniti SIAG, exited the market. We face competitiamfimports from a number of
European and Asian tower manufacturers. On Dece@thet011, along with other U.S. based producersind towers, we asked the U.S.
Department of Commerce and the International Taai@mission ("ITC") to conduct anti-dumping investigns of Chinese and Viethamese
exports of wind towers to the U.S. and a countéingaduty investigation into Chinese exports of diowers to the U.S. In January 2013, the
ITC found that the U.S. wind industry has been mialtg impacted by Chinese and Vietnamese impantd at less than fair value. The U.S.
Department of Commerce determined that Chinese/@tdamese manufacturers sold utility-scale wingdrs in the U.S. at dumping margins
of 44.99% to 70.63% and 51.50% to 58.49%, respelgtidhe Chinese producers received countervadlirtzsidies of 21.86% to 34.81%.

The market for blade, drivetrain and fis&dvices in which our Services segment competeigdy fragmented, and includes OEMs such
as GE Services and Siemens, large-scale servig@pre such as enXco, and a number of indepeneéevite providers, including Outland
Energy Services and UpWind Solutions.

In our Gearing segment, which is focusedhenoil and gas and mining markets, our key coitgystinclude Overton Chicago Gear,
Cincinnati Gearing Systems, Merit Gear and Horshu&dgscott. In addition, we also compete with thieinal gear manufacturing capacity of
relevant equipment manufacturers and face sigmifigeowing competition from foreign competitors. \Also manufacture wind energy gear
sets, but do not manufacture complete gearboxahitosegment.

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION AND COMPLIANCE

Our operations are subject to numerousréddstate, and local environmental laws and rdgra. While it is our objective to maintain
compliance with these laws and regulations, it malybe possible to quantify with certainty the i@ impact of actions regarding
environmental matters, particularly remediation attter compliance efforts that we may undertakiénfuture. Many of our facilities have a
history of industrial operations and contaminaragehbeen detected at some of our facilities. Reféem 3 "Legal Proceedings" for further
discussion of environmental regulation and comgkan

BACKLOG

We sell our towers under either long-teupmy agreements or individual purchase ordersedeéing on the size and the duration of the
purchase commitment. We have one tower framewaresmgent, pursuant to which a customer commits tohase a certain fixed quantity or
share of their annual requirement from us, andegsemve a portion of our manufacturing capacity &enthis requirement. Under framework
agreements, we typically receive purchase ordeesminthly or other periodic basis based upon astamer's forecast of production volume
levels. In recent years, the markets for wind t@x@pacity have generally shifted from multi-yeganfework agreements to individual
purchase orders relating to specific projects seleedfor production within the following six to tlwe months. In the future, we expect that the
mix of our business will continue to shift to shesrterm project orders. As this trend continuesawtcipate our backlog will decrease, and we
will likely experience greater month-to-month véidas in backlog levels. For our Services and Gepsegments, purchases are generally
based on individual purchase orders. As of Decer@beP012, the dollar amount of our backlog belietebe firm under our supply
agreements, purchase orders awarded and
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service contracts was approximately $123 millidnybich $89 million is expected to be deliveredidgr2013.

SEASONALITY

The majority of our business is not affeldby seasonality. Within our Services segment,mags can be negatively affected by weather
related constraints, typically during portions lo€ ffirst and fourth quarters of the year.

EMPLOYEES

We had 753 employees at December 31, 2fMhich 597 were in manufacturing, service anttif®ipport related functions and 156
were in administrative functions. Approximately 28%wour employees are covered by two collectiveyhiening agreements with local unions
in Cicero, lllinois and Neville Island, Pennsylvanin October 2012, we reached preliminary agre¢mea new collective bargaining
agreement with our employees in Neville Island. Tédsed agreement is pending review and signdiyieerepresentative of the United
Steelworkers of America. Collective bargaining &gnents with our Neville Island and Cicero uniors @éxpected to remain in effect through
February 2014 and October 2017, respectively. Wisider our union and employee relations to befsatisry.

RAW MATERIALS

The primary raw material used in the cargtton of wind towers and gearing products is ste#¢he form of steel plate, forgings and
castings. Although we are generally responsibleofocurement of the raw materials, in some casesustomers source and retain title to s
plate which we convert into finished wind towers.

We operate a multiple supplier sourcingtsefgy and source our raw materials through vasopgliers located throughout the U.S. and
abroad. We do not generally have long-term supgige@ments with our raw materials suppliers andetyomatch terms with those of our
customers to limit our exposure to commodity pfloetuations. We believe that we will be able taaib an adequate supply of steel and othe
raw materials to meet our manufacturing requiresieathough from time to time we have faced shedagf specific grades of steel, which
may limit our ability to meet customer demand aadse manufacturing inefficiencies.

QUALITY CONTROL

We have a long-standing focus on procefssemnsuring the manufacture of higiality products. To achieve high standards of petidn
and operational quality, we implement strict antbagive quality control and inspection throughaut production processes. We maintain
internal quality controls over all core manufaatgriprocesses and carry out quality assurance itisps@t the completion of each major
manufacturing step to ensure the quality of oudpots. The manufacturing process at our Gearingatipe, for example, involves
transforming forged steel into precision gearsulgtogear cutting, heat treating, testing and finghWe inspect and test raw materials before
they enter the assembly process, re-test the raeriala after rough machining, test the functioniiggear teeth and cores after thermal
treatment and accuracy test final outputs for pcodpecifications. We believe our investment inuisity-leading heat treatment, high precisior
machining, specialized grinding technologies arttiragredge welding has contributed to our high mcdeliability and the consistent
performance of our products under varying operatiorgditions. Our Gearing segment is ISO 9001:2@38fied. Our tower manufacturing
plants in Manitowoc, Wisconsin and Abilene, Texes &0 9001:2010 certified. In addition, our Seegicegment has received ISO 9001:200
certification related to the remanufacture of geags, main shafts and other drive system components
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CUSTOMERS

We manufacture products for and provideises to a variety of customers in the wind enedilyand gas, mining and other infrastructure
industries. The majority of our wind industry custer base consists of wind turbine manufacturers, supply wind farm operators and wind
farm developers with completed wind turbines. la ¢hher industrial sectors, we sell our produatsugh our trained sales force or through
manufacturers' representatives to a wide variegusfomers. The wind turbine market is very conedatl. According to American Wind
Energy Association 2012 industry data, the top ¥imed turbine manufacturers constituted approxirya@8% of the U.S. market. As a result,
our concentration with a limited number of custosn@ccounted for the majority of our revenues. Salesach of Gamesa, Siemens and Ge
Electric represented an amount greater than 108tio€onsolidated revenues for the year ended DeeeBih 2012, and sales to each of
Gamesa and Goldwind represented an amount gréared0% of our consolidated revenues for the yede@ December 31, 2011. The loss o
one of these customers could have a material agledisct on our business. As discussed as a compoheur business strategies, we are
seeking to diversify our customer base.

WORKING CAPITAL

Our primary customers are wind turbine nfacturers, wind farm developers and wind farm ofmesa The industry has historically
entered into customized contracts with varying teemd conditions between suppliers and customepgntling on the specific objectives of
each party. Our practices mirror this historicalustry practice of negotiating agreements on a-bgsease basis. As a result, working capital
needs, including levels of accounts receivableianentory, can vary significantly from quarter toagter based on the contractual terms
associated with that quarter's sales, such as ethethare required to purchase and supply stesbpat to such contractual terms.

In analyzing our liquidity, we focus on oggng working capital, which is comprised of acntsureceivable and inventories, net of
accounts payable and customer deposits. Our opgnatirking capital at December 31, 2012 was $21,6812% of trailing three months of
sales annualized. This is an increase of $7,60% ecember 31, 2011, when operating working capits $13,980, or 6% of trailing three
months of sales annualized. The increase reflesisfiain the payment practices in our Tower anddifents segment, as advance payments
have become less prevalent in the industry.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Our principal executive office is locatad3240 South Central Avenue, Cicero, IL 60804. hwne number is (708) 780-4800 and our
website address isww.bwen.com.

OTHER INFORMATION

On our website atww.bwen.comwe make available under the "Investors" menucsiele, free of charge, our Annual Reports on
Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, CuriReports on Form 8-K, and amendments to these sefiled or furnished pursuant to
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act as smoreasonably practicable after such reports ondments are electronically filed with, or
furnished to, the Securities and Exchange ComnnigSBEC"). Materials that we file or furnish to tB&C may also be read and copied at the
SEC's Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, MBshington, DC 20549. Information on the operatibthe Public Reference Room may
obtained by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. Aise SEC maintains an Internet sitevatw.sec.gothat contains reports, proxy and
information statements, and other information thaffile electronically with the SEC.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Our businesses, and therefore our results of operations and financial condition, may continue to be adversely affected by negative economic
conditions and uncertainty.

Although some parts of the economy havemesl growth after the negative effects of the globeession, there remains risk that this
limited recovery may not be sustained, that thewery may not include the industries or marketa/irich we conduct our business, or that the
economy may revert to further contraction and gpoading uncertainty and volatility. Any deterigoatin economic conditions could have a
material adverse effect on our business in a numberys, including lower sales and extended reheyaes if there is a reduction in demand
for wind energy, and such deterioration could haveaterial adverse effect on our liquidity, resolt®perations and financial condition. In
particular, risks we might face could include padirdeclines in revenues in our business segntréso reduced orders or other factors
caused by economic challenges faced by our custoamer prospective customers, and an inabilityrtarfte our operating needs on reasonab
terms.

The U.S. wind industry isreliant on tax and other economic incentives and political and governmental policies. A significant change in these
incentives and policies could negatively impact our results of operations and growth. More generally, our financial and operating
performance is subject to certain factors which are out of our contral, including the state of the wind energy market in North America.

We supply products and services to wintihg manufacturers and owners and operators of anedgy generation facilities. The U.S.
wind industry is dependent in part upon federaliteentives and state renewable portfolio standandismay not be economically viable in its
current form absent such incentives. The federaégonent provides economic incentives to the ownévgind energy facilities, including a
federal production tax credit, an investment teed@rand cash grant equal in value to the investi@encredit. The production tax credit was
extended by the American Recovery and Reinvestient'ARRA") in February 2009, and further extendgdthe American Taxpayer Relief
Act in January 2013. It provides the owner of alifgiag wind energy facility under construction loeé the end of 2013 with a ten-year tax
credit against the owner's federal income tax altiligns based on the amount of electricity generayetthe qualifying wind energy facility and
sold to unrelated third parties. Alternatively, @iproject owners (i) may elect to receive an inwestt tax credit equal to 30% of the qualifying
basis of facilities under construction before thd ef 2013 or (ii) for facilities placed in servige2009 through 2011 (or, if construction began
before the end of 2011, placed in service befogeetid of 2012), could have applied to receive h gaant from the Department of Treasury,
equal in value to the investment tax credit.

These programs provide material incentteedevelop wind energy generation facilities aner¢ivy impact the demand for our
manufactured products and services. The increasmdund for our products and services that genemedlylts from the credits and incentives
was impacted by the impending expiration of thesgmms at the end of 2012. Because of the lordytieses necessary to develop wind
energy projects, the delay by Congress in extendimgnewing these incentives beyond their impepéipiration dates in 2012 has already
negatively impacted potential wind energy instadias planned for 2013. The failure to further rer@vextend these incentives would likely
further inhibit the development of wind energy gextien facilities and the demand for wind turbinesyers, gearing and related componen
is possible that these federal incentives williInmextended beyond their current expiration ddtes.delay or failure to extend or renew these
or similar incentives in the future could have aenal adverse impact on our business, resultpefations, financial performance and future
development efforts.

State renewable energy portfolio standgedeerally require or encourage state-regulatedraledilities to supply a certain proportion of
electricity from renewable energy sources or dewatertain portion of their plant capacity to reable energy generation. Typically, utilities
comply with such
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standards by qualifying for renewable energy ceeelidencing the share of electricity that was poadl from renewable sources. Under many
state standards, these renewable energy creditsecanbundled from their associated energy an@édrada market system, allowing
generators with insufficient credits to meet ttagiplicable state mandate. These standards havedmignificant growth in the wind energy
industry and a corresponding increase in the derfamalr manufactured products. Currently, the mgjof states and the District of
Colombia have renewable energy portfolio standargdace and certain states have voluntary utdd@gnmitments to supply a specific
percentage of their electricity from renewable sear The enactment of renewable energy portfadiodstrds in additional states or any cha

to existing renewable energy portfolio standardsl(iding changes due to the failure to renew certhe federal incentives described abc

or the enactment of a federal renewable energyghorstandard or imposition of other greenhousg ggulations, may impact the demand for
our products and services. We cannot assure thvarigment support for renewable energy will contintiee elimination of, or reduction in,
state or federal government policies that supparéwable energy could have a material adverse ingpagur business, results of operations,
financial performance and future development effort

As a supplier of products and servicesitwviurbine manufacturers and owners and operaforsnd energy generation facilities, our
results of operations (like those of our customars)subject to general economic conditions, aediBpally, to the state of the wind energy
market. In addition to the state and federal govenmt policies supporting renewable energy descritiede, the growth and development of
the larger wind energy market in North Americaubject to a number of factors, including, amongeothings:

. the availability of financing for the estimated giime of wind development projects;

. the cost of electricity, which may be affected byuanber of factors, including government regulatipower transmission,
seasonality, fluctuations in demand, and the aodtevailability of fuel and particularly naturalgga

. the development of new power generating techgyotor advances in existing technology or discov@rgower generating
natural resources;

. the development of electrical transmission istfinacture;

. state and federal laws and regulations, partigutadse favoring low carbon energy generation a#téves;

. administrative and legal challenges to proposediwlievelopment projects; and

. public perception and localized community resporisagind energy projects.

In addition, while some of the factorsdidtabove may only affect individual wind projecvei®pments or portions of the market, in the
aggregate they may have a significant effect orstlreessful development of the wind energy market @hole, and thus affect our operating
and financial results.

Our diversification outside of the wind energy market exposes us to business risks associated with the oil and gas and mining industries,
among others, which may slow our growth or penetration in these markets.

While we have some experience in the dil gas and mining markets through our gearing ardially weldments businesses, these
industries have not been our primary focus. Inhiirdiversifying our business to serve these manketwill face competitors who may have
more resources, longer operating histories and meteestablished relationships than we do, andnag not be able to successfully or
profitably generate additional business opportasiin these industries. Moreover, if we are ableutessfully diversify into these markets oul
business may be exposed to risks associated
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with these industries, which could adversely affaat future earnings and growth. These risks ingl@anong other things:

. the prices and relative demand for oil, gas, milseaad other commaodities;

. domestic and global political and economic condgiaffecting the oil, gas and mining industries;

. changes in oil, gas and mining technology;

. the price and availability of alternative fuels asmergy sources, as well as changes in energy iegoigun or supply; and

. fedgral, state and local regulations, includingpagothers, regulations relating to hydraulic fuaicty and greenhouse gas
emissions.

We could incur substantial costs to comply with environmental, health and safety laws and regulations and to address violations of or
liabilities under these requirements.

Our operations are subject to a varietgrofironmental, health and safety laws and reguiatio the jurisdictions in which we operate anc
sell products governing, among other things, healfety, pollution and protection of the enviromiand natural resources, including the use
handling, transportation, and disposal of non-tdaas and hazardous materials and wastes, as wathiasions and discharges into the
environment, including discharges to air, surfaeg¢en groundwater and soil, product content, paréorce and packaging. We cannot
guarantee that we have been or will at all timesl®mpliance with such laws and regulations.Faito comply with these laws and
regulations, obtain the necessary permits to openat business, or comply with the terms and canditof such permits may subject us to a
variety of administrative, civil and criminal ené@ment measures, including the imposition of @widl criminal sanctions, monetary fines and
penalties, remedial obligations, and the issuaficempliance requirements limiting or preventingngoor all of our operations.

We also are subject to laws and regulatibasimpose liability and cleanup responsibility feleases of hazardous substances into the
environment. Under certain of these laws and reiguis, such liabilities can be imposed for cleanfipurrently and formerly owned, leased or
operated properties, or properties to which haassdoibstances or wastes were sent by currentroefarperators at our current or former
facilities, regardless of whether we directly caligee contamination or violated any law at the towhéischarge or disposal. Many of our
facilities have a history of industrial operatioasd contaminants have been detected at some fdailities. The presence of contamination
from hazardous substances or wastes could intesfiieongoing operations or adversely affect oulitslio sell, lease or use our properties as
collateral for financing. We also could be heldleaunder third-party claims for property damagatural resource damage, or personal injury
and for penalties and other damages under suchoanvental laws and regulations, which could mallgrend adversely affect our business
and results of operations.

We are aware of an investigation commermethe United States Attorney's Office, Northerstict of Illinois ("USAQ"), for potential
violation of federal environmental laws. On Febyuab, 2011, pursuant to a search warrant, offidiais the United States Environmental
Protection Agency ("USEPA") entered and conductedaach of one of our facilities in Cicero, lllisgithe "Cicero Facility"), in connection
with the alleged improper disposal of industriakteavater to the sewer. On or about February 151,d@1connection with the same matter, we
received a grand jury subpoena requesting testirmanythe production of certain documents relatintdhée Cicero Facility's past compliance
with certain environmental laws and regulationatiat to the generation, discharge and disposakstewater from certain of our processes
between 2004 and the present. On or about Feb23ar3011, we received another grand jury subpoelasing to the same investigation,
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requesting testimony and the production of centdiirer documents relating to certain of the CicemxoilRy's employees, environmental and
manufacturing processes, and disposal practiced\pnih5, 2012, we received a letter from the USAgguesting the production of certain
financial records from 2008 to the present. We harapleted our response to the subpoenas and SA©'s request. We have also
voluntarily instituted corrective measures at thee@® Facility, including changes to our wastewalisposal practices and a comprehensive
environmental oversight policy. On April 12, 201% received a letter from the USAO advising us Braid Foote is a target of the criminal
investigation of the Cicero Facility, and requegtihat Brad Foote agree to a tolling of the appliestatute of limitations for any criminal
charges relating to the investigation. SubsequeBtigd Foote has agreed to the tolling of the applie statute of limitations for any criminal
charges relating to the investigation through Ap8) 2013. There can be no assurances that th&usmrtof the investigation will not result in
a determination that we have violated applicablérenmental, health and safety laws and regulatiémy violations found, or any criminal or
civil fines, penalties and/or other sanctions imgabsould be substantial and materially and advweedétct us. The assertion of further claims
relating to regulatory compliance, on or off-simtamination, natural resource damage, the disgagsreviously unknown environmental
liabilities, the imposition of criminal or civil fies or penalties, or the obligation to undertakestigation, remediation or monitoring activities
could result in potentially significant costs angbenditures to address contamination or resohieslar liabilities. Such costs and
expenditures could have a material adverse effecun business, financial condition, or result®pérations. Changes in existing
environmental, health and safety laws and reguiatior their application, could cause us to incditonal or unexpected costs to achieve or
maintain compliance.

We are substantially dependent on a few significant customers.

Historically, the majority of our revenua® highly concentrated with a limited number adtomers. In 2012, although our concentration
declined, three customers—Gamesa, Siemens and db&ectric—each accounted for more than 10% ofoaumsolidated revenues and our
five largest customers accounted for 67% of ousobdated revenues. Our customers periodically lexypeessed their intent to scale back,
delay or restructure existing customer agreemavitish has led to reduced revenues from these cessoand which may occur again in the
future. As a result, our operating profits and gromrgins have historically been negatively affédte a decline in production levels, which
created production volume inefficiencies in our r@iens and cost structures.

Additionally, if our relationships with sigicant customers should change materially, itiddae difficult for us to immediately and
profitably replace lost sales in a market with sachcentration, which would materially adverselieef our results. We could be adversely
impacted by decreased customer demand for our pt®dnd services due to (1) the impact of currefiitore economic conditions on our
customers, (2) our customers' loss of market sleatempetitors of theirs that do not use our presiuend (3) our loss of market share with ou
customers. We could lose market share with ourousts to competitors or to our customers themsgéresild they decide to become more
vertically integrated and produce our productsediver the services we provide internally.

In addition, even if our customers continaielo business with us, we can be adversely a&ffidoy a number of other potential
developments with our customers. For example:

. our customers may not comply with their contrachmtment or volume obligations. The inability oitfee of our customers to
meet their contractual obligations could have aematadverse effect on our business, financiaitipmsand results of
operations;

. our customers have in the past sought, andeifiuture may seek, to renegotiate the terms okatiagreements or renewals. For

example, some customers have sought payments §dor alaims despite contractual limits that prelelwur obligation to mal
payments for such claims;
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. if we are unable to deliver products to our custame accordance with an agreed upon schedule webe@me subject to
liquidated damages provisions in our supply agredsi®r the period of time we are unable to delfiugished products.
Although the liquidated damages provisions are gelyecapped at certain levels, they can becomeifgignt and may have a
negative impact on our liquidity and financial résu

. although our subsidiary companies operate indepglyda dispute between a significant customerasdr one of our
subsidiaries could have a negative effect on tisinless relationship we have with that customerssconir entire organization.
Among other things, such a dispute could lead towanall decrease in such customer's demand fopragiucts and services or
difficulty in collecting amounts due to one or mafeour subsidiaries that are otherwise not reléeslich dispute; and

. a material change in payment terms for accowgusivable of a significant customer could haveagemial adverse effect on our
short-term cash flows.

Our customers may be significantly affected by disruptions and volatility in the economy and in the wind energy market.

Market disruptions and regular market vibtgtmay have adverse impacts on our customeiibtyato pay when due the amounts payable
to us and could cause related increases in ourimgpdapital or borrowing needs. In addition, oustoimers have in the past attempted and me
attempt in the future to renegotiate the termsooitiacts or reduce the size of orders with us@sat of disruptions and volatility in the
markets. We cannot predict with any degree of gggtahe amount of our backlog that we will ultirebt ship to our customers.

Market disruptions and regular market vibtgtmay also result in an increased likelihoodoafr customers asserting warranty or
remediation claims in connection with our produmtservices that they would not ordinarily asser imore stable economic environment. In
the event of such a claim, we may incur costs ileeide to compensate the affected customer argage in litigation against the affected
customer regarding the claim. We maintain prodiatility insurance, but there can be no guarartiaeguch insurance will be available or
adequate to protect against such claims. A suadedafm against us could result in a material aggesffect on our business.

We may have difficulty obtaining additional financing when needed or on acceptable terms and there can be no assurances that our
operationswill generate cash flowsin an amount sufficient to enable us to pay our indebtedness.

We rely on banks and capital markets asuace of liquidity for capital requirements notiséiéd by cash flows from operations or asset
sales. We have experienced operating losses farafdbe years during which we have operated andntieipate that we will incur additional
outlays in the near term in connection with ourteamplated restructuring efforts. We expect to fondfacility restructuring efforts in part by
using proceeds from the sale of surplus assetangyebe unable to complete these sales on a tinaalig band our committed sources of
liquidity may be inadequate to satisfy our openaicand restructuring needs. There can be no assgdhat our restructuring efforts will be
successful in improving our profitability. If weeanot able to access capital at competitive réttesability to implement our business plans |
be adversely affected. In the absence of accesapital resources, we could face substantial litgujgtoblems and might be required to disg
of material assets or operations at times wheptices for such assets are depressed. In such, eentay not be able to consummate those
dispositions. Furthermore, the proceeds of any slispositions may not be adequate to meet ourskrisice obligations when due.

Additionally, our ability to make schedulpdyments on our existing or future debt obligagiand fund operations will depend on our
future financial and operating performance. Thene lze no
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assurances that our operations will generate geifficash flows to enable us to pay our remainmuigbtedness or to fund our other liquidity
needs. If we cannot make scheduled payments odetnty we will be in default and, as a result, amotigr things, our debt holders could
declare all outstanding principal and interestealbe and payable which could force us to liquidat#ain assets or alter our business
operations or debt obligations. Moreover, if we @amable to obtain additional capital or if our @t sources of financing are reduced or
unavailable, we will likely be required to delagduce the scope of, or eliminate our plans foruesiring and expansion and this could affect
our overall operations. In addition, raising calpitathe equity capital markets could result initiamions on our ability to use our NOL
carryforwards.

Our plansfor growth and diversification may not be successful, and could result in poor financial performance.

We have made a strategic decision to difyeosir business further into oil, gas, mining, aottler industries, particularly within our
gearing and specialty weldments businesses. Whalaave historically participated in these linebaginess, there is no assurance that we wi
be able to grow our presence in these businessesatd sufficient to compensate for a potentiayaker wind energy market. Moreover, our
participation in these markets may require additionvestments in personnel, equipment and opeatiofrastructure. If we are unable to
further penetrate these markets, our plans to sifyepur operations may not be successful and oticipated future growth may be adversely
affected.

We may also grow our existing businessughoincreased production levels at existing faesit Such growth will require coordinated
efforts across the Company and continued enhandsrteenur current operating infrastructure, inchgdimanagement and operations
personnel, systems, equipment and property. Moredwaur efforts do not adequately predict the dewh of our customers and our potential
customers, our future earnings may be adversedgiz.

We face competition from industry participants who may have greater resourcesthan we do.

Our businesses are subject to risks agedoieith competition from new or existing indusparticipants who may have more resources
and better access to capital. Many of our compstdod potential competitors may have substantigater financial, customer support,
technical and marketing resources, larger custdrases, longer operating histories, greater nanmgnéion and more established relationsl
in the industry than we do. Among other thingsséhimdustry participants compete with us based pioe, quality, location and available
capacity. We cannot be sure that we will have &saurces or expertise to compete successfullyeifiutture. Some of our competitors may ¢
be able to provide customers with additional beasefi lower overall costs to increase market sh&ecannot be sure that we will be able to
match cost reductions by our competitors or thatwiliebe able to succeed in the face of currerfiuture competition. In addition, we may face
competition from our customers as they seek to bemertically integrated and offer full serviceckages. Some of our customers are also
performing more services themselves.

We have generated net losses and negative cash flows since our inception.

We have experienced operating losses fr efithe years during which we have operateddtitan, in light of current economic
conditions and the state of the wind energy mark#te U.S., we anticipate that losses and peridagegative cash flow may occur in the
foreseeable future. We have incurred significastso connection with the development of our besaes, and there is no assurance that we
will achieve sufficient revenues to offset antidgmhoperating costs. Although we anticipate degvievenues from the sale of our products an
services, no assurance can be given that thesaqisoand services can be sold on a profitable bi&si® achieve profitability, we cannot give
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any assurance that we would be able to sustaimcogase profitability on a quarterly or annual basithe future.
Limitations on our ability to utilize our net operating losses may negatively affect our financial results.

We may not be able to utilize all of out operating losses ("NOL's"). To the extent avdédalwe will use any NOL carryforwards to
reduce the U.S. corporate income tax liability aggted with our operations. However, if we do nchiave profitability prior to their
expiration, we will not be able to fully utilize olOL's to offset income. For financial statemerggentation, all benefits associated with the
NOL carryforwards have been reserved. Section 382eointernal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended'(RC"), generally imposes ¢
annual limitation on the amount of NOL carryforwattiat may be used to offset taxable income whearoration has undergone certain
changes in stock ownership. Our ability to utild®L carryforwards and built-in losses may be lirdjtander this section or otherwise, by our
issuance of common stock or by other changes ok stenership. Upon completion of our analysis ofIBection 382, we have determined
that aggregate changes in our stock ownership thiagered an annual limitation of NOL carryforwaralsd built-in losses available for
utilization. Although this event limits the amouwftpre-ownership change date NOL's and built-irsésswe can utilize annually, it would not
preclude us from fully utilizing our current caroyfvards prior to their expiration. To the extent age of NOL carryforwards and associated
built-in losses is significantly limited in the fue due to additional changes in stock ownershipjrcome could be subject to U.S. corporate
income tax earlier than it would if we were ableute NOL carryforwards and built-in losses withanhual limitation, which could result in
lower profits and the loss of benefits from thedgbautes. To address these concerns, in Febru@$ aur Board of Directors approved the
adoption of a Section 382 rights plan designed¢sgrve our NOL carryforwards and other tax besie$iibject to ratification by our
stockholders at our 2013 Annual Meeting of Stocktd. There can be no assurances that our stoekbaldl approve the Section 382 rights
plan or that, if they do, it will be effective ingiecting our NOL carryforwards.

Our future operating results and the market price of our common stock could be adversely affected if we are required to take additional
write-downs to the carrying value of long-lived assets associated with any of our operating segmentsin the future.

We review our long-lived assets, includinangibles, for impairment whenever events or giearin circumstances indicate the carrying
amounts of these assets may not be recoverablev®ability is measured by a comparison of thetassarrying amount to their expected
future undiscounted net cash flows. If such asmetsonsidered to be impaired, the impairment teebegnized is measured based on the
amount by which the carrying amount of the asseteds its fair value. In the future, if our proggtundiscounted cash flows associated with
our operating segments do not exceed the carnahge\of their net assets, we may be required tordeadditional write-downs of the carrying
value of intangible assets or other ldiged assets associated with such operating segna@uatour operating results and the market pricait
common stock may be materially adversely affected.

Disruptionsin the supply of partsand raw materials, or changesin supplier relations, may negatively impact our operating results.

We are dependent upon the supply of certainmaterials used in our production process,these raw materials are exposed to price
fluctuations on the open market. Raw material cfistfems such as steel, our primary raw matehiale fluctuated significantly and may
continue to fluctuate. To reduce price risk causgdharket fluctuations, we have generally matclaed material purchases to our sales
contracts or incorporated price adjustment clairsesir contracts. However, limitations on availéhibf raw materials or increases in the cost
of raw materials (including steel), energy, tramtq@on and other necessary services may impacbperrating results if our manufacturing
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businesses are not able to fully pass on the esstsciated with such increases to their respectistomers. Alternatively, we will not realize
material improvements from declines in steel prizeshe terms of many of our contracts requirewsapass through these cost savings to oul
customers. In addition, we may encounter suppbestraints, be unable to maintain favorable suppli|mngements and relations or be
affected by disruptions in the supply chain causeduch events as natural disasters, power outagkkbor strikes. In the event of significant
increases or decreases in the price of raw matepalticularly steel, our margins and profitapitiould be negatively impacted.

If our projections regarding the future market demand for our products and services are inaccurate, our operating results and our overall
business may be adversely affected.

We have previously made significant capitaestments in anticipation of rapid growth in thes. wind energy market. However, the
growth in the U.S. wind energy market has not kegate with the expectations we had when some oé ttasital investments were made, and
there can be no assurance that the U.S. wind emeagyet will grow and develop in a manner consistéth our past expectations, or that we
will be able to fill our idle capacity through tlferther diversification of our operations. Our imal manufacturing and service capabilities t
required significant up-front fixed costs. If matrkiemand for our products and services does notdse at the pace we have anticipated and
align with our manufacturing capacity, we may bahie to offset these costs and to achieve econashi&sale, and our operating results may
continue to be adversely affected as a resultgif fiked costs, reduced margins and underutilipatibcapacity. In light of these
considerations, we may be forced to temporarilg eftisting capacity or sell to third parties matiiaing capacity that we cannot utilize in the
near term, in addition to the steps that we hareadly taken to adjust our capacity more closeljetmand. Alternatively, if we experience ra
demand for our products and services in excessroéstimates, or we have reduced our manufactaapgcity, our installed capital equipm
and existing workforce may be insufficient to sugigogher production volumes, which could harm oustomer relationships and overall
reputation. In addition, we may not be able to expaur workforce and operations in a timely manpescure adequate resources, or locate
suitable third-party suppliers, to respond effeslijnto changes in demand for our existing prodaots services or to the demand for new
products and services requested by our customeaur business could be adversely affected. Qilityaio meet such excess customer
demand could also depend on our ability to raiskt@dal capital and effectively scale our manuaictg operations.

If our estimates for warranty expenses differ materially from actual claims made, or if we are unable to reasonably estimate future warranty
expense for our products and services, our business and financial results could be negatively affected.

We provide warranty terms generally randiegiveen one and seven years to our tower, geandgervices customers depending upon
the specific product or service and terms of thei@mer agreement. We reserve for warranty clairsedan industry experience and estimate
made by management based upon a percentage dalesiravenues related to such products or senfices: time to time, customers have
submitted warranty claims to us. However, we halimited history on which to base our warranty resties for certain products that we
manufacture and services that we provide. Our aggans could be materially different from the adtparformance of our products in the
future and could exceed the levels against whiclhaxe reserved. In some instances our customessihgrpreted the scope and coverage of
certain of our warranty provisions differently framar interpretation of such provisions. The expseressociated with remediation activities in
the wind energy industry can be substantial, amekifare required to pay such costs in connectitim avcustomer's warranty claim we could be
subject to additional unplanned cash expendituf@sir estimates prove materially incorrect, ow# are required to cover remediation
expenses in addition to our regular warranty cayerave could be required to incur additional expsrend could face a material unplanned
cash expenditure, which could harm our financia aperating results.
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Traderestrictions may present barriersto entry in certain international markets.

Restrictions on trade with certain inteimal markets could affect our ability to expantbithose markets. In addition, the existence of
government subsidies available to our competitoieitain countries may affect our ability to cotepen a price basis.

We may be unable to keep pace with rapidly changing technology in wind turbine component and other industrial manufacturing.

The global market for wind turbines, ashvaslfor other industrial components we manufactisreapidly evolving technologically. Our
component manufacturing equipment and technology meabe suited for future generations of prodbeing developed by wind turbine
companies. For example, some wind turbine manufaitiare using wind turbine towers made from cdedrestead of steel. Other wind
turbine designs have reduced the use of geariefiminated the gearbox entirely through the usdirct or compact drive technologies. To
maintain a successful business in our field, wetrkesp pace with technological developments andgihg standards of our customers and
potential customers and meet their constantly ewgldemands. If we fail to adequately respond #otdthnological changes in our industry
are not suited to provide components for new tygiegind turbines, our net worth, financial conditiand operating results may be adversely
affected.

We rely on unionized labor, the loss of which could adversely affect our future success.

We are dependent on the services of urgdnizbor and have collective bargaining agreemeitkscertain of our operations workforce at
our Cicero, Illinois and Neville Island, Pennsylieagearing facilities. The loss of the serviceshafse and other personnel, whether through
terminations, attrition, labor strike, or otherwise a material change in our collective bargairaggeements, could have a material adverse
impact on us and our future profitability. Collegtibargaining agreements have been ratified bgcle bargaining units in place at our
Cicero and Neville Island facilities and are expéldo expire in February 2014 and October 201 peasrely. As of December 31, 2012, our
collective bargaining units represented approxitga&8% of our workforce.

We need to hire additional qualified personnel, including management personnel, and the loss of our key personnel could harm our
business.

Our future success will depend largelytom gkills, efforts and motivation of our executoféicers and other key personnel. Our success
also depends, in large part, upon our ability tcaat and retain highly qualified management andpersonnel throughout our organization.
We will likely need to hire additional personneiciuding management, engineering and sales perkaari#l in our organization. We face
competition in the attraction and retention of parsel who possess the skill sets that we seeldditian, key personnel may leave our
company and subsequently compete against us. $h@fdhe services of any of our key personnebunifailure to attract and retain other
qualified and experienced personnel on acceptebhes; could have a material adverse effect on osinkss, results of operations, or financial
condition.

Our ability to comply with regulatory requirementsis critical to our future success and our current level of controls cannot guarantee that we
arein compliance with all such requirements.

As a manufacturer and distributor of wimdl ather energy industry products we may be or imecsubject to the requirements of federal,
state and local or foreign regulatory authoritlesaddition, we are subject to a number of industandard-setting authorities, such as the
American Gear Manufacturers Association and the igaa Welding Society. Changes in the standardseq@irements imposed by such
authorities could have a material adverse effeai®nn the event we are unable to meet any sactiatds when adopted, our business could
be adversely affected. We
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may not be able to obtain all regulatory approvasnses and permits that may be required indhed, or any necessary modifications to
existing regulatory approvals, licenses and perroitgnaintain all required regulatory approvalsefises and permits. There can be no
guarantee that our businesses are in full compiavith such standards and requirements. We contondevelop our internal controls with a
goal of providing a greater degree of certainty tha businesses are in compliance with applicgbieernmental and regulatory requirements,
but our current level of internal control may failreveal to us material instances of non-compganith such requirements, and such non-
compliance could have a material adverse effectusrbusiness.

Certain stockholders have the ability to influence our affairs significantly.

Tontine Capital Management, L.L.C., Tont®apital Overseas GP, L.L.C., Tontine Managemeht@., Tontine Overseas Associates,
L.L.C., Tontine Capital Overseas Master Fund IR.. Tontine Assets Associates, L.L.C., Tontine Rdatners, L.P. and Tontine Associates
L.L.C. (collectively with their respective affilias, "Tontine") own approximately 11% of our outstimy common stock. Although Tontine
currently does not have any representatives oBoard of Directors, Tontine has, and for so longhay hold at least 10% of our then issued
and outstanding common stock will continue to halve right to designate two individuals on our Rbaf Directors pursuant to a Securities
Purchase Agreement entered into with Broadwindugust 2007. As a result, Tontine may have thetghdi significantly influence our
policies, business and affairs, and the outcormangfcorporate transaction or other matter, inclgdirergers, consolidations and the sale of al
or substantially all, of our assets. Tontine's gigant ownership level may have the effect of géig, deterring or preventing a change in
control that otherwise could result in a premiunthia price of our common stock. In addition, théars of Tontine may have the effect of
influencing changes in control or changes in mamag¥, or limiting the ability of our other stockldels to approve transactions that they may
deem to be in their best interest.

In addition, Special Situations Fund Il QFP., Special Situations Cayman Fund, L.P., Sp&ituations Technology Fund, L.P., and
Special Situations Technology Fund I, L.P. (cdilealy with their respective affiliates, "SSF"), avapproximately 21% of our outstanding
common stock. As a result of such ownership, SS¥ lmeaable to influence certain matters which aigesi to stockholder action.

We may not have the technical expertise and we may be unable to secure the necessary patents or other intellectual property rights needed to
successfully market new products that we may develop.

A key element of our business and operattragegy is to exploit our technological abilitydesign new manufacturing and service
processes and products to take advantage of thogpated growth in the North American wind markdistorically, we have not developed
patented technology or engaged in technical des@k on a significant scale. If we are unable teaedep new manufacturing and service
processes and products that are attractive toumiomers and potential customers, or if we are lertatsecure the necessary patents or other
intellectual property rights needed to preventaampetitors from developing and marketing subssdigitsimilar products, we could experiel
a material adverse effect on our business andtsesubperations.

Current or futurelitigation and regulatory actions could have a material adverse impact on us.

From time to time, we are subject to litiga and other legal and regulatory proceedinggtired to our business. We are currently
defendants in certain litigation matters and tHgextt of certain investigations by governmentalrages as further described under the headin
"Legal Proceedings" in this report. No assuranegste given that the results of these or new nzattdl be favorable to us. An adverse
resolution of lawsuits, investigations or arbitoas could have a material adverse effect on oanfiral condition and results of operations.
Defending ourselves in these matters may be tinmswooing, expensive and disruptive to normal busiogerations and may result in
significant
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expense and a diversion of management's time #&eatiah from the operation of our business, whichld impede our ability to achieve our
business objectives. Additionally, any amount thatmay be required to pay to satisfy a judgmersetitement may not be covered by
insurance. Under our charter and the indemnificagigreements that we have entered into with oizesH, directors and certain third parties,
we are required to indemnify and advance expermstgem in connection with their participation irrteén proceedings. There can be no
assurance that any of these payments will not Hermmb

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our corporate headquarters is located @ei@i lllinois, which is a suburb located west dificago, lllinois. In addition, our subsidiaries
own or lease operating facilities, which are préseiy operating segment as follows:

Owned / Approximate

Operating Segment and Facility Type Location Leased Square Footage
Towers and Weldments
Tower Manufacturing Manitowoc, Wi Leaset 200,00(
Tower Manufacturing Abilene, TX Ownec 146,00(
Tower Manufacturing Brandon, SD(1 Ownec 146,00(
Specialty Structure Manitowoc, WI Leaset 45,00(
Specialty Structure Clintonville, WI Ownec 63,00(
Gearing and Corporate
Gearing System Manufacturi—Finishing Cicero, IL Ownec 149,00(
Gearing System Manufacturing—Machining and

Corporate Administratio Cicero, IL Leasec 301,00t
Gearing System Manufacturi—Heat Treatmer Neville Island, PA Ownec 70,00(
Services
Service and Maintenan Gary, SD Leaset 5,00(
Service and Maintenan Abilene, TX(2) Leasec 297,00(
Service and Maintenan Howard, SC Ownec 25,00(

Q) Construction of the Brandon Facility was complatethe first quarter of 2010. During 2010
determined that it would be difficult or impossiliéeoperate this facility in a profitable or cost-
effective manner, and we recorded a correspondipgirment charge of $13.3 million. In
addition, during the third quarter of 2011, we det@ed that the Brandon Facility should be
sold, and as a result reclassified the land, ngl@ind fixtures valued at $8,000 from Property
and Equipment to Assets Held for Sale.

(2) During 2012 we renegotiated the lease for the Algildexas location of our Services segment.
Per the terms of the new lease agreement, weenillge the area of our leased premises from

approximately 297,000 square feet to approxima86Ip00 square feet in the second quarter of
2013.

We consider our facilities to be in gooadiion and adequate for our present and futuresiee
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
Shareholder Lawsuits

On February 11, 2011, a putative clas®aatias filed in the United States District Count tlee Northern District of Illinois, Eastern
Division (the "Court"), against the Company andaierof its current or former officers and directofhe lawsuit was purportedly brought on
behalf of purchasers of the Company's common dtetikeen March 17, 2009 and August 9, 2010. A Idaithiff was appointed and an
amended complaint was filed on September 13, 204 amended complaint named as additional defeadantain of the Company's current
and former directors, certain Tontine entities, deffrey Gendell, a principal of Tontine. The coaipt sought to allege that the defendants
violated Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act, andeRLllb-5 promulgated thereunder, and/or Section) 28the Exchange Act by issuing or
causing to be issued a series of allegedly faldéoamisleading statements concerning the Compdingiacial results, operations, and
prospects, including with respect to the Januafy0ZEcondary public offering of the Company's comrmsiock. The plaintiffs alleged that the
Company's statements were false and misleadingibecamong other things, the Company's reportediéial results during the class period
allegedly violated generally accepted accountinggiples because they failed to reflect the impaintrof goodwill and other intangible assets,
and the Company allegedly failed to disclose kntnends and other information regarding certainamust relationships at Brad Foote. In
support of their claims, the plaintiffs relied iapupon six alleged confidential informants, dlixdiom are alleged to be former employees of
the Company. On November 18, 2011, the Compang &lenotion to dismiss. On April 19, 2012, the Carented in part and denied in part
the Company's motion. The Court dismissed all caivith prejudice against each of the named cuardtformer officers except for J.
Cameron Drecoll and held that the plaintiffs haitethto state a claim for any alleged misstatemardde after March 19, 2010. In addition,
Court dismissed all claims with prejudice agaihsthamed Tontine entities and Mr. Gendell. The €denied the motion with respect to
certain of the claims asserted against the CompadyMr. Drecoll. The Company filed its answer affttraative defenses on May 21, 2012.
On June 22, 2012, the plaintiffs filed a motion ¢tass certification which is not fully briefed. &Iparties have reached agreement in principle
on a settlement of the matter in the amount of #8,Which is payable by the Company's insuranceerailhe parties are currently engaged in
negotiating the settlement documents.

Between February 15, 2011 and March 301 20tee putative shareholder derivative lawsuisenfiled in the Court against certain of
Company's current and former officers and directansl certain Tontine entities, seeking to chakealfjeged breaches of fiduciary duty, waste
of corporate assets, and unjust enrichment, inctui connection with the January 2010 secondabjipoffering of the Company's common
stock. One of the lawsuits also alleges that aedakectors violated Section 14(a) of the ExchaAgein connection with the Company's Proxy
Statement for its 2010 Annual Meeting of Stockhadd@wo of the matters pending in the federal caugte subsequently consolidated, and or
May 15, 2012, the Court granted the defendantsomad dismiss the consolidated cases and alseezhéa order dismissing the third case.
The Company received a request from the Tontineratizints for indemnification in the derivative saitgl the class action lawsuit pursuant to
various agreements related to shares owned byriorthe Company maintains directors and officedsility insurance; however, the costs of
indemnification for Mr. Gendell and/or Tontine wduiot be covered by any Company insurance poliegaBse of the preliminary nature of
these lawsuits, the Company is not able to estimadss or range of loss, if any, that may be irediin connection with this matter at this tir

SEC Inquiry

In August 2011, the Company received a eahp from the SEC seeking documents and otherdecelated to certain accounting
practices at Brad Foote. The subpoena was issugahimection
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with an informal inquiry that the Company receifesm the SEC in November 2010 arising out of a widower complaint received by the
SEC related to revenue recognition, cost accoumtimfjintangible and fixed asset valuations at Biaote. The Company has been voluntarily
providing information to the SEC as a part of timguiry and is in the process of responding toghiepoena with respect to the outstanding
requests. The Company cannot currently predicbtiieome of this investigation. The Company doedetieve that the resolution of this
matter will have a material adverse effect on tbhen@any's consolidated financial position or resofteperations. No estimate regarding the
loss or range of loss, if any, that may be incuinecbnnection with this matter is possible at tinise.

Environmental

The Company is aware of an investigatiom@nced by the USAO for potential violation of femlenvironmental laws. On February
2011, pursuant to a search warrant, officials ftbeMUSEPA entered and conducted a search of tleedCiacility, in connection with the
alleged improper disposal of industrial wastewédethe sewer. Also on or about February 15, 201 tphnection with the same matter, the
Company received a grand jury subpoena requedsigrtony and the production of certain documenging to the Cicero Facility's past
compliance with certain environmental laws and tagpns relating to the generation, discharge aspasal of wastewater from certain of its
processes between 2004 and the present. On or bbutary 23, 2011, the Company received anotterdgjury subpoena relating to the s:
investigation, requesting testimony and the praduadf certain other documents relating to certdithe Cicero Facility's employees,
environmental and manufacturing processes, andsidpractices. On April 5, 2012, we received geitdtom the USAO requesting the
production of certain financial records from 20088he present. The Company has completed its resgorthe subpoenas and to the USAQO's
request. The Company has also voluntarily institutgrrective measures at the Cicero Facility, iditlg changes to its wastewater disposal
practices. On April 12, 2012, the Company receiédetter from the USAO advising it that Brad Foista target of the criminal investigation
of the Cicero Facility, and requesting that Bradtécagree to a tolling of the applicable statutBnoitations for any criminal charges relating
the investigation. Subsequently, Brad Foote haseabto the tolling of the applicable statute ofifations for any criminal charges relating to
the investigation through April 18, 2013. There t@no assurances that the conclusion of the iigeisin will not result in a determination
that the Company has violated applicable envirorteiehealth and safety laws and regulations. Amyations found, or any criminal or civil
fines, penalties and/or other sanctions imposetidmeisubstantial and materially and adverselycattee Company. The Company had
recorded a liability of $675 at December 31, 2040ich represented the low end of its estimate ofediationrelated costs and expenses; a
December 31, 2012, those initial costs have bemuriad, and additional costs have been expensiedwsed. No additional remediation
related expenses are anticipated or have beeneal;drawever, the outcome of the investigation liedality in connection therewith, and the
impact on the Company's operations cannot be pgestat this time. No estimate regarding the losange of loss, if any, that may be incur
in connection with this matter is possible at timise.

Other

We are also a party to additional claimd kEgal proceedings arising in the ordinary cowfseusiness. Due to the inherent uncertainty of
litigation, there can be no assurance that thdutisn of any particular claim or proceeding woulot have a material adverse effect on our
results of operations, financial position or ligtyd |t is possible that if one or more of the neastdescribed above were decided against us, tf
effects could be material to our results of operetiin the period in which we would be requiredegicord or adjust the related liability and
could also be material to our cash flows in théqeein which we would be required to pay such ligi
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ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not Applicable

PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, R ELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The following table sets forth the high dowl bid prices of our common stock traded on ti&SRAQ Capital Market.

Common Stock

High Low
2012
First quartel $ 86 $ 4.5C
Second quarte 4.8( 2.5C
Third quartel 3.7C 1.7¢
Fourth quarte 3.2C 2.0C
High Low
2011
First quartel $ 25.2( $ 12.1(
Second quarte 19.4( 12.6(
Third quartel 15.3( 2.9C
Fourth quarte 9.2( 2.6(

The closing price for our common stock B5ebruary 20, 2013 was $3.20. As of February 2a32there were 66 holders of record of
common stock.

We have never paid cash dividends on ommgon stock and have no current plan to do so ifidieseeable future. The declaration and
payment of dividends on our common stock are stilbjeihie discretion of our Board of Directors ame further limited by our credit
agreements and other contractual agreements wéavayin place from time to time. The decision of Board of Directors to pay future
dividends will depend on general business condititime effect of a dividend payment on our finahoc@adition, and other factors the Board of
Directors may consider relevant. The current potitpur Board of Directors is to reinvest cash gatez in our operations to promote future
growth and to fund potential investments.
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Performance Graph

The following Performance Graph and related infotima shall not be deemed "soliciting material” dil¢d" under the Securities Act of
1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, eadaended, nor shall such information be incorpedaty reference by any general
statement incorporating by reference this Annugldkeon Form 10-K into any filing under such Aa@scept to the extent that the Company
specifically incorporates it by reference into sditimg.

The following graph compares cumulativershalder returns for our common stock as compariddtive S&P 500 and the Clean Edge
Global Wind Energy Index for the period from A@il 2009 (the date our common stock began tradinfp@MNASDAQ) to December 31,
2012. The graph assumes an investment of $100/Agri@d, 2009 and that dividends were reinvested.
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Repurchases

We did not engage in any repurchases otommmon stock during the fourth quarter or forybar ended December 31, 2012.
Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities

There were no unregistered sales of egeityrities during the fourth quarter or for therygaded December 31, 2012.
Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Corpensation Plans

See Part lll, Item 12 "Security OwnershifCertain Beneficial Owners and Management andtBeél&tockholder Matters" of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K for information as of Decem®&y 2012 with respect to shares of our common steegkmay be issued under our
existing share-based compensation plans.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected historical consotethfinancial and other data are qualified in tlegitirety by reference to, and should be read in
conjunction with, our consolidated financial statas and the related notes thereto appearing eésevilerein and Part I, Item 7
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of FinarC@idition and Results of Operations." Our selestatement of continuing operations ¢
set forth below for each of the years ended Dece®be2012, 2011, 2010, 2009, and 2008, and thenbalsheet data as of December 31,
2012, 2011, 2010, 2009, and 2008, are derived frontonsolidated financial statements.

(In thousands, except per share data)

For the Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Selected Statement of Operation

Data
Revenue! $ 210,700 $ 185,85« $ 136,89t $ 184,79t $ 207,34
Gross profi 6,83¢ 7,187 1,94¢ 11,90« 31,69¢
Gross profit percentag 3.2% 3.2% 1.4% 6.4% 15.2%
Impairment charge $ — 9 — $ 40,777 $ 8221 $ 2,40¢
Intangible amortizatiol 1,75¢ 85¢ 2,99 9,52¢ 10,64¢
Operating los! (17,297 (20,429 (69,227 (112,25) (21,879

Loss from continuing operatiol (17,907 (20,747 (69,759 (107,026 (25,279
Net loss per share—basic and
diluted:
Loss from continuing
operations (1.27) (2.79 (6.5€) (11.09 (2.87)

Cash dividends per common
share — — — — —

As of December 31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Selected Balance Sheet Da
Assets:;
Property and equipment,r  $ 79,88¢ $ 87,76¢ $ 106,31 $ 129,61¢ $ 136,13
Total asset 142,91( 172,89: 183,50t 231,48t 380,60¢
Liabilities:
Total long-term debt, net of
current maturitie! 2,95¢ 4,797 9,671 13,39¢ 24,39
Total stockholders' equi 103,30¢ 117,85¢ 126,19¢ 155,59! 262,15¢

For the Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Selected Other Dat—Non GAAP
Financial Measures
Adjusted EBITDA(1) $ 5511 $ (2,129 $ (9,210 $ 2,00 $ 2,42
Adjusted EBITDA margin
percentage(2) 2.6% -1.1% -6.7% 1.1% 1.2%

Q) For any period, earnings from continuing operatibefore interest, taxes, depreciation,
amortization, restructuring and share-based paysr(Atjusted EBITDA") are calculated as
presented below. We believe that Adjusted EBITDAasticularly meaningful due principally
to the role acquisitions have played in our develept. Historically, our growth through
acquisitions has resulted in significant non-caspreciation and amortization expense because
a significant portion of the purchase price of aoguired businesses is generally allocated to
depreciable fixe(
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)

assets and long-lived assets, which primarily airedigoodwill and amortizable intangible
assets. Please note that Adjusted EBITDA shouldeatonsidered an alternative to, nor is t
any implication that Adjusted EBITDA is more meagfnl than, any measure of performanc
liquidity promulgated under accounting principlengrally accepted in the U.S. ("GAAP").

Adjusted EBITDA margin percentage is equal to AthdsEBITDA divided by total revenu

For the Year Ended December 31
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Loss from continuing operatior $ (17,907 $ (20,742 $ (69,759 $ (107,02) $ (25,27¢)
Provision (benefit) for income

taxes 2€ 68 (160 (947) 1,09¢
Interest expense, n 1,711 1,115 1,172 2,17¢ 2,104
Impairment charge — — 40,77 82,21 2,40¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 15,67¢ 14,53¢ 16,46 22,69t 20,09(
Restructuring 2,49¢ 86¢ — — —
Share-based compensation ar

other stock paymen 3,50¢ 2,02t 2,291 2,89¢ 1,99¢

Adjusted EBITDA $ 5511 $ (2,129 $ (9,210 $ 2,00 $ 2,42
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

As used in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, thentetwe," "us," "our," "Broadwind," "Broadwind Eneyand the "Company" refer to
Broadwind Energy, Inc. and its whc-owned subsidiaries.

(Dollars are presented in thousands unless otherwise stated)
Business Overview

Broadwind provides technologically advanbégh-value products and services to energy, miaimgjinfrastructure sector customers,
primarily in the U.S. Our most significant preseicavithin the U.S. wind industry, although we hanereasingly diversified into other
industrial markets in order to improve our capaaiiyization and reduce our exposure to uncertaiatyted to governmental policies currently
supporting the U.S. wind industry. Our product aedvice portfolio provides our wind energy custaspéncluding wind turbine manufacture
wind farm developers and wind farm operators, \aithess to a broad array of component and seniesragfs. Outside of the wind market, we
provide precision gearing and specialty weldmenis broad range of industrial customers for oil gad, mining and other industrial
applications.

The market for new U.S. wind energy instiédins is affected by the following factors: (ijo@omic growth and the associated demand fol
new electricity generation, (ii) the cost of conipgtenergy sources, primarily natural gas, (iifjdeal and state-level wind development
incentives, (iv) available transmission infrasturetand the proliferation of smart grid technologyd (v) improvements in wind energy cost
competitiveness resulting from the maturation chtelogies and services within the wind industng]uding increased turbine efficiencies :
improved focus on equipment maintenance and rétyabi

We continue to execute a diversificatioatstgy for our operations, focusing on increasaigsto industrial customers. We have actively
shifted into servicing the installed fleet of windbines and expanded our sales to gearing andaftyaseldments for industrial customers, ¢
consequently, our sales associated with new wirlrte manufacturing and installations as a shawototal revenue has declined. Of our
total company backlog at the end of 2012, 23% wsspres industrial customer demand, which is up ft@&% in 2011. The following table
shows our revenue share for each of these chafundlse past two years:

Annual
Revenue
2012 2011
New Wind Installation: 62% 73%
Wind Installed Base Suppc 13% 7%
Industrial Gearing & Weldmen 25%  20%
Total 10(% 10(%

Wind energy demand was strong in most d22@ut weakened in the last quarter of the yednasnarket reacted to the scheduled
expiration of the federal production tax creditT®') supporting the U.S. wind industry. Due to #uheduled expiration of the PTC and a ti
case affecting imports of wind towers from certAsian countries, a number of competitors, bothifprend domestic, have exited the market
or repurposed some of their wind tower productissess. This has improved the near-term balanceseetaupply and demand in the U.S.
wind tower industry. New supporting legislation veggproved in early 2013 that extended the PTC éar wind projects started in calendar
2013, but there is uncertainty surrounding thergrof receiving potential new component orderseagtbpers re-start their investment
process. Although we have significantly expandedveeldments revenues, our Towers and Weldments eegisilargely linked to new wind
installations. In late 2012
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and early 2013 we announced that we had won fotlawewers orders from two large turbine manufactutetaling $78 million. In our
Gearing segment, we successfully shifted into itrtalgroducts for oil and gas, mining and rail tusers; however, sales to support the
natural gas industry softened in 2012, and we éapeed reduced orders and revenues from largeroessan our Gearing segment. In our
Services segment, we expanded sales of loose gearthrebuilt gearboxes and sales to our largesboiers including services and value-
added products which increase turbine efficiency.

During 2011, we conducted a review of ousibess strategies and product plans given theadufbr the economy at large, the forecast
for the industries we serve and our own businegs@mment. As a result, we have been executingtueturing plan to rationalize our facility
capacity and our management structure, and to tidasmand increase the efficiencies of our opereti

In 2011, we concluded that our manufactyufootprint and fixed cost base are too large aqppsive for our medium-term needs. We ar
executing a plan to reduce our facility footprigtdpproximately 40% through the sale and/or closdifacilities comprising a total of
approximately 600,000 square feet through the é@2®d4. To date, we have reached agreement to oloszluce our leased presence at five
facilities and achieve an eventual reduction ofrapimnately 250,000 square feet. The most signifigg@anned reductions relate to of one of
Cicero, lllinois gearing facilities and our non-ogtonal Brandon, South Dakota tower manufactufaajity (the "Brandon Facility"). We
believe the remaining locations will be sufficieatsupport our Towers and Weldments, Gearing, 8esvand general corporate and
administrative activities while allowing for growfbr the next several years. These factors havginegimanagement to reassess its estimate:
of the fair value of some of our assets. We entaredan agreement to sell the Brandon Facilitfrebruary 25, 2013. For more information,
refer to Note 23 "Subsequent Events" in Part 1¥itl5 in the notes to our consolidated financitkeshents.

We expect to incur restructuring costs aisged with the restructuring plan totaling anrmastied $14,900, of which $6,000 has been
incurred through the end of 2012. Costs are exgdoténclude approximately $6,000 in capital expemds and $8,900 in expenses, of which
approximately $3,700 is anticipated to be non-@aglenses and $5,200 is anticipated to be cash sapeNet proceeds from associated asset
sales, projected to be approximately $7,200, velubed to fund cash costs. We anticipate annualgsggoing forward of approximately
$6,000 related to the restructuring.

During 2012, we established a three-ye& (I revolving credit agreement with AloStar BailCommerce ("AloStar"). In connection
with this agreement, AloStar advanced funds agauasborrowing base, which consists of approxinya8&% of eligible receivables and
approximately 50% of eligible inventory. Proceedsi the transaction were used to repay certairtanding indebtedness, including
repayment of the outstanding debt associated WahWells Fargo AP Agreements described below. Utildemew recapitalized borrowing
structure, borrowings are continuous and all caskipts are automatically applied to the outstambiorrowed balance. As a result of this
structure, we anticipate that cash balances willaia at a minimum at all times when there are art®autstanding under the credit line.

As of December 31, 2012, total cash asspialed $846. We anticipate that we will be ablsatiisfy the cash requirements associated
with, among other things, working capital needgpjted expenditures and debt and lease commitmbardsigh at least the next 12 months
primarily with current cash on hand, amounts atédainder our credit line, and cash generated leyatipns.

Our ability to meet financial debt coversaah our debt and other financial obligations @épend on our future financial and operating
performance. If we cannot make scheduled paymentaiodebt, or comply with applicable covenantswilebe in default and, as a result,
among other things, our debt holders could dedlreutstanding principal and interest to be due payable. As of December 31, 2012, we
were in compliance with all of our debt covenantsept for a fixed charge
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coverage ratio covenant under our credit agreemightAloStar (the "FCCR Covenant"). On February 2313, AloStar agreed to waive our
non-compliance with the FCCR Covenant as of Decer@bg2012, and further agreed that we will notdxguired to be in compliance with the
FCCR Covenant as of March 31, 2013, unless we bawgleted the disposition of the Brandon Facilitippto such date. Compliance with
FCCR Covenant is determined as of the end of @achlfquarter; absent a further waiver from AloStee must be in compliance with the
FCCR Covenant as of June 30, 2013 and as of thefezath fiscal quarter thereafter.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared to Year Endé&kcember 31, 2011

The summary of selected financial datagtdigllow should be referenced in connection witkvéew of the following discussion of our
results of operations for the year ended Decembge?®12 compared to the year ended December 31, 201

For the Year Ended December 31 2012 vs. 201
2012 % of Total 2011 % of Total $ Change % Change
Revenue! $ 210,70 100.(% $ 185,85¢ 100.(% $ 24,85 13.%%
Cost of sale: 202,25 96.% 178,53t 96.(% 23,72: 13.2%
Restructuring cosl 1,61« 0.8% 131 0.1% 1,48: 1132.%
Gross profit 6,83¢ 3.2% 7,187 3.€% (35]) (4.99%
Operating expenst
Selling, general and
administrative
expense: 21,63¢ 10.2% 26,31¢ 14.2% (4,687 17.9%
Intangible
amortization 1,75¢ 0.8% 85¢ 0.5% 90C 104.8%%
Restructuring cosl 74C 0.4% 441 0.2% 29¢ 67.8%
Total operating
expense: 24,13: 11.5% 27,61¢ 14.9%  (3,48)) (12.0%
Operating los: (17,297 (8.9% (20,429 (11.0%  3,13: 15.2%
Other (expense) incon
Interest expense, n (1,717 0.9% (1,119 (0.60% (599 (53.29%
Other, ne 1,271 0.6% 1,16¢ 0.6% 10z 8.7%
Restructuring cosi (144 0.C% (297) (0.29% 15z 51.5%
Total other
(expense)
income, ne (584) (0.2)% (245) (0.2% (339 (138.9)%
Net loss fronr
continuing operatior
before provision for
income taxe: (17,88) (8.559% (20,679 (11.29%  2,79: 13.5%
Provision for income
taxes 2€ 0.C% 68 0.C% (42 (61.9)%
Loss from continuing
operations (17,907 (8.5% (20,747 (11.9% 2,83t 13.7%
Loss from discontinuel
operations, net of ta — 0.C% (1,206 (0.6%  1,20¢ 100.(%
Net loss $ (17,90) (8.5%% (21,94% (11.9%$ 4,041 18.%%
Consolidated

Total revenues increased $24,853 or 136 f8185,854 during the year ended December 31,,20%210,707 during the year ended
December 31, 2012. The increase in revenues wasply attributable to a 16%, or $18,295, increimseur Towers and Weldments segment
revenue due to growth in weldments revenue andehigteel content in the towers sold. Our Gearimgnest total
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revenues increased by 3% as increases in indugt@ing revenue more than offset the declinesiil wearing revenue, consistent with our
focus on diversifying our business. Revenues inSmivices segment increased by 36% due to increaseites to our two largest customers,
as well as sales of gearboxes and loose geariomninection with our Abilene, Texas drivetrain seeveenter facility (the "Abilene Service
Facility") which opened in February, 2011.

Total gross profit decreased $351 or 5%mff7,187 for the year ended December 31, 2016,88% for the year ended December 31,
2012. The decrease in gross profit was primarihytaitable to increased restructuring charges,céirdein Towers and Weldments gross profit
due to a lower margin mix of tower sales, the dasean wind tower sections manufactured and opeyatiefficiencies related to new tower
and weldments design production stgpt-partially offset by margin improvements at Gegiand Services during the year ended Decemb
2012 as compared to the prior year. The gross maeyicentage declined from 3.9% in 2011 to 3.2%0it2. Gross profit excluding
restructuring charges increased by $1,132, ancethéting gross margin percentage would have be# & the absence of those restructu
charges.

Selling, general and administrative ("SG&#&%penses decreased from $26,316 during the yelmdeDecember 31, 2011, to $21,634
during the year ended December 31, 2012. The dexkeas primarily attributable to reductions in emypgle compensation expense of $1,449,
legal expenses of $1,406, professional fees of $37@ bad debt expense of $862 as part of genesatontainment efforts. SG&A expense
a percentage of sales decreased from 14% in thieepelad December 31, 2011 to 10% in the year ebdedmber 31, 2012.

Intangible amortization expense increasenhf$859 during the year ended December 31, 20141759 during the year ended
December 31, 2012. The increase was attributalilestacceleration of amortization of an intangdset related to one customer contract.

We recorded restructuring costs of $443@®&A expenses in 2011, primarily due to the closafreur European sales office, and $740 in
2012 due primarily to the consolidation of our Geguoperations. Total other expense, net, was $24ihg the year ended December 31, 2
compared to other expense, net, of $584 duringdhe ended December 31, 2012. The increased expersse result of increased financing
expenses, partially offset by lower restructuringts associated with sales of assets.

During the year ended December 31, 201Ireperted a provision for income taxes of $68, carag to a provision for income taxes of
$26 during the year ended December 31, 2012.

Net loss decreased from $21,948 during/éfee ended December 31, 2011, to $17,907 duringgheended December 31, 2012,
primarily as a result of the factors as descrildealva.

Towers and Weldments Segment

The following table summarizes the Toward #Weldments segment operating results for thesyeaded December 31, 2012 and 2011

Twelve Months Ended
December 31,

2012 2011
Revenue: $ 135,22 $ 116,92¢
Operating income (los: 2,76¢ 5,18
Operating margil 2.C% 4.4%

Towers and Weldments segment revenuesaseceby $18,295, from $116,926 during the yearéibieember 31, 2011, to $135,221
during the year ended December 31, 2012. Towers\ldments revenues increased due to a $7,094aseia weldment revenues, and an
$11,201 increase
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in tower revenues. The $11,201 increase in towearmae represents sales of higher steel contentsowartially offset by a reduction in tower

volume shipped in the current year. In the curyeatr, significant steel costs were included inhst majority of our towers sales, while in the
prior year; fabrication-only tower sections reprasd 26% of our volume. We estimate that the impétite reduced share of fabrication-only

tower sections accounted for approximately $19@00e increase in tower revenues from the priary&owers MW sold decreased 1%, with
a 12% decrease in the volume of wind tower sectsofd compared to 2011. We sold 1,207 tower sesfiloming the year ended December 31
2012, versus 1,369 sections sold during the yededbecember 31, 2011.

Towers and Weldments segment operatingnirecdeclined by $2,421 from $5,187 during the yealee December 31, 2011, to $2,766
during the year ended December 31, 2012. The dezinaperating income was primarily attributalol@tiower margin mix of tower sales,
decrease in wind tower sections manufactured, padating inefficiencies related to new tower anddwents design production stai-in the
current year period. Our operating margin was 2f@fear ended December 31, 2012, versus 4.4%«far gnded December 31, 2011.

Gearing Segment

The following table summarizes the Geasagment operating results for the years ended Disee®1, 2012 and 2011:

Twelve Months Ended
December 31,

2012 2011
Revenue: $ 55,66( $ 54,29¢
Operating los! (7,626 (10,737
Operating margil (13.9)% (19.9%

Gearing segment revenues increased $1i@64,$54,296 during the year ended December 311,201$55,660 during the year ended
December 31, 2012. The increase in industrial ggagvenue of 25% more than offset the declinetal tvind revenue of 37%, consistent v
our strategic diversification focus. The challengrethe wind industry depressed the manufactusgiod turbine gearing, which had typically
accounted for the majority of our gearing reveningbe recent past. As demand for wind gearingetesad, we increased our sales force and
shifted our focus to the manufacture of custemgineered gearing systems and gearboxes foraigjas, mining and other industrial custom
Gearing sales to oil and gas, mining and otherstréal customers in 2012 represented 74% of oat tetenues, and orders from these
customers represented 82% of our backlog as ofrbleee31, 2012.

Gearing segment operating loss improvei$¢07, from $10,733 during the year ended Decer®be?011, to $7,626 during the year
ended December 31, 2012. The operating margin wepnent is due to both improved gross margin dumpsoved mix despite increased
restructuring cost of goods sold of $1,257, andblaer SG&A expenses. The SG&A expenses reductionprinarily due to reduced legal ¢
professional fees of $1,231, lower bad debt expeh$&74 and lower employee compensation of $482. SG&A expense reduction was
partially offset by increased intangible amortieatof $900 related to our decision to shorten t#eful life associated with a portion our
customer relationship asset, increased restrugtasipense of $486, and increased selling cost@ tf.$Gearing operating margin was (19.8)%
during the year ended December 31, 2011 compar@8td)% during the year ended December 31, 2012 talthese factors.
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Services Segment
The following table summarizes the Servieegment operating results for the years endedrbleee31, 2012 and 2011:

Twelve Months Ended
December 31

2012 2011
Revenue: $ 22,10¢ $ 16,29
Operating los! (4,185 (5,247
Operating margil (18.9% (32.29%

Services segment revenues increased $5/81%$16,291 during the year ended December 311 20 $22,106 during the year ended
December 31, 2012. Revenues within our Servicesisrgincreased by 36% due to increased servicesdebto our two largest customers
well growth in sales of gearboxes and loose geanimgnnection with the Abilene Service Facility isfhopened in February 2011.

Services segment operating loss improved6®] from $5,247 during the year ended Decembg2@11, to $4,185 during the year ended
December 31, 2012. Services segment operatingngs®vement was primarily due to increased contidsumargins, partially offset by
higher operating expenses including a one-timel lsgflement expense of $283 and increased emplmymeensation expenses of $292.
Services operating margin was (32.2)% during tre yaded December 31, 2011 compared to (18.9)%glthe year ended December 31,
2012, due to these factors.

Corporate and Other
Corporate and Other operating loss decde®$e384 from $9,636 during the year ended Decerdbe?011, to $8,252 during the year
ended December 31, 2012. The decrease was prindaglyo legal fee decreases of $866 and the absé&ac®406 prior year restructuring

charge primarily related to the European officesale.
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Year Ended December 31, 2011 Compared to Year Endé&2kcember 31, 2010

The summary of selected financial dataet&lglow should be referenced in connection witbvéew of the following discussion of our
results of operations for the year ended Decembge?P@®1L1 compared to the year ended December 30, 201

For the Year Ended December 31

% of % of 2011 vs. 201
2011 Total 2010 Total $ Change % Change
Revenue: $ 185,85 100.% $ 136,89¢ 100.(% $ 48,95¢ 35.8%
Cost of sale: 178,53t 96.%  134,95( 98.6%  43,58t¢ 32.2%
Restructuring cosl 131 0.1% — 0.C% 131 100.(%
Gross profit 7,18 3.5% 1,94¢ 1.4% 5,241 269.2%
Operating expenst
Selling, general and
administrative
expenses 26,31¢ 14.2% 27,40¢ 20.(% (1,089 (4.00%
Impairment charge — 0.C% 40,775 29.6% (40,777 (100.0%
Intangible amortizatiol 85¢ 0.5% 2,992 2.2% (2,137 (71.9%
Restructuring cosl 441 0.2% — 0.C% 441 100.(%
Total operating
expense: 27,61¢ 14.9% 71,17 52.% (43,55)) (61.2%
Operating los! (20,429 (11.0% (69,227 (50.60% 48,79¢ 70.5%
Other (expense) incon
Interest expense, n (1,119 0.% (1,172 (0.9% 55 4.7%
Other, ne 1,16¢ 0.€% 48€ 0.4% 68% (140.9%
Restructuring cosl (297) (0.2% — 0.C% (297) 100.(%
Total other (expense
income, ne (245) (0.2% (68€) (0.5% 441 64.5%
Net loss from continuin
operations before
provision (benefit) for
income taxe: (20,679 (11.9% (69,919 (51.)%  49,23¢ 70.2%
Provision (benefit) for
income taxe: 68 0.C% (160 (0.)% 22¢ 142.5%
Loss from continuing
operations (20,747 (11.9% (69,759 (51.0% 49,01 70.2%
Loss from discontinued
operations, net of ta (1,20€) 0.% (15,429 (11.9% 14,21¢ 92.2%
Net loss $ (21,949 (11.9%$ (85,17Y) (62.9%%$ 63,227 74.2%
Consolidated

Total revenues increased $48,958 or 366f, 136,896 during the year ended December 31,,20 185,854 during the year ended
December 31, 2011. The increase in revenues wemply attributable to a 54%, or $40,776, incremseur Towers and Weldments segment
revenue due to increased customer demand and iegha@apacity utilization. Our Gearing segment tegakenues increased by 11% as
increases in industrial gearing revenue more tlitsetodeclines in wind revenue, consistent with fmeus on diversifying our business.
Revenues in our Services segment increased by 88%odncreased blade services provided to ouddvgest customers, as well as the initial
sales of gearboxes and loose gearing in connesfitbrthe Abilene Service Facility which opened iebFuary 2011.

Total gross profit increased $5,241 or 268#%m $1,946 for the year ended December 31, 2@197,187 for the year ended
December 31, 2011. The gross margin percentagenmsel.4% in 2010 to
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3.9% in 2011. The improvement was primarily atttédle to increased tower and gearing sales volaméds higher margin mix of gearing
sales. Partly offsetting the increase were the ahpimore competitive pricing within Towers and Mfaents and higher facility costs within
Services due to the start-up of the Abilene Serkeility which operated at a low utilization lexdairing 2011.

SG&A expenses decreased from $27,404 duhegear ended December 31, 2010, to $26,316glthiyear ended December 31, 2011
as a reduction in employee compensation costs aisilpy offset by $1,839 in increased legal costs.

We review our goodwill balances for impaémhon at least an annual basis and review oungitiee and other long-lived assets for
impairment whenever events or changes in circurnstaimdicate that the asset's carrying value amuoagtnot be recoverable. During the
second quarter of 2010 we identified a triggeringre associated with the continued deterioratiothénfinancial performance within our
Services segment. This triggering event requiregl/esion of our projection of future operating rksand cash flows for this segment in light
of the continued economic weakness in the windgnierdustry. We performed our review of goodwillsked on the carrying value of these
assets as of June 30, 2010, and the estimater effai for each of our operating segments wasdopsmarily on projected future results, cast
flows and other assumptions. As a result of thiseng, we recorded a goodwill impairment charge 4561 at June 30, 2010 in our Services
segment. During the fourth quarter of 2010, we tified triggering events associated with our cutrqggriod operating losses, our history of
continued operating losses and our revised projestdf operating results and cash flows develogguhat of the strategic planning process. A
a result, our review of other long-lived assetsdated that the carrying values of customer refeiaps, trade name and property and
equipment within our Services segment were alsairad. Accordingly, we recorded an impairment ckatgring the fourth quarter of
$22,890. In addition, following our strategic plampmeetings that took place in the fourth qua2@t0, we determined that the Brandon
Facility was impaired and recorded an impairmetrgh to fixed assets of $13,326. During 2011, veatified triggering events associated
with our current period operating losses combinét aur history of continued operating losses. Assult, we evaluated the recoverability of
certain of our identifiable intangible assets aadain property and equipment assets. We did matrdeany corresponding impairment in 2011

Intangible amortization expense decreasad $2,992 during the year ended December 31, 2018859 during the year ended
December 31, 2011. The decrease was due to a &sset base because of the impairment charges ainbed.

We recorded restructuring costs of $443@®&A expenses in 2011, primarily due to the closafreur European sales office and
subsidiary. We also recorded $297 in other rearing costs related primarily to losses on the s&kurplus equipment.

Total other income, net, was an expensk686 during the year ended December 31, 2010, cadpa other expense, net, of $245 during
the year ended December 31, 2011. The net impraviewss a result of increased grant income assakisith local economic development
initiatives partially offset by the restructuringsts mentioned above.

During the year ended December 31, 2010:eperted a benefit for income taxes of $160, caengbéo a provision for income taxes of
$68 during the year ended December 31, 2011. Ttredse in income tax benefit and increase in incaxerovision for 2011 compared to
2010 was primarily attributable to the accrualtates income taxes in 2011 and the one-time reductia@eferred income tax liabilities in
connection with reversal of naked tax credits dy2010.

Net loss from continuing operations deceeasom $69,753 during the year ended Decembe?@l0), to $20,742 during the year ended
December 31, 2011, primarily as a result of théoi@cas described above.
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Net loss from discontinued operations,aféax was $15,422 during the year ended Decembe2®L0, compared to $1,206 during the
year ended December 31, 2011. The 2010 loss intlindgairment charges of $10,0:

Net loss decreased from $85,175 duringyéfze ended December 31, 2010, to $21,948 duringe¢aeended December 31, 2011,
primarily as a result of the factors as descrildealva.

Towers and Weldments Segment

The following table summarizes the Towerd Weldments segment operating results for thesyeaded December 31, 2011 and 2010:

Twelve Months Ended
December 31,

2011 2010
Revenue: $ 116,92t $ 76,15(
Impairment charge — 13,32¢
Operating los! 5,181 (12,436
Operating margil 4.4% (15.0%

Towers and Weldments segment revenuesaseceby $40,776, from $76,150 during the year ebdEstmber 31, 2010, to $116,926
during the year ended December 31, 2011. The iser@arevenues is attributable to a 43% increasewer sections produced during 2011
versus 2010. The increase in volume also incretheeMW's sold, with 593 MW's sold during the yeaded December 31, 2011, versus 518
MW's sold during the year ended December 31, 2010.

Towers and Weldments segment operatingmecionproved by $16,623 from a loss of $11,436 dytire year ended December 31, 2010
to operating income of $5,187 during the year eridedember 31, 2011. Excluding a dimae impairment charge in 2010 of $13,326, opeg
income for the year would have improved by $3,28Mpared to the prior year. The increase in sestidime positively impacted operating
margin, however competitive pricing pressures aedficiencies that resulted from the productiomet tower designs eroded a portion of
those gains. Tower segment operating margin w&s fod year ended December 31, 2011, versus a negaperating margin of (15.0%) for
year ended December 31, 20

Gearing Segment
The following table summarizes the Geasagment operating results for the years ended Disee®1, 2011 and 2010:

Twelve Months Ended December 31

2011 2010
Revenue: $ 54,29¢ $ 48,99¢
Impairment charge —
Operating los! (20,739 (13,679
Operating margil (19.8% (27.9%

Gearing segment revenues increased $5300,$48,966 during the year ended December 310,201$54,296 during the year ended
December 31, 2011. The increase in industrial ggagvenue of 60% more than offset the declineimdwevenue of 26%, consistent with our
strategic diversification focus. The challengethie wind industry depressed the manufacture of winltine gearing, which had typically
accounted for the majority of our gearing revenindbe recent past. In 2011, as demand for windiggaecreased, we increased our sales
force and shifted our focus to the
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manufacture of custom-engineered gearing systechge@arboxes for oil and gas, mining and other itrthlcustomers. Gearing sales to oil
and gas, mining and other industrial customeritlepresented 60% of our total revenues, and®ofdam these customers represented 80°
of our backlog as of December 31, 2011.

Gearing segment operating loss improve#h945, from $13,678 during the year ended Dece®be?010, to $10,733 during the year
ended December 31, 2011. The operating margin wepnent is due to improved sales volume and mixjglgroffset by higher legal
expenses of $1,209 as well as additional sellirggsc@earing operating margin was (27.9%) duriegytrar ended December 31, 2010
compared to (19.8%) during the year ended DeceBihe2011, due to these factors.

Services Segment
The following table summarizes the Serveegment operating results for the years endedrbleee31, 2011 and 2010:

Twelve Months Ended December 31

2011 2010
Revenue: $ 16,29: $ 12,09(
Impairment charge — 27,45]
Operating los! (5,247) (34,74Y)
Operating margil (32.29% (287.9%

Services segment revenues increased $4/201,$12,090 during the year ended December 31020 $16,291 during the year ended
December 31, 2011. Revenues within our Servicesisrgincreased by 35% due to increased blade ssrtacour two largest customers, as
well as the initial sales of gearboxes and loosgigg in connection with the Abilene Service Fagilwhich opened in February, 2011.

Services segment operating loss improvédsi®, from $34,747 during the year ended Decer@beP010, to $5,247 during the year
ended December 31, 2011. Excluding a one-time inm@ait charge in 2010 of $27,451, the operating flosthe year would have improved by
$2,049 compared to the prior year. Services segoparating loss improvement was primarily due ®adbsence of the 2010 intangible
amortization expense of $2,133, partially offsethimyher facility costs related to the startup @& fkbilene Service Facility and labor cost
inefficiencies as we ramped up new blade serviogepts. Services operating margin was (287.4%)nduttie year ended December 31, 2010
compared to (32.2%) during the year ended DeceBihe2011, due to these factors.

Corporate and Other

Corporate and Other operating loss incie:&2&0 from $9,366 during the year ended Decembe?@®10, to $9,636 during the year endec
December 31, 2011. The small increase was dugtehlegal fees of $881 and European office relegstiucturing costs of $406, largely
offset by lower employee compensation costs.

SUMMARY OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The methods, estimates and judgments thats& in applying our critical accounting policies/e a significant impact on the results that
we report in our financial statements. Some ofamaounting policies require us to make difficullaubjective judgments, often as a result of
the need to make estimates regarding matters ithatlaerently uncertain.
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We have identified the accounting polidisted below to be critical to obtain an understagdf our consolidated financial statements.
This section should also be read in conjunctiomibte 1 "Description of Business and Summary ghlicant Accounting Policies" in
Part IV, Item 15 in the notes to our consolidatedricial statements for further discussion of thease other significant accounting policies.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue when the earningsepmois complete and when persuasive evidence arfrangement exists, transfer of title has
occurred or services have been rendered, thegeltioe is fixed or determinable, collectabilityresasonably assured and delivery has occurre
per the terms of the contract. Customer deposdsoémer receipts are deferred and recognized wierevenue is realized and earned.

In some instances, typically within our Ter&sand Weldments segment, products are sold teches included in bill and hold sales
arrangements that result in different timing foresue recognition. We recognize revenue under theaagements only when the buyer
requests the arrangement, a fixed schedule foratgliexists, the ordered goods are segregatedifreemtory and not available to fill other
orders and the goods are complete and ready fomshit. Assuming these required revenue recogritiberia are met, revenue is recognized
upon completion of product manufacture and custameeptance.

Warranty Liability

We provide warranty terms that generallygefrom one to seven years for various produaissanvices relating to workmanship and
materials supplied by us. In certain contractshere recourse provisions for items that would emadtovery from third parties for amounts
paid to customers under warranty provisions.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cogharket. We have recorded a reserve for exdesssb over market value in our inventory
allowance. Market value of inventory, and managdmgmdgment of the need for reserves, encompassesderation of other business factor:
including physical condition, inventory holding jet, contract terms, and usefulness. Inventoriessalued based either on the firrstfirst ou
("FIFO") method, or on a standard cost basis thpt@imates the FIFO method.

Inventories consist of raw materials, workprocess, and finished goods. Raw materials sbn$icomponents and parts for general
production use. Work-in-process consists of laar @verhead, processing costs, purchased subcomgpaad materials purchased for
specific customer orders. Finished goods consisbofponents purchased from third parties as welbagponents manufactured by us that
be used to produce final customer products.

Intangible Assets

We test intangible assets for impairmenémvBvents or circumstances indicate that the caynyalue of our assets may not be recovered
In evaluating the recoverability of the carryindueof intangible assets, we must make assumptegerding the fair value of our reporting
units. Recoverability is measured by comparingabsets' carrying amounts to their expected futndésaounted net cash flows. If such assets
are considered to be impaired, the impairment neizegl is measured based on the amount by whicbatrging amount of the assets exceeds
the fair value. If our fair value estimates or tethassumptions change in the future, we may haretjto record impairment charges related t
intangible assets.

36




Table of Contents
Long-Lived Assets

We review property and equipment and oliveg-lived assets for impairment whenever eventircumstances indicate that carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. If such eventhamges in circumstances occur, we will recognizargrairment loss if the undiscounted
future cash flows expected to be generated bydbetare less than the carrying value of the kla¢set. The impairment loss would adjust th
asset to its fair value.

In evaluating the recoverability of longdud assets, we must make assumptions regardimgagst! future cash flows and other factors to
determine the fair value of such assets. If ourviaiue estimates or related assumptions chantieifuture, we may be required to record
impairment charges related to property and equiped other long-lived assets.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes based uporssetand liability approach. Deferred tax asseddliabilities represent the future tax
consequences of the differences between the fiabstaitement carrying amounts of assets and liggsilversus the tax basis of assets and
liabilities. Under this method, deferred tax asseesrecognized for deductible temporary differenead operating loss and tax credit
carryforwards. Deferred tax liabilities are recagaul for taxable temporary differences. Deferredassets are reduced by a valuation allow.
when, in the opinion of management, it is moreljikban not that some portion or all of the defdrtax assets will not be realized. The impact
of tax rate changes on deferred tax assets antitieahis recognized in the year that the charggenacted.

In connection with the preparation of oansolidated financial statements, we are requivezstimate our income tax liability for each of
the tax jurisdictions in which we operate. Thisqess involves estimating our actual current inctemeexpense and assessing temporary
differences resulting from differing treatment eftain income or expense items for income tax tapgpand financial reporting purposes. We
also recognize the expected future income tax liter@fnet operating loss carryforwards as defeimmedme tax assets. In evaluating the
realizability of deferred income tax assets assediavith net operating loss carryforwards, we cda@siamong other things, expected future
taxable income, the expected timing of the revershkxisting temporary reporting differences, #melexpected impact of tax planning
strategies that may be implemented to prevent thengial loss of future income tax benefits. Chanige among other things, income tax
legislation, statutory income tax rates, or futiaeable income levels could materially impact oaluation of income tax assets and liabilities
and could cause our income tax provision to vaggpificantly among financial reporting periods.

We also account for the uncertainty in meaaxes related to the recognition and measureafientax position taken or expected to be
taken in an income tax return. We follow the apgihie pronouncement guidance on derecognition,ifitgon, interest and penalties,
accounting in interim periods, disclosure, andgition related to the uncertainty in these incomepositions.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

We review new accounting standards as ésshithough some of the accounting standards issuedfective in the current fiscal year n
be applicable to us, we believe that none of the standards have a significant impact on our coseléronsolidated financial statements.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL POSITION AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

At December 31, 2012, cash assets tots8dd,&ompared to our cash assets which totale@$64t December 31, 2011. On August 23,
2012, we entered into a Loan and Security Agreeifibat'Loan Agreement") with AloStar, providing with a new $20,000 secured credit
facility (as more fully described below, the "Crelacility"). In connection with consummation oktiCredit Facility, the Company's wholly-
owned subsidiaries Brad Foote Gear Works, Inc.g8Bfoote"), Broadwind Services, LLC ("Broadwind \8eegs") and Broadwind Towers, i
("Broadwind Towers") (collectively, the "Subsidiesl’) used proceeds of the Credit Facility to reglhputstanding obligations under the credit
facility established pursuant to the Wells FargoAgPeements. In connection with this repayment,civtincluded a $200 termination fee, the
AP Agreements were terminated. Under this new ritadagged borrowing structure, borrowings are countins and all cash receipts are
automatically applied to the outstanding borrowathbce. As a result of this structure, we anti@ghtt cash balances will remain at a
minimum at all times when there are amounts outtanunder the credit line.

In analyzing our liquidity, we focus on ogeng working capital, which is comprised of acntaureceivable and inventories, net of
accounts payable and customer deposits. Our opgnatirking capital at December 31, 2012 was $21,6B12% of trailing three months of
sales annualized. This is an increase of $7,607 ecember 31, 2011, when operating working capites $13,980, or 6% of trailing three
months of sales annualized.

While we believe that we will continue tave sufficient cash flows to operate our busineget our financial debt covenants and execut
our restructuring plan, there can be no assurahe¢®ur operations will generate sufficient casthat credit facilities will be available in an
amount sufficient to enable us to pay our indebésdror to fund our other liquidity needs. If asstioms regarding our restructuring efforts,
sales and subsequent collections from severaloge customers, as well as revenues generaiadrfew customer orders, are not mater
consistent with management's expectations, we meguater cash flow and liquidity issues. Additiohailding may not be available when
needed or on terms acceptable to us, which cotédtadur overall operations. Any additional egdityancing, if available, may be dilutive to
stockholders or result in limitations on our alilib utilize our NOL carryforwards, and additiomkgbt financing, if available, will likely requi
financial covenants or other restrictions.

Sources and Uses of Cash
Operating Cash Flows

During the year ended December 31, 201228d, net cash flows used in operating activii¢aled $2,882 and $10,304, respectively.
The decrease in net cash used in operating aet\ais compared to the prior year was primarilybattable to the decrease in the accounts
receivable balance, and the absence of a significeantory buildup that occurred during the yeaded December 31, 2011. Partially
offsetting this decrease was a reduction in outornsr deposits.

Investing Cash Flows

During the years ended December 31, 20812841, net cash used in investing activities ¢at&l4,704 and $2,588, respectively. The
increase in net cash used in investing activitteseampared to the prior year was primarily attréitle to increased capital expenditures and a
decrease in the proceeds from equipment sales.
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Financing Cash Flows

During the year ended December 31, 2012cash used in financing activities totaled $5,238npared to net cash provided by financing
activities of $11,305 for the year ended DecemieB11. The increase in net cash used in finarmitigities as compared to the prior year
was primarily attributable to the absence of prdsdeom an equity offering of $11,697 which was peted in September 2011. Additionally,
during 2012 we made increased debt payments andeydyg on capital leases when compared to the yelmdeDecember 31, 2011.

Credit Facilities
AloStar Credit Facility

As disclosed above, on August 23, 2012entered into the Loan Agreement with AloStar, pdawy us with the Credit Facility. The
Credit Facility is a secured three-year asset-besealving credit facility, pursuant to which Ala8twill advance funds against a borrowing
base consisting of approximately 85% of the fadaeraf our eligible receivables and approximatedybof the book value of our eligible
inventory. Borrowings under the Credit Facility begerest at a per annum rate equal to the onethriaondon Interbank Offered Rate
("LIBOR") plus a margin of 4.25%, with a minimumtémnest rate of 5.25% per annum. We must also paynased facility fee to AloStar equal
to 0.50% per annum on the undrawn portion of thed®acility along with other standard fees. Tiiéal term of the Loan Agreement ends
on August 23, 2015.

The Loan Agreement contains customary seprtions and warranties applicable to the Compadythe Subsidiaries. It also contains a
requirement that we, on a consolidated basis, @aiast minimum quarterly fixed charge coverage ratid minimum quarterly earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization, restming and share-based payments ("Adjusted EBIT)D&bng with other customary restrictive
covenants, certain of which are subject to maigyitiresholds, baskets and customary exceptiodsjaalifications.

The obligations under the Loan Agreemeetsarcured by, subject to certain exclusions, fijstpriority security interest in all of the
accounts, inventory, chattel paper, payment intdagj cash and cash equivalents and other worldpiiat assets and stock or other equity
interests in the Subsidiaries and (ii) a first gtiosecurity interest in all of the equipment afa Foote.

As described in greater detail below, weduthe initial proceeds from the Credit Facility(ijorepay all outstanding obligations under the
Wells Fargo credit facility established pursuantti® AP Agreements, (ii) repay all outstanding géions under the ICB Notes (as defined
below), (iii) repay all outstanding obligations @maur Second Amended and Restated PromissorytbldteaCameron Drecoll dated July 17,
2012 in the original principal amount of approxieigit$1,453, and (iv) pay fees and expenses asedaidgth these transactions. We will use
future proceeds from the Credit Facility to finamee ongoing general corporate needs.

As of December 31, 2012, the total outstagnéhdebtedness under the Credit Facility was $9&5had the ability to borrow up to an
additional $11,440 and the per annum interestwate5.25%. We were not in compliance with the FGRenant as of December 31, 2012.
On February 13, 2013, AloStar agreed to waive anrcompliance with the FCCR Covenant as of Decer@ibe012, and further agreed that
we will not be required to be in compliance witle fRCCR Covenant as of March 31, 2013, unless we bampleted the disposition of the
Brandon Facility prior to such date. Compliancehwiite FCCR Covenant is determined as of the erédi fiscal quarter; absent a further
waiver from AloStar, we must be in compliance vitlk FCCR Covenant as of June 30, 2013 and as efithef each fiscal quarter thereafter.
We entered into an agreement to sell the Brandeilityaon February 25, 2013. For more informatioefer to Note 23 "Subsequent Events" in
Part IV, Item 15 in the notes to our consolidatedricial statements.
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Great Western Bank Loans

On April 28, 2009, Broadwind Towers enteneth a Construction Loan Agreement with Great \WWesBank ("GWB"), pursuant to which
GWB agreed to provide up to $10,000 in financirge ({GWB Construction Loan") to fund constructiortioé Brandon Facility. Pursuant to a
Change in Terms Agreement dated April 5, 2010 betw@WB and Broadwind Towers, the GWB Constructioar.was converted to a term
loan (the "GWB Term Loan") providing for monthlyyraents of principal plus interest, extending theurity date to November 5, 2016,
reducing the principal amount to $6,500, and chamtfie per annum interest rate to 8.5%.

The GWB Term Loan is secured by a first tgage on the Brandon Facility and all fixtures anoiceeds relating thereto, pursuant to a
Mortgage and a Commercial Security Agreement, éativeen Broadwind Towers and GWB, and by a Commk@uaranty from the
Company. In addition, we agreed to subordinatentdicompany debt with Broadwind Towers to the GW&m Loan. The documents
evidencing and securing the GWB Term Loan contepmgsentations, warranties and covenants thauaternary for a term financing
arrangement and contain no financial covenantofA¥ecember 31, 2012, the total outstanding indiiees under the GWB Term Loan was
$3,860, which is recorded as Liabilities Held faleSwithin our condensed consolidated balance shéight of our having initiated a process
to sell the Brandon Facility. We were in compliangth all covenants associated with GWB Term LoamBDecember 31, 2012.

Wells Fargo Account Purchase Agreements

On September 29, 2010, the Company, thsi8iabies and the Company's former whallyned subsidiary Badger Transport, Inc. ent
into account purchase agreements (the "AP Agreesfjamith Wells Fargo Business Credit, a divisionéélls Fargo Bank, N.A. ("Wells
Fargo"). Under the terms of the AP Agreements, wieguested by us, Wells Fargo would advance t&thesidiaries approximately 80% of
the face value of eligible receivables arising freates of the Subsidiaries' products and servides aggregate facility limit of the AP
Agreements was $10,000. For Wells Fargo's servinder the AP Agreements, the Subsidiaries agrepdytVells Fargo (i) a floating
discount fee of the then-prevailing LIBOR plus 34per annum on the sum of the outstanding finamcedunts, (ii) an annual facility fee of
1% of the aggregate facility limit, and (iii) anraral unused line fee of 0.042% on the portion efdtedit facility which was unused. The ini
term of the AP Agreements was scheduled to endeptegber 29, 2013, with an early termination feamfo 2% of the aggregate facility
limit applicable if the AP Agreements were termataprior to that date.

On August 23, 2012, in connection with agnsation of the Credit Facility as described abdke,Subsidiaries used proceeds of the
Credit Facility to repay all outstanding obligatiomnder the credit facility established pursuarth®dAP Agreements. In connection with this
repayment, which included a $200 termination fee AP Agreements were terminated.

Investors Community Bank Loa

On April 7, 2008, one of our former wholbyvned subsidiaries which was subsequently mergeddroadwind Towers executed four
promissory notes with Investors Community Bank BITin the aggregate principal amount of approxieha®$3,781. Three of these notes v
term notes, with initial principal balances totali$2,049, bearing interest at fixed rates rangiogf5.65% to 6.85% per annum, with
maturities ranging from October 2012 to April 2Q8llectively, the "ICB Notes"). The fourth note sva line of credit note, which has been
repaid in full.

On August 23, 2012, in connection with agngation of the Credit Facility as described abeweused proceeds of the Credit Facility to
repay all outstanding obligations under the ICBdgotUpon such repayment, the ICB Notes were cattealid the mortgage securing the ICB
Notes was release
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Selling Shareholder Notes

On May 26, 2009, we entered into a setti@ragreement (the "Settlement Agreement”) withttinee former owners of Brad Foote,
including J. Cameron Drecoll, who served as oue€Bkecutive Officer and a member of our Board @EBtors until December 1, 2010. The
Settlement Agreement related to the post-closicgo@sestablished in connection with our acquisitidiBrad Foote. Under the terms of the
Settlement Agreement, among other terms, we isgued promissory notes to the former owners iratigregate principal amount of $3,000,
bearing interest at a rate of 7% per annum andnmgton May 29, 2012.

The notes issued to the former owners dtter Mr. Drecoll, each with an original princigahount of $340, were repaid upon maturity ir
May 2012. Mr. Drecoll's note, with an original pripal amount of $2,320, was amended on July 1, 2@1() change the maturity date to
January 10, 2014, (i) increase the interest @& per annum, and (iii) amend the repayment adbdd amortize the principal amount
outstanding over the remaining term of the notgjrbeng with payments commencing in the fourth ¢giaof 2011. Under the terms of the
amendment, we reduced the principal amount outstgnthder the note to $1,677. On July 17, 2012ntte was further amended to provide
for payment of the remaining balance in two equosidliments on October 10, 2012 and January 1@, 2@ 1sooner if our cash balance and
credit availability met certain thresholds.

On August 23, 2012, in connection with te@summation of the Credit Facility as describeavabwe used proceeds of the Credit
Facility to repay all outstanding obligations untiér Drecoll's note. Upon such repayment, the mads cancelled.

Other

Included in Long Term Debt, Net of Currdfdturities is $2,600 associated with the New MasKiix Credit transaction described furthel
in Note 19, "New Markets Tax Credit Transaction'tleése condensed consolidated financial statements.

Contractual Obligations

The following table sets forth, as of Debem31, 2012, minimum future cash payments duerwca@ractual obligations, including,
among others, our debt and credit agreements améartcelable operating and capital lease agreerasritdlows:

2018 &
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Thereafter Total

Debt and credit

agreements(1 $ 1,301 $ 201 $ 15C $ 5% — $ 260 $ 4,.26¢
Liabilities held for

sale 3,86( — — — — — 3,86(
Estimated interest

payments(2 41€ 32¢ 224 10C 68 51 1,187
Operating lease

obligations 3,167 3,01¢ 2,41t 2,44 2,441 19,60¢ 33,09
Capital lease

obligations(3) 2,33¢ 443 22¢ 2 — — 3,01z

Total contractual
cash obligation $ 11,08¢ $ 3,98¢ $ 3,017 $ 2,552 $ 2,50¢ $ 22,25¢ $ 45,41:

Q) Debt and credit agreements represent the mmifiuture principal payments due under our
outstanding contractual obligations.

(2) Interest payments represent an amount calculatezkfected interest payments due under our
outstanding debt and credit agreements. Assumptised to derive these amounts were based
upon current interest rates as of December 31,,2@#jgired minimum principal payments due,
and maturity of our debt and credit agreementopecontractual agreements. Actual interest
payments could vary materially from those set ouhis table
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3 Capital lease obligations include both the futwiagipal and interest payments related to these
agreements

Debt and Credit Agreements.Debt and credit agreements include outstanidargowings under our lines of credit, term notdatesl to
vehicle and equipment purchases, and a purchaseragnt for manufacturing equipment. See Note 1®t'Bed Credit Agreements" in
Part IV, Item 15 in the notes to our consolidatiedricial statements for further discussion of autstanding indebtedness and credit
agreements.

Operating Lease Obligations. We lease a number of our facilities and cerggjunipment under operating leases expiring at variates
through 2026. Lease terms generally range from1®5tgears with renewal options for extended teffhg amounts in the table above repre
future minimum lease payments for non-cancelabérating leases.

Capital Lease Obligations. We have capital lease obligations related ttagemanufacturing equipment and vehicles expiehgarious
dates through 2015. As of December 31, 2012, tlenba of our outstanding capital lease obligatwas approximately $3,010, which
includes accrued interest of approximately $154.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE S ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to financial market risksictvinclude changes in interest rates on our béieate obligations, credit risks on accounts
receivable and raw material price fluctuations.

Interest Rate Exposure

As of December 31, 2012, the majority of third party borrowings under our debt and craditeements bear annual interest at fixed
interest rates; therefore, we have limited interatg exposure. We are subject to interest rattudtion exposure only through amounts
financed under the Credit Facility. As of DecemBg&y 2012, we had $955 of financed receivables anihg under the Credit Facility. Our
potential interest rate exposure over a one-yeaog¢hat would result from a hypothetical, inseamtous and unfavorable change of 100 basi:
points in the interest rate of our variable ratBgattions would be approximately $10 on a pre-tagib. There was $523 of borrowings
outstanding under variable rate obligations asedédnber 31, 2011.

Credit Risk Exposure

We are exposed to credit risk on our actoteceivable balances and cash balances. Hidtgrioar accounts receivable are highly
concentrated with a select number of financialbbtt customers. During the years ended Decemb&@03P, and 2011, our five largest
customers accounted for approximately 67% and 76%fpectively, of consolidated revenues. Additionaks of December 31, 2012 and 2011,
our five largest customers comprised approximaté@Bt and 62%, respectively, of our outstanding actoreceivable balances.

Commodity Risk Exposure

We are dependent upon the supply of certainmaterials used in our production processeastlzase raw materials are exposed to price
fluctuations on the open market. The primary raviamal we use is steel. To reduce price risk calyeaharket fluctuations, we have
incorporated price adjustment clauses in certdeassantracts. Management believes a hypothet@d ¢hange in the price of steel and other
raw materials would not have a significant effectonir consolidated results of operations or cashiflbecause these costs are generally pass
through to our customers.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY D ATA
The financial information required by Itéhis contained in Part IV, Item 15 of this Annua@®rt on Form 10-K.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUN TANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and proceslas defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(@¢muthe Exchange Act) that are designed t
ensure that information required to be disclosealinreports filed under the Exchange Act is reedrgrocessed, summarized and reported
within the time periods specified in the SEC's sudad forms. This information is also accumulatedl @@mmunicated to management,
including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief kirtial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely gémns regarding required disclosure. Our
management, under the supervision and with thécpation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chlghancial Officer, evaluated the
effectiveness of the design and operation of aseldsure controls and procedures as of the erftkahibst recent fiscal quarter reported on
herein. Based on that evaluation, our Chief Exgeuifficer and Chief Financial Officer concludeatlour disclosure controls and procedures
are effective.

Report of Management on Internal Control Over Finarcial Reporting

Our management, including our Chief Exeai®fficer and Chief Financial Officer, is respdaisifor establishing and maintaining
adequate internal control over financial reporfjag defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) uriderExchange Act).

Our management, including our Chief Exeautfficer and Chief Financial Officer, assessaxidffectiveness of our internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2012. Managi@ based this assessment on criteria for efieatibernal control over financial reporting
described in "Internal Control—Integrated Framewaskued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organipnatiaf the Treadway Commission.

Based on this assessment, management dederthat, as of December 31, 2012, our internatrobover financial reporting is effective.

This Annual Report on Form 10-K does natude an attestation report of the Company's indéget registered public accounting firm
regarding internal control over financial reportimgrsuant to the rules of the Securities and Exgh&ommission that permit the Company to
provide only management's report in this Annualgep

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
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PART Il
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPO RATE GOVERNANCE
Directors and Executive Officers

With the exception of the description of @ode of Ethics and Business Conduct below, tfenmation required by this item is
incorporated herein by reference from the discussitder the headings "Directors and Director Corapgon,” "Corporate Governance" and
"Other Matters—Section 16(a) Beneficial OwnershgpBrting Compliance” in our definitive Proxy Statamhto be filed in connection with
our 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the "2@t8xy Statement").

Code of Ethics

We have adopted a Code of Ethics and Basi@®nduct that applies to all of our directorgaemive officers and senior financial officers
(including our principal executive officer, prineipfinancial officer, principal accounting officezpntroller, and any person performing similar
functions). The Code of Ethics and Business Conduatailable on our website atvw.bwen.cominder the caption "Investors" and is
available in print, free of charge, to any stockleslwho sends a request for a paper copy to Braatl&mergy, Inc., Attn: Investor Relations,
3240 South Central Avenue, Cicero, IL 60804. Werndtto include on our website any amendment tajaiver from, a provision of our Code
of Ethics and Business Conduct that applies tqpocipal executive officer, principal financialfaer, principal accounting officer or
controller, or persons performing similar functiptisat relates to any element of the code of ettédmition enumerated in Item 406(b) of
Regulation S-K.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information regarding director and execaitdtompensation is incorporated by reference fradibcussion under the headings "Directors
and Director Compensation" and "Compensation Dsiousand Analysis" in the 2013 Proxy Statement.

ITEM 12, SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIA L OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Certain of the information required by théem is incorporated herein by reference fromdiseussion under the heading "Security
Ownership of Certain Beneficial Holders and Managethin the 2013 Proxy Statement.
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The following table provides information@sDecember 31, 2012, with respect to shares bEommon stock that may be issued under

our existing equity compensation plans:

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

@ (b) ()
Number of securities
remaining available for

Number of securities future issuances under
to be issued upon Weighted-average equity compensation
exercise of exercise price of plans (excluding
outstanding options, outstanding options, securities reflected in
Plan Category warrants, and rights warrants, and rights column (a))
Equity compensation plans
approved by stockholde 1,048,11(1)% 11.6¢ 751,70t
Total 1,048,11 $ 11.6¢ 751,70t

Q) Includes outstanding stock options to purchaseeshairour common stock and outstanding
restricted stock awards pursuant to the Amendedrastated Broadwind Energy, Inc. 2007
Employee Incentive Plan and the Broadwind Enengy, 2012 Equity Incentive Pla

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANS ACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item isdamporated herein by reference from the discussiater the headings "Certain Transactions an
Business Relationships" and "Corporate Governaimcelir 2013 Proxy Statement.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item isanporated herein by reference from the discussiater the heading "Ratification of
Appointment of Independent Registered Public ActimgnFirm" in our 2013 Proxy Statement.

PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDU LES
1. Financial Statements
The financial statements listed on the ¥neFinancial Statements (page 37) are filed asgahis Annual Report on Form 10-K.
2. Financial Statement Schedules

These schedules have been omitted bedagisedquired information is included in the consafiétl financial statements or notes thereto o
because they are not applicable or not required.

3. Exhibits
The exhibits listed on the Index to Exlslibages 69 through 72) are filed as part of tmawal Report on Form 10-K.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Broadwind Energy Inc.

We have audited the accompanying conselitiblance sheets of Broadwind Energy Inc. (a Dalaworporation) and subsidiaries (the
"Company") as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, amdetlated consolidated statements of operatiomsebblders' equity, and cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended DeceBih@012. These financial statements are theoredipility of the Company's management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢hiésancial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting Slgat Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &andbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. The Company is not required to hamewere we engaged to perform an audit of itgratiecontrol over financial reporting. C
audits included consideration of internal contre¢iofinancial reporting as a basis for designindigprocedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgssmopinion on the effectiveness of the Companyésnal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An autlibancludes examining, on a test basis, evidenppating the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accouptingiples used and significant estimates made dgagement, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We belithat our audits provide a reasonable basis foopimion.

In our opinion, the consolidated finanatdtements referred to above present fairly, imallerial respects, the financial position of
Broadwind Inc. and subsidiaries as of DecembefB812 and 2011, and the results of their operatmstheir cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2012 inoconiy with accounting principles generally accepie the United States of Americ

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

Chicago, IL
February 27, 2013
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BROADWIND ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except share data)

As of December 31

2012 2011
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 51€ $ 13,34(
Restricted cas 33C 87€
Accounts receivable, n 20,03¢ 25,31:
Inventories, ne 21,98¢ 23,35¢
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 3,83¢ 4,03:
Assets held for sal 8,04z 8,052
Total current asse 54,75 74,967
LONG-TERM ASSETS:
Property and equipment, r 79,88¢ 87,76¢
Intangible assets, n 7,45¢ 9,21¢
Other asset 81¢€ 944
TOTAL ASSETS $ 142,91( $ 172,89:
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Lines of credit and notes payal $ 95t $  1,56¢
Current maturities of lor-term deb 352 63€
Current portions of capital lease obligatic 2,217 96&
Accounts payabl 16,371 17,35¢
Accrued liabilities 6,012 5,74¢
Customer deposit 4,06: 17,32¢
Liabilities held for sal¢ 3,86( 4,83:
Total current liabilities 33,83¢ 48,43t
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
Long-term debt, net of current maturiti 2,95¢ 4,797
Long-term capital lease obligations, net of currentipag 641 97t
Other 2,16¢ 82t
Total lon¢-term liabilities 5,76¢ 6,591
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value; 10,000,000 sterthorized; no
shares issued or outstand — —
Common stock, $0.001 par value; 30,000,000 shartmazed;
14,197,792 and 13,977,920 shares issued and oditsaas of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respecti' 14 14C
Additional paic-in capital 373,60! 370,12¢
Accumulated defici (270,31) (252,409
Total stockholders' equit 103,30¢ 117,85¢
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 142,91( $ 172,89:

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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BROADWIND ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(In thousands, except per share data)

For the Years Ended December 3

2012 2011 2010
Revenue: $ 210,700 $ 185,85« $ 136,89
Cost of sale: 202,25 178,53t 134,95(
Restructuring 1,61« 131 —
Gross profit 6,83¢ 7,187 1,94¢
OPERATING EXPENSES:

Selling, general and administrati 21,63« 26,31¢ 27,40¢

Impairment charge — — 40,77,

Intangible amortizatiol 1,75¢ 85¢ 2,99

Restructuring 74C 441 —

Total operating expens 24,13 27,61¢ 71,17:

Operating los! (17,299 (20,429 (69,227
OTHER (EXPENSE) INCOME, net:

Interest expense, n (4,71)) (1,115 (1,172

Other income, ne 1,271 1,16¢ 48€

Restructuring (149 (297) —

Total other (expense) income, | (589 (24%) (68€)

Net loss from continuing operations before provisibenefit)

for income taxe: (17,887 (20,67¢) (69,919
Provision (benefit) for income tax 26 68 (160
LOSS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS (17,90 (20,749 (69,759
LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS, NET OF

TAX — (1,206 (15,42
NET LOSS $ (17,907 $ (21,949 $ (85,179
NET LOSS PER COMMON SHARE—BASIC AND

DILUTED:
Loss from continuing operatiol $ (@2 $ (179 $ (6.5
Loss from discontinued operatio — (0.120 (1.45
Net Loss $ (@2)$ (18 $ (8.0)
WEIGHTED AVERAGE COMMON SHARES

OUTSTANDING—Basic and diluted 14,05¢ 11,61° 10,62°

The accompanying notes are an integral part oetheasolidated financial statements.
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BROADWIND ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

(In thousands, except share data)

Common Stock

Shares Additional
Issued and Issued Paid-in Accumulated
Outstanding Amount Capital Deficit Total

BALANCE, December31, 200¢ 9,670,111 $ 97 $ 300,77¢ $ (145,28) $ 155,59

Stock issued under equity

offering (net of offering cost:

of $1,278) 1,000,00! 10 53,337 — 53,34%
Stock issued for restricted sto 12,67 — — — —
Stock issued under defined

contribution 401(k) retiremel

savings plar 28,49¢ — 684 — 684
Sharebased compensatic — — 1,74t — 1,74¢
Net loss — — — (85,17%) (85,179

BALANCE, December 31, 201C 10,711,28 $ 107 $ 356,54! $ (230,45 $ 126,19¢

Stock issued under equity

offering (net of offering cost:

of $458) 3,250,00! 33 11,66¢ — 11,69°
Stock issued for restricted sto 16,06: — — — —
Stock issued under defined

contribution 401(k) retiremel

savings plar 10,571 — 15C — 15C
Stock repurchased as part of t

sale of Badger Transport, I (20,000 — (142 (142
Shar+-based compensatic — — 1,90¢ — 1,90¢
Net loss — — — (21,949 (21,949

BALANCE, December31, 2011 13,977,92 $ 14C $ 370,120 $ (252,409 $ 117,85!

Stock issued for restricted sto 38,66 — — — —
Stock issued under defined
contribution 401(k) retiremel

savings plar 181,20! — 528 — 52¢
Reclass between APIC and C!

due to 11 Split (12¢) 12¢€ —
Sharebased compensatic — — 2,83: — 2,83
Net loss — — — (17,9079 (17,907

BALANCE, December 31, 2012 14,197,79 $ 14 $ 373,60 $ (270,31) $ 103,30¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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BROADWIND ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2012 2011 2010
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss $ (17,907 $ (21,949 $ (85,17Y
Loss from discontinued operatio — 1,20¢€ 15,42:
Loss from continuing operatiol (17,90 (20,747) (69,757
Adjustments to reconcile net cash used in operatingctivities:
Depreciation and amortization expel 16,53° 14,53« 16,46:
Impairment charge — — 40,777
Change in fair value of interest rate swap agreés — — (25%)
Deferred income taxe — — 1,33¢
Stock-based compensatic 2,83 1,90¢€ 1,74%
Allowance for doubtful accoun il 1,004 (1,142
Common stock issued under defined contribution K)odlan 528 15C 684
Loss on disposal of ass¢ 54¢ 474 70
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl 5,251 (4,88¢) 1,202
Inventories 1,367 (5,616 (8,919
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 51¢ (20) 1,07z
Accounts payabl (1,16%) (5,009¢) 7,56¢
Accrued liabilities 17¢ (64¢) (332
Customer deposi (13,25¢) 8,447 (1,319
Other norcurrent assets and liabiliti 1,671 93 672
Net cash used in operating activities of continapérations (2,8872) (10,309 (10,129
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from the sale of logistics business datetenote receivab 37t 952 —
Purchases of property and equipm (5,73%) (4,70¢) (6,899
Proceeds from disposals of property and equipi 112 1,87¢ 38
Decrease (increase) in restricted ¢ 54¢€ (70€) 1,84(
Net cash used in investing activities of continopdrations (4,709 (2,58¢) (5,015
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net proceeds from issuance of st — 11,697 53,347
Payments on lines of credit and notes pay (78,78%) (1,519) (21,23)
Payments on related party notes payi (2,79)) (209) —
Proceeds from lines of credit and notes pay 77,62( 2,311 70C
Payments for debt issuance cc (63€) — —
Principal payments on capital lea: (644 (977) (86%)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activitégsontinued operatior (5,23%) 11,30¢ 31,95!
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS:
Operating cash flow — (851) (2,66€)
Investing cash flow — — (113
Financing cash flow — (83) (3,009
Net cash used in discontinued operati — (939 (5,782
Add: Cash balance of discontinued operations, Iméxgnof perioc — 53C 127
Less: Cash balance of discontinued operationspépdriod — — 53C
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT S (12,82¢) (1,99)) 10,63(
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of the year 13,34( 15,33: 4,701
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of the year $ 51€ $ 13,34( $ 15,33
Supplemental cash flow information:
Interest paid, net of capitalized inter $ 1,502 $ 1,02¢ % 1,171
Income taxes pai $ 26 % 34 % 38
Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Issuance of restricted stock gra $ 1,81t $ 90C $ 80z
Common stock issued under defined contribution K0dlan $ 52: % 15C % 684

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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BROADWIND ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010

(in thousands, except share and per share data)
1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Description of Business

Broadwind Energy Inc. (the "Company") paré technologically advanced high-value productssamvices to energy, mining and
infrastructure sector customers, primarily in th&Urhe Company's most significant presence isimvitie U.S. wind industry, although the
Company has increasingly diversified into othewisttial markets in order to improve its capacityization and reduce its exposure to
uncertainty related to the extension or renewdédéral tax incentives and other favorable policiesently supporting the U.S. wind industry.
The Company's product and service portfolio prowiile wind energy customers, including wind turbin@nufacturers, wind farm developers
and wind farm operators, with access to a broayaf component and service offerings. Outsiddefwind market, the Company provides
precision gearing and specialty weldments to acdraage of industrial customers. The Company haetreportable operating segments:
Towers and Weldments, Gearing, and Services.

Towers and Weldments

The Company manufactures towers for winbines, specifically the large and heavier windeosvthat are designed for 2 megawatt
("MW") and larger wind turbines. Production fagés, located in Manitowoc, Wisconsin and Abilenexds, are situated in close proximity to
the primary U.S. domestic energy and equipment fiaatwring locations. The two facilities have a canga annual tower production capacity
of up to approximately 500 towers, sufficient tg@part turbines generating more than 1,200 MW of @owhis product segment also
encompasses the manufacture of specialty fabritetiod specialty weldments for mining and otheustidal customers.

Gearing

The Company engineers, builds and rematwifeg precision gears and gearing systems for wihdnd gas, mining and other industrial
applications. The Company uses an integrated matuniag process, which includes machining process&scero, lllinois, heat treatment in
Neville Island, Pennsylvania and a finishing pracesa second Cicero facilit

Services

The Company offers a comprehensive rangefices, primarily to wind farm developers anérapors. The Company specializes in nor
routine blade and gearbox maintenance servicdsofbr kilowatt and megawatt turbines. The Compasy affers comprehensive field servi
to the wind industry. The Company is increasinglgusing its efforts on the identification and/ovelepment of product and service offerings
which will improve the reliability and efficiencyf avind turbines, and therefore enhance the econbefits to its customers. The Company
provides wind services across the U.S., with prnsarvice locations in South Dakota and Texas . dbr&ary 2011, the Company put into
operation its dedicated drivetrain service centekbilene, Texas (the "Abilene Service Facilityijhich is focused on servicing the growing
installed base of MW wind turbines as they comenadfranty and, to a limited extent, industrial desees requiring precision repair and
testing.
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BROADWIND ENERGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010
(in thousands, except share and per share data)
1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Reverse Stock Sp

On August 22, 2012, the Company filed anefsdment to its Certificate of Incorporation to effa reverse split of its common stock with
a ratio of one post-split share for every ten sh&@sued and outstanding. As a result of the rev&ck split, the number of authorized shares
of the Company's common stock decreased to 30omidlhares, without any change in the par valueid shares. All references in these
financial statements and notes to the number atsharice per share and weighted average numtstraoés outstanding of the Company's
common stock prior to the reverse stock split Haaen adjusted to reflect the reverse stock spld oetroactive basis unless otherwise noted.

Liquidity

The Company has a limited history of opgerat and has incurred operating losses since iimepthe Company anticipates that current
cash resources and cash to be generated from iopsrat 2013 will be adequate to meet the Compdimigdity needs for at least the next
twelve months. As discussed further in Note 10,Bf0snd Credit Agreements” of these consolidateaifiial statements, the Company is
obligated to make principal payments on outstandilgf totaling $1,307 during 2013 and has $3,860dg#btedness associated with its
Liabilities Held for sale. If sales and subsequemiiections from several of the Company's largeamers, as well as revenues generated from
new customer orders, are not materially consistéht management's plans, the Company may encooasér flow and liquidity issues.
Additional funding may not be available when neededn terms acceptable to the Company, which cafittt its overall operations. Any
additional equity financing, if available, may bitutive to stockholders, and additional debt finiaugg if available, will likely require financial
covenants or other restrictions on the Companyrd ban be no assurances the Company's effortdamatufficient cash flow will be
successful.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation and Basis of Presemta

These consolidated financial statementsidecthe accounts of Broadwind and entities in Whidas a controlling financial interest. All
significant intercompany transactions and balahee® been eliminated in consolidation. The Commetgrmines whether it has a controlling
financial interest in an entity by first evaluatimipether the entity is a voting interest entityaorariable interest entity ("VIE").

When the Company obtains an economic isténean entity, the Company evaluates the ertigetermine if the entity is deemed a VIE,
and if the Company is deemed to be the primaryfi@asy, in accordance with the accounting standardhe consolidation of VIE's. The
accounting standard for the consolidation of VHeguires the Company to qualitatively assess ifQbmpany was the primary beneficiary of
the VIE's based on whether the Company had (iptiveer to direct those matters that most signifigaimipacted the activities of the VIE and
(ii) the obligation to absorb losses or the rightd@ceive benefits of the VIE that could potengidle significant. Refer to Note 19, "New
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010
(in thousands, except share and per share data)
1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Markets Tax Credit Transaction" of these consoéiddtnancial statements for a description of twé&'glincluded in the Company's
consolidated financial statements.

Reclassification:
Where appropriate, certain reclassificagibave been made to prior years' financial stat&srierconform to the current year presentation
Management's Use of Estima

The preparation of financial statementsdnformity with accounting principles generally apted in the U.S. ("GAAP") requires
management to make certain estimates and assumhiainaffect the reported amounts of assets abilities and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities as of the date of the financial staternseand reported amounts of revenues and expenseg the reported period. Significant
estimates, among others, include revenue recognititure tax rates, inventory reserves, warraegerves, stock option fair values and
allowance for doubtful accounts. Although thesineaties are based upon management's best knowlédgeent events and actions that the
Company may undertake in the future, actual resoligd differ from these estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents primarily corgistish balances and money market funds. Cashamtdequivalents were $516 and $13,340
as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively Cidmpany's policy is to invest excess cash in monasket account funds, which are
generally of a short-term duration based upon dpgraequirements. Income earned on these investnienecorded to interest income within
Other Income in the consolidated statements ofadjpers. For the years ended December 31, 2012, 20d 2010, interest income was $5, $2¢
and $43, respectively.

Restricted Cas

Restricted cash at December 31, 2012 mefaienarily to certain vendor agreements. As oféweloer 31, 2011, restricted cash was
primarily comprised of proceeds from the New MaskEax Credit agreement as discussed further in M&téNew Markets Tax Credit
Transaction" of these consolidated financial statetsi The Company anticipates that all restriceeshdalances will be used for current
purposes. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, thep@oynhad restricted cash in the amounts of $33058/@, respectively.

Revenue Recognitic

The Company recognizes revenue when theregr process is complete and when persuasivereadsf an arrangement exists, transfer
of title has occurred or services have been reddéne selling price is fixed or determinable, eothbility is reasonably assured and delivery
has occurred per the terms of the contract. Custdeyosits, deferred revenue and other receiptdedezred and recognized when the revenu
is realized and earned.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010
(in thousands, except share and per share data)
1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

In some instances, typically within the Gany's Towers and Weldments segment, productoateisder terms included in bill and hold
sales arrangements that result in different tinfioxgevenue recognition. The Company recognizesmae under these arrangements only v
the buyer requests the arrangement, a fixed schéolutlelivery exists, the ordered goods are segeelgfrom inventory and not available to fill
other orders and the goods are complete and readhipment. Assuming these required revenue retiogreriteria are met, revenue is
recognized upon completion of product manufactuck @istomer acceptance.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales represents all direct andéoticosts associated with the production of pobslfor sale to customers. These costs include
operation, repair and maintenance of equipmenteriadg, direct and indirect labor and benefit casisurance, equipment rentals, freight in
and depreciation. Freight out to customers isna¢si classified as a selling expense and is thdnded from cost of sales. For the years endec
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, freight out deduin selling, general and administrative expemses$0, $303, and $0 respectively.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expsriselude all corporate and administrative funcsisach as legal, human resource managemei
finance, investor and public relations, informattenhnology and senior management. These funcsieng to support the Company's current
and future operations and provide an infrastructoirgupport future growth. Major expense itemshis tategory include management and staf
wages and benefits, share-based compensation efegipnal services.

Accounts Receivab

The Company generally grants uncollategealizredit to customers on an individual basis baget the customer's financial condition
credit history. Credit is typically on net 3y terms and customer deposits are frequentlyinegjat various stages of the production proce
minimize credit risk.

Historically, the Company's accounts reablg are highly concentrated with a select numbeustomers. During the year ended
December 31, 2012, the Company's five largest ouste accounted for 67% of its consolidated reveanes41% of outstanding account
receivable balances, compared to the year endeeniisr 31, 2011 when the Company's five largesbouests accounted for 76% of its
consolidated revenues and 62% of its outstandinguatt receivable balances.

Allowance for Doubtful Accoun

Based upon past experience and judgmenCtmpany establishes an allowance for doubtfud@aus with respect to accounts receive
The Company's standard allowance estimation metbgga@onsiders a number of factors that, basedsocoilections experience, the
Company believes will have an impact on its credk and the realizability of its accounts receiealhese
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1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

factors include individual customer circumstandestory with the Company and other relevant criteficcounts receivable balances that
remain outstanding after the Company has exhauss=wbnable collection efforts are written off thybwa charge to the valuation allowance
and a credit to accounts receivable.

The Company monitors its collections andeaoff experience to assess whether or not adjgistento its allowance estimates are
necessary. Changes in trends in any of the fattatshe Company believes may impact the realitgluf its accounts receivable, as noted
above, or modifications to the Company's creditddads, collection practices and other relateccjimay impact its allowance for doubtful
accounts and its financial results. Bad debt expémsthe years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 @h@iRas $136, $1,036 and $1,011,
respectively.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cosharket. Cost is determined either based offirstein, first-out ("FIFO") method, or on a
standard cost basis that approximates the FIFOadeMarket is determined based on net realizallgev#\ny excess of cost over market
value is included in the Company's inventory alloea Market value of inventory, and managemendgent of the need for reserves,
encompasses consideration of other business fantdusling physical condition, inventory holdingrpmsl, contract terms and usefulness.

Inventories consist of raw materials, woriprocess and finished goods. Raw materials coasisomponents and parts for general
production use. Work-in-process consists of lalar @verhead, processing costs, purchased subcomgarel materials purchased for
specific customer orders. Finished goods consisbnfponents purchased from third parties as welbagponents manufactured by the
Company that will be used to produce final custopreducts.

Property and Equipmel

Property and equipment are stated at egstdccumulated depreciation and amortization.da&dion and amortization of property and
equipment is recognized using the straight-linelme@tover the estimated useful lives of the relateskts for financial reporting purposes, and
generally an accelerated method for income taxrtegppurposes. Depreciation expense and amouizaélated to property and equipment
the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 204 $123919, $13,675 and $13,470, respectively. Eipmes for additions and
improvements are capitalized, while replacemengntanance and repairs that do not improve or extiea useful lives of the respective as
are expensed as incurred. The Company capitalizeest costs incurred on indebtedness used tdraohproperty and equipment. Capitali:
interest is recorded as part of the asset to wihigiates and is amortized over the asset's esingseful life. Interest cost capitalized was $0,
$0 and $74 for the years ended December 31, 2@12, 2nd 2010, respectively. Property or equipmelat ar disposed of is removed from the
respective property accounts, with any correspandains and losses recorded to other income omsepia the Company's consolidated
statement of operations.
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1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property and equipment and other long-liasskts are reviewed for impairment whenever evergscumstances indicate that carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. If such eventhamges in circumstances occur, we will recognizargrairment loss if the undiscounted
future cash flows expected to be generated byskets are less than the carrying value of theagkiasset. The impairment loss would adjust
the asset to its fair value.

In evaluating the recoverability of longdd assets, we must make assumptions regardimgagst future cash flows and other factors to
determine the fair value of such assets. If ourviaiue estimates or related assumptions chantieifuture, we may be required to record
impairment charges related to property and equipraead other londived assets. Asset recoverability is first meadurg comparing the asse
carrying amounts to their expected future undistedimet cash flows to determine if the assetsmapaired. If such assets are considered to b
impaired, the impairment recognized is measureddas the amount by which the carrying amount efassets exceeds the fair value.

Intangible Asset

The Company reviews intangible assetsngrairment whenever events or circumstances indtbatecarrying amounts may not be
recoverable. If such events or changes in circumssgoccur an impairment loss is recognized ittigiscounted future cash flows expecte
be generated by the assets are less than thengpuaglue of the related asset. The impairmentwasdd adjust the asset to its fair value.

In evaluating the recoverability of intablgi assets, the Company must make assumptionsinegastimated future cash flows and other
factors to determine the fair value of such assktair value estimates or related assumptionsigedn the future, the Company may be
required to record impairment charges relatedtemigible assets. Asset recoverability is first nnead by comparing the assets' carrying
amounts to their expected future undiscounted as flows to determine if the assets are impaifesiich assets are considered to be impe
the impairment recognized is measured based oantteeint by which the carrying amount of the assetseds the fair value.

Warranty Liability

The Company provides warranty terms thaegaly range from one to seven years for varigoslpcts and services relating to
workmanship and materials supplied by the Compbmgertain contracts, the Company has recoursegioms for items that would enable
recovery from third parties for amounts paid totooeers under warranty provisions. Warranty liapil recorded in accrued liabilities within
the condensed consolidated balance sheet. Theehanthe carrying amount of the
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1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Company's total product warranty liability for thears ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 wéod@ws:

As of December 31

2012 2011 2010
Balance, beginning of ye: $ 98 $ 1,071 $ 91¢
Warranty expens 52 21C 1,11C
Warranty claims (195 (29¢) (957)
Other adjustment (139 — —
Balance, end of ye: $ 707 $ 98: $ 1,071

Income Taxe

The Company accounts for income taxes baped an asset and liability approach. Deferrechteets and liabilities represent the future
tax consequences of the differences between thadial statement carrying amounts of assets ahilitiies versus the tax basis of assets and
liabilities. Under this method, deferred tax assetsrecognized for deductible temporary differsnesd operating loss and tax credit
carryforwards. Deferred tax liabilities are recagaul for taxable temporary differences. Deferredassets are reduced by a valuation allow.
when, in the opinion of management, it is moreljikban not that some portion or all of the defdrtax assets will not be realized. The impac
of tax rate changes on deferred tax assets arititiesbis recognized in the year that the charggenacted.

In connection with the preparation of itmsolidated financial statements, the Companygaired to estimate its income tax liability for
each of the tax jurisdictions in which the Compapgrates. This process involves estimating the @Goiylp actual current income tax expense
and assessing temporary differences resulting tifi@ring treatment of certain income or expenseni for income tax reporting and financial
reporting purposes. The Company also recognizdsfasred income tax assets the expected futureniadax benefits of net operating loss
carryforwards. In evaluating the realizability affdrred income tax assets associated with net tipgrass carryforwards, the Company
considers, among other things, expected futurebtaacome, the expected timing of the reversalsxidting temporary reporting differences
and the expected impact of tax planning stratethi@smay be implemented to prevent the potentis ff future income tax benefits. Changes
in, among other things, income tax legislationtugtay income tax rates or future taxable inconvele could materially impact the Company's
valuation of income tax assets and liabilities aadld cause its income tax provision to vary sigaifitly among financial reporting periods.

The Company also accounts for the uncextainincome taxes related to the recognition amdsurement of a tax position taken or
expected to be taken in an income tax return. Tdragainy follows the applicable pronouncement guidastderecognition, classification,
interest and penalties, accounting in interim psjaisclosure and transition related to the uagdst in these income tax positions.
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1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Share-Based Compensation

The Company grants incentive stock optams restricted stock units to certain officersediors, and employees. The Company accoun
for share-based compensation related to these awas®d on the estimated fair value of the equisré and recognizes expense ratably ovel
the vesting term of the award. See Note 16 "Shase8 Compensation” of these consolidated finastagéments for further discussion of the
Company's share-based compensation plans, theeradtahare-based awards issued and the Compangsraing for share-based
compensation.

Net Loss Per Shai

The Company presents both basic and diluétdoss per share. Basic net loss per sharesedisolely upon the weighted average numbe
of common shares outstanding and excludes anywdiletfects of options, warrants and convertibleusigies. Diluted net loss per share is
based upon the weighted average number of comnayeshnd common-share equivalents outstandinggitirenyear excluding those
common-share equivalents where the impact to beitoss per share would be anti-dilutive.

2. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table presents a reconcitintof basic and diluted earnings per share foy#as ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 20
as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Basic earnings per share calculation:
Net loss to common stockholde $ (17,9079 $ (21,949 $ (85,17
Weighted average common shares

outstanding 14,05¢ 11,617 10,621
Basic net loss per sha $ (@220 %$ (189 % (8.09
Diluted earnings per share calculation:
Net loss to common stockholde $ (17,907 $ (21,949 $ (85,179

Weighted average common shares

outstanding 14,05¢ 11,617 10,627
Common stock equivalent

Stock options and non-vested stock

awards(1 — — —
Weighted average common shares

outstanding 14,05¢ 11,617 10,627

Diluted net loss per sha $ (@2) 3% (@189 $ (8.0

(1)  Stock options and restricted stock units grantetarnstanding of 1,048,117,
492,105 and 163,009 as of December 31, 2012, 204 2@10, respectively,
are excluded from the computation of diluted eagaidue to the anti-dilutive
effect as a result of the Company's net loss feselrespective yeal
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3. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

In December 2010, the Company's Board oéd@drs approved a plan to divest the Company'diwbaened subsidiary Badger
Transport, Inc. ("Badger"), which formerly compusine Company's Logistics segment. The adversetsftd rail providers entering the heavy
haul market for wind energy components as welhasffects of the global economic downturn hadltedun continued operating losses at
Badger. Badger's intercompany revenues and expamesesot significant in the years ended DecemhefB12, 2011 or 2010. During the
fourth quarter of 2010, the Company recorded aatasgairment charge of approximately $10,020 @are-to reduce the carrying value of -
net assets held for sale to estimated fair value tlhere were no material adjustments to that éher@011 or 2012. The impairment charge is
included in "Loss before provision (benefit) focame taxes" in the table below.

In March 2011, the Company completed the sBBadger to BT Logistics, LLC ("BTI Logistick"Proceeds from the sale included
approximately $800 in cash, a $1,500 secured psmrysote payable in quarterly installments of $b2§inning September 30, 2011, and
10,000 shares of Broadwind common stock held byotheer. The purchase price is subject to final waglcapital adjustments and certain
contingencies and indemnifications. In addition, B@gistics assumed approximately $2,600 of delot @apital leases, plus approximately
$1,600 of operating lease obligations.

As of December 31, 2010, the assets abdifias of Badger were reflected as held for saeDecember 31, 2010 these balances
consisted of $1,847 of current assets, $6,847taf &ssets, $1,775 of current liabilities, and $4,8f total liabilities. These balances were
eliminated as of the end of the first quarter af2@h conjunction with the sale of Badger. Resofteperations for Badger, which are reflected
as discontinued operations in the Company's catestelil statements of income for the twelve montkie@mecember 31, 2012, 2011 and
2010, were as follows:

For the Years Ended
December 31

2012 2011 2010
Revenue: $ — $ 435 $§ 9,92
Loss before provision (benefit) for income ta — (1,205 (15,730
Income tax provision (benefi — 1 (30¢)
Loss from discontinued operatio $ — $ (1,200 $ (15,42)

4. RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The Company reviews new accounting stargdasdssued. Although some of the accounting stdadssued or effective in the current
fiscal year may be applicable to it, the Compariebes that none of the new standards have a gignifimpact on its condensed consolidate
financial statements.
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5. ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS

The activity in the accounts receivablewtnce from continuing operations for the yearsedridecember 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010
consists of the following:

For the Years Ended
December 31

2012 2011 2010
Balance at beginning of ye $ 43¢ $ 48 $ 1,631
Bad debt expens 13€ 1,03¢ 1,011
Write-offs (121 (1,087%) (2,12%)
Other adjustment — — (28)
Balance at end of ye $ 452 $ 43¢ $  48¢

6. INVENTORIES
The components of inventories from contigubperations as of December 31, 2012 and 2014uanenarized as follows:

As of December 31

2012 2011
Raw material $ 8,691 $ 11,94!
Work-in-process 9,50¢ 7,437
Finished good 4,55¢ 4,921

22,76( 24,30:
Less: Inventory Resen (772) (94¢€)
Net inventories $ 21,98t $ 23,35!
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7. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
The cost basis and estimated lives of ptg@and equipment from continuing operations aBetember 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows

As of December 31

2012 2011 Life
Land $ 235 $ 2,35
Buildings 23,54 23,57« 39 years
Machinery and equipme 104,36! 101,51( 2-10 years
Office furniture and equipmel 2,56¢ 2,20¢ 3-7 years
Leasehold improvemen 4,47( 3,565 Asset life or life of leas
Construction in progres 5,79¢ 4,28¢

143,08 137,49:
Less-accumulated depreciation and
amortizatior (63,200 (49,725

$ 79,88¢ $ 87,76¢

During the fourth quarter of 2012, the Camyp continued to experience triggering events aatmtwith the Services and Gearing
segments' current period operating losses combiitbdtheir history of continued operating losses.&result, the Company evaluated the
recoverability of certain of its long-lived assassociated with our Services and Gearing segmBased upon the Company's assessment, thi
recoverable amount of undiscounted cash flows baped the Company's most recent projections exckgecarrying amount of invested
capital by 70% and 44% for the Services & Gearmgnsents respectively, and no impairment to thesetsisvas indicated as of December 31,
2012. The fair value of the carrying amount of itheested capital approximated its carrying valuefadecember 31, 2012.

In conjunction with the Company's third gfea2011 decision to sell the Brandon Facilityerehced in Note 20, "Restructuring” of these
consolidated financial statements, the Companyéwlassified the associated land, building andifes valued at $8,000 from Property and
Equipment to Assets Held for Sale. The Companyereed the value of the Brandon Facility assets tiindhe date of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K and has determined that no further inmpairt charges were required. The Company enterecimagreement to sell the Brandon
Facility on February 25, 2013. For more informaticefer to Note 23 "Subsequent Events" of thessalated financial statements.
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8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, theloasis, accumulated amortization and net book vaflirtangible assets were as follows:

December 31, 201; December 31, 201.
Weighted Weighted
Net Average Net Average
Accumulated Book  Amortization Accumulated Book  Amortization
Cost Amortization Value Period Cost Amortization Value Period
Intangible
assets
Customer
relationsh $ 3,97¢ $ (2,449 $1,53¢ 7.2 % 397¢$ (1,08 $2,89¢ 10.€
Trade
names 7,99¢ (2,080 5,91¢ 20.C  7,99¢ (1,680 6,31¢ 20.C
Intangible
assett $11,97¢ $ (4,524 $7,45¢ 15.€ $11,97¢ $ (2,764 $9,21¢ 17.C

During the second quarter of 2012, the Camypconcluded that it was appropriate to shorteruseful life associated with a $2,216
portion of the customer relationships intangibleeds and amortize it over one year, instead of theeremaining five years as previously
assigned to this portion of the intangible assBEtss resulted in accelerated amortization of $9@€r ¢he last six months of 2012.

During the fourth quarter of 2012, the Camp continued to experience a triggering event@atad with the Gearing segment's current
period operating loss combined with its historycoftinued operating losses. As a result, the Compaaluated the recoverability of certain of
its intangible assets associated with the Geaeggent. Based upon the Company's assessmentctherable amount and the fair value w
in excess of the carrying amount of the relateétadsy 44%, and no impairment to these assetsndasated as of December 31, 2012.

Intangible assets are amortized on a $itdilge basis over their estimated useful livesiohhrange from 10 to 20 years. Amortization
expense was $1,759, $859 and $2,992 for the yedesiedDecember 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectikslpf December 31, 2012, estime
future amortization expense is as follows:

2013 $ 1,552
2014 444
2015 444
2016 444
2017 444
2018 and thereaftt 4,12¢
Total $ 7,45¢
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9. ACCRUED LIABILITIES
Accrued liabilities as of December 31, 2@h2 2011 consisted of the following:

December 31

2012 2011

Accrued payroll and benefi $ 291 $ 2,76
Accrued property taxe 367 25C
Income taxes payab 44% 38¢€
Accrued professional fet 52¢€ 43:
Accrued warranty liability 707 98¢
Accrued environmental reser 352 —
Accrued othe 704 93t
Total accrued liabilitie: $ 6,012 $ 5,74¢

10. DEBT AND CREDIT AGREEMENTS
The Company's outstanding debt balance$ Becember 31, 2012 and 2011 consisted of thewrtig:

December 31

2012 2011

Line of credit 95t —
Term loans and notes paya 3,30¢ 6,99¢
Les<—Current portior (1,30%) (2,2072)
Long-term debt, net of current maturiti $ 2,95¢ $ 4,79

As of December 31, 2012, future annualgipal payments on the Company's outstanding ddlgaiions were as follows:

2013 $ 1,307
2014 201
2015 15C
2016 5
2017 —
2018 and thereafte 2,60(
Total $ 4,26¢
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10. DEBT AND CREDIT AGREEMENTS (Continued)
Credit Facilities
AloStar Credit Facility

On August 23, 2012, the Company and thesiSidries entered into a Loan and Security Agreér(itba "Loan Agreement”) with AloStar
Bank of Commerce ("AloStar"), providing the Compamd the Subsidiaries with a new $20,000 secureditdacility (the "Credit Facility").
The Credit Facility is a secured three-year asased revolving credit facility, pursuant to whictoBtar will advance funds against a
borrowing base consisting of approximately 85%hef face value of eligible receivables of the Conypamd the Subsidiaries and
approximately 50% of the book value of eligibleemtory of the Company and the Subsidiaries. Bomg#iunder the Credit Facility bear
interest at a per annum rate equal to the one-mambon Interbank Offered Rate ("LIBOR") plus a giarof 4.25%, with a minimum interest
rate of 5.25% per annum. The Company must als@payused facility fee to AloStar equal to 0.50%g®um on the undrawn portion of -
Credit Facility along with other standard fees. Trigal term of the Loan Agreement ends on Aug2&t2015.

The Loan Agreement contains customary seprtions and warranties applicable to the Compadythe Subsidiaries. It also contains a
requirement that the Company, on a consolidateis basintain a minimum quarterly fixed charge cager ratio and minimum quarterly
earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, emation, restructuring and share-based paymenamj@sted EBITDA"), along with other
customary restrictive covenants, certain of whighsubject to materiality thresholds, baskets arsiotnary exceptions and qualifications.

The obligations under the Loan Agreemeeatsarcured by, subject to certain exclusions, fisaipriority security interest in all of the
accounts, inventory, chattel paper, payment intdagj cash and cash equivalents and other worldpiiat assets and stock or other equity
interests in the Subsidiaries and (ii) a first gtiosecurity interest in all of the equipment afa Foote.

As described in greater detail below, tleenpany used the initial proceeds from the CrediilfEato (i) repay all outstanding obligations
under the Wells Fargo credit facility establishedspant to the AP Agreements, (ii) repay all outdtag obligations under the ICB Notes,
(iii) repay all outstanding obligations under then@pany's Second Amended and Restated Promissoeytdidt Cameron Drecoll dated July
2012 in the original principal amount of approxielgit$1,453, and (iv) pay fees and expenses asedardth these transactions. The Company
will use future proceeds from the Credit Facilityfinance its ongoing general corporate needs.

As of December 31, 2012, the total outstagnéhdebtedness under the Credit Facility was $3%% Company had the ability to borrow
to an additional $11,440 and the per annum inteegstwas 5.25%. The Company was not in compliavittethe fixed charge coverage ratio
covenant under our credit agreement with AloStae (FCCR Covenant") as of December 31, 2012. Onuaep 13, 2013, AloStar agreed to
waive the Company's non-compliance with the FCCRe@ant as of December 31, 2012, and further aghegdt will not be required to be in
compliance with the FCCR Covenant as of March 8132 unless the Company has completed the disposifithe Brandon Facility prior to
such date. Compliance with the FCCR Covenant isrdehed as of the end of each
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10. DEBT AND CREDIT AGREEMENTS (Continued)

fiscal quarter; absent a further waiver from AlaSthe Company must be in compliance with the FQIZRenant as of June 30, 2013 and as ¢
the end of each fiscal quarter thereafter.

Great Western Bank Loans

On April 28, 2009, Broadwind Towers enteneth a Construction Loan Agreement with Great \WWesBank ("GWB"), pursuant to which
GWB agreed to provide up to $10,000 in financirge ({tGWB Construction Loan") to fund constructionBsbadwind Towers' wind tower
manufacturing facility in Brandon, South Dakotag(tfBrandon Facility"). Pursuant to a Change in TeAgreement dated April 5, 2010
between GWB and Broadwind Towers, the GWB Constsndtoan was converted to a term loan (the "GWBnTé&oan") providing for
monthly payments of principal plus interest, exiagahe maturity date to November 5, 2016, redudirggprincipal amount to $6,500, and
changing the per annum interest rate to 8.5%.

The GWB Term Loan is secured by a first tgage on the Brandon Facility and all fixtures anoiceeds relating thereto, pursuant to a
Mortgage and a Commercial Security Agreement, éativeen Broadwind Towers and GWB, and by a Commk@uaranty from the
Company. In addition, the Company has agreed torslitmte all intercompany debt with Broadwind Tosvey the GWB Term Loan. The
documents evidencing and securing the GWB Term looatain representations, warranties and coverbatsre customary for a term
financing arrangement and contain no financial cawvgs. As of December 31, 2012, the total outstanafidebtedness under the GWB Term
Loan was $3,860, which is recorded as Liabilitieddfor Sale within the condensed consolidatedrizaasheet in light of the Company having
initiated a process to sell the Brandon Facilityge TTCompany was in compliance with all covenante@ated with GWB Term Loan as of
December 31, 2012.

WEells Fargo Account Purchase Agreements

On September 29, 2010, the Company, thei8iabies and Badger entered into account purcagseements (the "AP Agreements") with
Wells Fargo Business Credit, a division of WellsgeaBank, N.A. ("Wells Fargo"). Under the termstioé AP Agreements, when requested by
the Company, Wells Fargo would advance to the Slidrgs approximately 80% of the face value ofibl@receivables arising from sales of
the Subsidiaries' products and services. The aggrdgcility limit of the AP Agreements was $10,060r Wells Fargo's services under the AF
Agreements, the Subsidiaries agreed to pay WetlgoH@) a floating discount fee of the then-prewgjILIBOR plus 3.75% per annum on the
sum of the outstanding financed accounts, (ii) rmmual facility fee of 1% of the aggregate facilityit, and (iii) an annual unused line fee of
0.042% on the portion of the credit facility whialas unused. The initial term of the AP Agreemerds scheduled to end on September 29,
2013, with an early termination fee of up to 2%t aggregate facility limit applicable if the ARj&eements were terminated prior to that ¢

On August 23, 2012, in connection with agnsation of the Credit Facility as described abdke,Subsidiaries used proceeds of the
Credit Facility to repay all outstanding obligatiomnder the credit facility established pursuarthdAP Agreements. In connection with this
repayment, which included a $200 termination fee AP agreements were terminated.
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10. DEBT AND CREDIT AGREEMENTS (Continued)
I nvestors Community Bank Loans

On April 7, 2008, one of the Company's ferwholly-owned subsidiaries which was subsequentyged into Broadwind Towers
executed four promissory notes with Investors ComitguBank ("ICB") in the aggregate principal amowfiapproximately $3,781. Three of
these notes were term notes, with initial principalances totaling $2,049, bearing interest atifie¢es ranging from 5.65% to 6.85% per
annum, with maturities ranging from October 2012 pwil 2013 (collectively, the "ICB Notes"). Thedah note was a line of credit note,
which has been repaid in full.

On August 23, 2012, in connection with aongation of the Credit Facility as described abole,Company used proceeds of the Credi
Facility to repay all outstanding obligations untlex ICB Notes. Upon such repayment, the ICB Natexe cancelled and the mortgage
securing the ICB Loans was released.

Selling Shareholder Notes

On May 26, 2009, the Company entered irgethement agreement (the "Settlement Agreemauith)the three former owners of Brad
Foote, including J. Cameron Drecoll, who servethasCompany's Chief Executive Officer and a menabéss Board of Directors until
December 1, 2010. The Settlement Agreement retatdte post-closing escrow established in connaatiith the Company's acquisition of
Brad Foote. Under the terms of the Settlement Agesg, among other terms, the Company issued thoemigsory notes to the former owners
in the aggregate principal amount of $3,000, begainterest at a rate of 7% per annum and matunniglay 29, 2012.

The notes issued to the former owners dtfer Mr. Drecoll, each with an original princigahount of $340, were repaid upon maturity ir
May 2012. Mr. Drecoll's note, with an original pripal amount of $2,320, was amended on July 1, 2@1() change the maturity date to
January 10, 2014, (ii) increase the interest @& per annum, and (iii) amend the repayment sdbed amortize the principal amount
outstanding over the remaining term of the notgjrbeng with payments commencing in the fourth ¢eraof 2011. Under the terms of the
amendment, the Company reduced the principal anmustanding under the note to $1,677. On July2012, the note was further amende
provide for payment of the remaining balance in egoal installments on October 10, 2012 and Jarm@r2013, or sooner if the Company's
cash balance and credit availability met certaragholds.

On August 23, 2012, in connection with te@summation of the Credit Facility as describeovabthe Company used proceeds of the
Credit Facility to repay all outstanding obligatsounder Mr. Drecoll's note. Upon such repaymetnitie was cancelled.

Other

Included in Long Term Debt, Net of Currdfdturities is $2,600 associated with the New MasKidx Credit transaction described furthel
in Note 19, "New Markets Tax Credit Transaction'ttidse condensed consolidated financial statements.
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11. LEASES

The Company leases various property angpemnt under operating lease arrangements. Leass tgnerally range from 3 to 15 years
with renewal options for extended terms. Certa#sés contain rent escalation clauses that regudlianal rental payments in the later years
of the term. Rent expense for these types of ledagesognized on a straight-line basis over theimmim lease term. Any lease concessions
received by the Company are deferred and recogrigeah adjustment to rent expense ratably oventhimmum lease term. The Company is
required to make additional payments under cepeoperty leases for taxes, insurance and othemtipgrexpenses incurred during the
operating lease period. Rental expense for thesysated December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 was $%8249 and $4,289, respectively.

In addition, the Company has entered iafgital lease arrangements to finance property gogpment and assumed capital lease
obligations in connection with certain acquisitiofile cost basis and accumulated depreciationset@secorded under capital leases, which
are included in property and equipment, are asvidlas of December 31, 2012 and 2011:

Cost
Accumulated depreciatic

Net book value

December 31
2012 2011

$ 7681 $ 6,26
(2,086 (1,909

$ 559t $ 4,361

Depreciation expense recorded in conneatitim assets recorded under capital leases was $620D, and $624 for the years ended

December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

As of December 31, 2012, future minimunrstepayments under capital leases and operatingsieas as follows:

2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018 and thereaftt

Total

Less—portion representing interest at a
weighted average annual rate of 6.

Principal
Less—current portior

Capital lease obligations, noncurrent pori

Capital Operating
Leases Leases Total
$ 2,33¢ $ 3,161 $ 5,50¢
443 3,01¢ 3,45¢
22¢ 2,41°¢ 2,64:
2 2,44 2,44¢
— 2,441 2,441
— 19,60t 19,60t
3,01z $ 33,09 $ 36,108
(154)
2,85¢
(2,217
$ 641
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12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Legal Proceeding

From time to time, the Company is subjedegal proceedings or claims arising from its naroourse of operations. The Company
accrues for costs related to loss contingenciesishbeh costs are probable and reasonably estinfsbiaf, December 31, 2012, the Compar
not aware of any material pending legal proceedorghreatened litigation that would have a matexitverse effect on the Company's
financial condition or results of operations, aligb no assurance can be given with respect toltineate outcome of pending actions. Refer tc
Note 22 "Legal Proceedings" of these consolidaiteahtial statements for further discussion of lggrakteedings

Environmental Compliance and Remediation Liab#gi

The Company's operations and productsiudrjest to a variety of environmental laws and ratjahs in the jurisdictions in which the
Company operates and sells products governing, gmothrer things, air emissions, wastewater disclsate use, handling and disposal of
hazardous materials, soil and groundwater containmaemployee health and safety, and product conperformance and packaging. Also,
certain environmental laws can impose the entig¢ opa portion of the cost of investigating anehacling up a contaminated site, regardless o
fault, upon any one or more of a number of partreduding the current or previous owners or opamabf the site. These environmental laws
also impose liability on any person who arrangeste disposal or treatment of hazardous substaata@sontaminated site. Third parties may
also make claims against owners or operators @s sibd users of disposal sites for personal irgumnel property damage associated with
releases of hazardous substances from thoseRéés.to Note 22 "Legal Proceedings" of these clistesied financial statements for further
discussion of environmental compliance and remigdidiabilities.

Collateral

In select instances, the Company has ptedgecific inventory and machinery and equipmesgtssto serve as collateral on related
payable or financing obligations.

Warranty Liability

The Company provides warranty terms thaegaly range from one to seven years for variaosipcts and services relating to
workmanship and materials supplied by the Compbmgertain contracts, the Company has recoursegioms for items that would enable
recovery from third parties for amounts paid totongers under warranty provisions.

Liquidated Damage

In certain customer contracts, the Compgeas/agreed to pay liquidated damages in the eVenpiadifying delivery or production delays.
These damages are typically limited to a spec#icentage of the value of the product in questana result of production delays experien
the Company recorded charges of $527 related talkged damages for the year ended December 32, Z0&
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12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

Company does not believe that any additional p@teexposure will have a material adverse effectrenCompany's consolidated financial
position or results of operations.

Other

Collective bargaining agreements with tleenpany's Neville Island and Cicero unions are etqueto remain in effect through February
2014 and October 2017, respectively. As of DecerBtheP012, the Company's collective bargainingsurd@presented approximately 23% o
workforce.

The sale price from the sale of the Com{saBadger subsidiary to BTI Logistics is subjecténtain contingencies and indemnifications.

On July 20, 2011, the Company executedagegfic financing transaction (the "NMTC Transact)anvolving the following third parties:
AMCREF Fund VII, LLC ("AMCREF"), a registered commity development entity; COCRF Investor VIII, LLOGQOCRF"); and Capital On
National Association ("Capital One"). The NMTC Tsawtion allows the Company to receive below marketest rate funds through t
federal New Markets Tax Credit ("NMTC") programedeote 19, "New Markets Tax Credit Transactionthafse condensed consolidated
financial statements. Pursuant to the NMTC Tramsagcthe gross loan and investment in the GearlzaXify of $10,000 will generate $3,900
in tax credits over a period of seven years, wiehNMTC Transaction makes available to Capital QOine Gearbox Facility must operate
be in compliance with the terms and conditionshefMNMTC Transaction during the seven year compéigreriod, or the Company may be
liable for the recapture of $3,900 in tax creditsvhich Capital One is otherwise entitled. The Campdoes not anticipate any credit recap!
will be required in connection with the NMTC Trantan.

13. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Company measures its financial assetdiabilities at fair value. Fair value is definad the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability (i.e., exicp) in an orderly transaction between marketigigants at the measurement date. Additionally,
the Company is required to provide disclosure atdgorize assets and liabilities measured at &irevinto one of three different levels
depending on the assumptions (i.e., inputs) usétkeivaluation. Level 1 provides the most reliabkasure of fair value while Level 3
generally requires significant management judgnieintincial assets and liabilities are classifiethiir entirety based on the lowest level of
input significant to the fair value measuremente Tdir value hierarchy is defined as follows:

Level 1—Valuations are based on unadjugtested prices in active markets for identical assetiabilities.

Level 2—Valuations are based on quotedegrfor similar assets or liabilities in active metgs or quoted prices in markets that are not
active for which significant inputs are observalgi¢her directly or indirectly.
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13. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

Level 3—Valuations are based on pricesatuation techniques that require inputs that ate boobservable and significant to the overal
fair value measurement. Inputs reflect managembassestimate of what market participants wouklinssaluing the asset or liability at the
measurement date.

Fair value of financial instruments

The carrying amounts of the Company's famrinstruments, which include cash and cash ed@nts, accounts receivable, accounts
payable and customer deposits approximate theieotive fair values due to the relatively shortrterature of these instruments. Based upon
interest rates currently available to the Compamydebt with similar terms, the carrying value lné Company's long-term debt is
approximately equal to its fair value.

Assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring b&s

The fair value measurement approach fogHored assets utilizes a number of significanthservable inputs or Level 3 assumptions.
These assumptions include, among others, projectbthe Company's future operating results, thaied fair value of these assets using an
income approach by preparing a discounted cashdlmalysis and a market-based approach based @othpany's market capitalization, and
other subjective assumptions. During the fourthriguabf 2012 and 2011, the Company continued totifletriggering events associated with
the Company's current period operating loss contbivith its history of continued operating losses.&result, the Company evaluated the
recoverability of certain of its identifiable intgible assets and certain property and equipmestaddased upon the Company's assessme
impairment to these assets was identified as oéBder 31, 2012 or December 31, 2011.
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14. INCOME TAXES
The provision for income taxes for the weanded December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 consists fwllowing:

For the Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Current provisior
Federal $ — $ — $ —
Foreign — 5 4
State 26 63 62
Total current provisiol 26 68 66
Deferred credi
Federal (5,882 (9,149  (23,87)
State (38¢) (1,22%) (6,07¢)
Total deferred cred (6,26¢) (20,37) (29,94
Increase in deferred tax valuation allowa 6,26¢ 10,37: 29,72:
Total provision (benefit) for income tax $ 26 % 68 $ (160

The increase in the deferred tax valuagitmwance was $6,268, $10,371 and $29,721 for ¢#aesyended December 31, 2012, 2011 and
2010, respectively. The change in the deferred/édxation allowance in 2012 was the result of améase to the deferred tax assets pertainin
to additional federal and state net operating gsartially offset by a decrease in the defereadrate used to measure temporary differenc
December 31, 2011. The change in the deferredamation allowance in 2011 was the result of amgase to the deferred tax assets perta
to additional federal and state net operating sEbke change in the deferred tax valuation allm@an 2010 was the result of a significant
increase to deferred tax assets in connectiontivithmpairment of goodwill and intangible assets] additional federal and state net operatin
losses.
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14. INCOME TAXES (Continued)

The tax effects of the temporary differenaad net operating losses that give rise to sagmif portions of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are as follows:

As of December 31

2012 2011
Current deferred income tax asst

Accrual and reserve $ 4601 $ 3,52¢
Total current deferred tax ass 4,601 3,52¢
Valuation allowanct (4,607 (3,52¢)
Current deferred tax assets, net of valuation e — —
Noncurrent deferred income tax ass

Net operating loss carryforwar $ 61,27 $ 55,39

Intangible assel 33,510 36,57(

Other 16€ 11C
Total noncurrent deferred tax ass 94 ,95¢ 92,07"
Valuation allowanct (92,76()  (88,16%)
Noncurrent deferred tax assets, net of valuatimwalnce 2,19¢ 3,917
Noncurrent deferred income tax liabilitie

Fixed asset $ (2,199 $ (3,919

Intangible assel — —
Total noncurrent deferred tax liabiliti (2,199 (3,917
Net deferred income tax liabilit $ — $ —

Valuation allowances of $97,361 and $91,6&le been provided for deferred income tax assetghich realization is uncertain as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. A retiation of the beginning and ending amounts ofwhkiation was as follows:

Valuation allowance as of December 31, 2 $ (91,69)
Gross increase for current year acti (7,897
Gross decrease for deferred rate che 2,22
Valuation allowance as of December 31, 2 $ (97,36)

As of December 31, 2012, the Company hddrkd net operating loss carryforwards of approxatya$153,629 expiring in various years
through 2032. The majority of the net operating loarryforwards will expire in various years fro@28 through 2032.

As of December 31, 2012, the Company hagpartioned state net operating losses in the ggtgef approximately $153,629, expiring
in various years from 2021 through 2032, based wamious net operating loss carryforward perioddesignated by the different taxing
jurisdictions.
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14. INCOME TAXES (Continued)
The reconciliation of the tax (benefit) pision computed at the statutory rate to the eiffediax rate is as follows:

For the Year Ended
December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Statutory U.S. federal income tax ri 34.(% 35.(% 35.(%
State and local income taxes, net of federal incon

tax benefil 1.3 5.C 3.2
Permanent difference 1.3 (1.5 (0.5
Change in valuation allowan: (34.7y (38.7) (37.5
Change in uncertain tax positic (0.2 (0.2) —
Other 0.1 — 0.1
Effective income tax rat 0.)% (0.393% 0.2%

The Company accounts for the uncertainipéome taxes by prescribing a minimum recognittmeshold for a tax position taken, or
expected to be taken, in a tax return that is reduio be met before being recognized in the firsstatements. The changes in the Company
uncertain income tax positions for the years eridlecember 31, 2012 and 2011 consisted of the fotigwi

For the Year

Ended
December 31
2012 2011

Beginning balanc $ 417 $ 38:
Tax positions related to current ye

Additions — —

Reductions — —
Tax positions related to prior yea

Additions 37 35

Reductions — —

Settlement:

Lapses in statutes of limitatio — —

Additions from current year acquisitio — —

37 35

Ending balanc $ 454 $ 417

The amount of unrecognized tax benefiBetember 31, 2012 that would affect the effectareraite if the tax benefits were recognized
was $454.
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14. INCOME TAXES (Continued)

It is the Company's policy to include imtstrand penalties in tax expense. During the yeraded December 31, 2012 and 2011, the
Company recognized and accrued approximately $8%38, respectively, of interest and penalties.

The Company files income tax returns inth8. federal and state jurisdictions. As of Decenfil, 2012, open tax years in the federa
some state jurisdictions date back to 1996 dubddaxing authorities' ability to adjust operatiags carryforwards. During 2011, the Compan
closed an audit initiated by the Internal RevenerriBe of its federal tax returns for the tax yeamded December 31, 2008 and 2009. Althc
these periods have been audited, they continusntain open until all net operating losses generat#ibse tax years have either been utilizec
or expire.

It is reasonably possible that unrecognizedoenefits will decrease by up to approxima$2$0 as a result of the expiration of the statut
of limitations within the next 12 months. In additj Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code 06,188 amended (the "IRC"), generally
imposes an annual limitation on the amount of petrating loss carryforwards and associated builbsses that may be used to offset taxable
income when a corporation has undergone certaingg®ain stock ownership. The Company's abilitytiiiza net operating loss carryforwards
and built-in losses may be limited, under this isecor otherwise, by the Company's issuance of comatock or by other changes in stock
ownership. Upon completion of the Company's anglg§iRC Section 382, the Company has determinatinha prior year aggregate change:s
in stock ownership have triggered an annual linutadf net operating loss carryforwards and builtesses available for utilization. Although
this event limits the amount of pre-ownership cleadgte net operating loss and built-in losses thag&any can utilize annually, it would not
preclude the Company from fully utilizing its cuntecarryforwards prior to their expiration. To thetent the Company's use of net operating
loss carryforwards and associated built-in lossessgnificantly limited in the future due to addital changes in stock ownership, the
Company's income could be subject to U.S. corponatame tax earlier than it would if the Companyrevable to use net operating loss
carryforwards and builin losses without such annual limitation, which coresult in lower profits and the loss of benefitam these attribute

15. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

On September 21, 2011, the Company contpkefeublic offering of its common stock, par vae001 per share, at an offering price of
$4.00 per share. In the offering, the Company 88l800 newly issued shares of its common stockpproximately $12,155 in proceeds, after
deducting underwriting discounts, but before deidigebther offering related costs. In connectiortwiite offering, the Company incurred $458
in costs associated with professional and otherioif related expenses, which have been nettedsighe proceeds received in additional
paid-in capital in the Company's consolidated bagasheet as of December 31, 2011.
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16. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION
Overview of Share-Based Compensation Plan
2007 Equity I ncentive Plan

The Company has granted incentive stocionptand other equity awards pursuant to the Ametadel Restated Broadwind Energy, Inc.
2007 Equity Incentive Plan (the "2007 EIP"), whigas approved by the Company's Board of Directo@dtober 2007 and by the Company's
stockholders in June 2008. The 2007 EIP has beendad periodically since its original approval. Sfieally, (i) the 2007 EIP was amended
by the Company's stockholders in June 2009 to &seréhe number of shares of common stock autholi@ésisuance under the 2007 EIP,

(ii) the 2007 EIP was further amended and restiastddlarch 2011 by the Company's Board of DirectorBnit share recycling under the 2007
EIP, to include a minimum vesting period for timesting restricted stock awards and restricted stoits ("RSU's") and to add a clawback
provision, and (iii) the 2007 EIP was further amesat the Company's Annual Meeting of Stockholderéay 4, 2012 to increase the num

of shares of common stock authorized for issuanceuthe 2007 EIP to provide sufficient authorizsbdres to settle certain awards granted ir
December 2011.

The 2007 EIP reserved 691,051 shares admpany's common stock for grants to officerssairs, employees, consultants and
advisors upon whose efforts the success of the @oynand its affiliates depend to a large degreeofA3ecember 31, 2012, the Company hac
reserved 121,458 shares for issuance upon theisx@fcstock options outstanding and 401,715 shardssuance upon the vesting of RSU
awards outstanding. As of December 31, 2012, 91sh28s of common stock reserved for stock opmasRSU awards under the 2007 EIP
have been issued in the form of common stock.

2012 Equity I ncentive Plan

On March 8, 2012, the Company's Board oé€ors approved the Broadwind Energy, Inc. 201@itgdncentive Plan (the "2012 EIP;"
together with the 2007 EIP, the "Equity Incentitar®"), and at the Company's Annual Meeting of Etotders on May 4, 2012, the
Company's stockholders approved the adoption 02812 EIP. The purposes of the 2012 EIP are @itm the interests of the Company's
stockholders and recipients of awards under th@ )P by increasing the proprietary interest ofrstecipients in the Company's growth and
success, (ii) to advance the interests of the Comnpwy attracting and retaining officers, other eoyeles, non-employee directors, and
independent contractors, and (iii) to motivate spetsons to act in the long-term best intereste@fCompany and its stockholders. Under the
2012 EIP, the Company may grant (i) non-qualifiextk options, (ii) "incentive stock options" (withthe meaning of IRC Section 422),

(iii) stock appreciation rights, (iv) restrictedek and RSU's; and (v) performance awards.

The 2012 EIP reserves 1,200,000 shardsea€bmpany's common stock for grants to officergctbrs, employees, consultants and
advisors upon whose efforts the success of the @oynand its affiliates will depend to a large degres of December 31, 2012, the Company
had reserved 164,997 shares for issuance upomxéhneige of stock options outstanding, 359,947 shémeissuance upon the vesting of RSU
awards outstanding, and 675,056 additional sharesifure awards under the 2012
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EIP. As of December 31, 2012, no shares of comrtark seserved for stock options and RSU awards ninge?012 EIP have been issued in
the form of common stock.

Stock Options. The exercise price of stock options granteceumige Equity Incentive Plans is equal to the clggirice of the Compan
common stock on the date of grant. Stock optiomegaly become exercisable on the anniversaryefjtnt date, with vesting terms that n
range from one to five years from the date of grAdditionally, stock options expire ten years aftee date of grant. The fair value of stock
options granted is expensed ratably over theiingserm.

Restricted Stock Units. The granting of RSU's is provided for under Eugiity Incentive Plans. RSU's generally vest anahniversary
of the grant date, with vesting terms that may eafigm one to five years from the date of granke Tdir value of each RSU granted is equal tc
the closing price of the Company's common stoctherdate of grant and is generally expensed rataldy the vesting term of the RSU awe

Stock option activity during the years eshdEcember 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 under the Emggntive Plans was as follows:

Weighted Average Aggregate Intrinsic

Weighted Average Remaining Value
Options Exercise Price Contractual Term (in thousands)

Outstanding as of December

2009 140,21¢ $ 110.8(

Granted 46,48: 36.5(

Exercisec — —

Forfeited (64,777 93.7(

Cancellec (30,207 103.7(
Outstanding as of December

2010 91,71¢ % 87.5(

Granted 44,72¢ 13.6(

Exercisec — —

Forfeited (6,357) 99.6(

Cancellec (2,589 132.6(
Outstanding as of December

2011 127,50! $ 60.1(

Granted 164,99 3.3¢

Exercisec — —

Forfeited (6,047 89.61

Cancellec —
Outstanding as of December

2012 286,45' $ 26.8( 8.3¢ $ —
Exercisable as of December

2012 63,50 $ 80.5¢ 6.5¢ $ =
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The following table summarizes informatioith respect to all outstanding and exercisablekstiptions under the Equity Incentive Plans
as of December 31, 2012:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Average Weighted Average Weighted Average
Number of options Remaining Number

Exercise Price or Range outstanding Exercise Price Contractual Term Exercisable Exercise Price
$3.39 164,99 $ 3.3¢ 9.3 year — $ =
$13.50- $77.80 84,00¢ 24.9¢ 7.8 year 32,47( 30.7¢
$80.00- 182.00 37,45( 134.1: 5.5 year 31,03 132.6:
286,45' $ 26.8( 8.4 year 63,50: $ 80.5¢

The following table summarizes informatigith respect to outstanding restricted stock uast®f December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010:

Weighted Average
Grant-Date Fair Value

Number of Shares Per Share
Outstanding as of December 31, 2( 2791t $ 87.6(
Grantec 70,937 $ 31.2(
Vested (14,349 $ 57.1(
Forfeited (13,219 $ 69.5(
Outstanding as of December 31, 2( 71,29C $ 40.9(
Grantec 321,17 $ 9.5C
Vested (18,770 $ 40.9(
Forfeited (9,099 $ 45.8(
Outstanding as of December 31, 2( 364,60( $ 13.1¢
Granted 515,07 $ 3.0¢
Vested (50,549 $ 21.7:
Forfeited (67,459 $ 10.4¢
Outstanding as of December 31, 2( 761,66: $ 6.01

The fair value of each stock option awardstimated on the date of grant using the Blatie®s option pricing model. The Company's
determination of the fair value of each stock api®affected by its stock price on the date ohgras well as assumptions regarding a numbe
of highly complex and subjective variables. Theagables include, but are not limited to, the Compsmexpected stock price volatility over
the expected life of the awards and actual ancepteql stock option exercise behavior. The weightextage fair value per share of stock
option awards granted
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during the years ended December 31, 2012, 2012@h@, and assumptions used to value stock optaoass follows:

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Dividend yield — — —
Risk-free interest rat 1.1% 2.€% 2.5%
Weighted average volatilit 99.9¢ 96.06% 91.4&%
Expected life (in years 6.3 6.3 6.3
Weighted average grant date fair value per st
of options grante: $ 27C $ 1072 $ 27.5C

Dividend yield is zero as the Company autlsedoes not pay a dividend.

Risk-free rate is based on the impliedd/mirrently available on U.S. Treasury zero couigenes with a remaining term equal to the
expected life of the award.

During the years ended December 31, 20021 2and 2010, the Company utilized a standard iibfatssumption of 99.98%, 96.06% and
91.48%, respectively, for estimating the fair vatdiestock options awarded based on volatility agesaof the company's stock price.

The expected life of each stock option algnanted is derived using the "simplified methémt"estimating the expected term of a
"vanilla-option” in accordance with Staff AccourgiBulletin ("SAB") No. 107, "Share-Based Paymeas"amended by SAB No. 110, "Share-
Based Payment." The fair value of each unit ofrieied stock is equal to the fair market valuehgf Company's common stock as of the da

grant.

During the years ended December 31, 200P] 2nd 2010, the Company utilized a forfeiture @t25% for estimating the forfeitures of
stock options granted.
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The following table summarizes share-basedpensation expense included in the Company'sotidated statements of operations for
the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2(0fblmaes:

For the Years Ended
December 31
2012 2011 2010

Share-based compensation expens
Selling, general and administrati $ 2,83 $ 1,90¢ $ 1,66¢
Income tax benefit(1 — — —

Net effect of share-based compensation exp

on net los: $ 2,83 $ 1,90¢ $ 1,66¢
Reduction in earnings per share
Basic and diluted earnings per share $ 02 $ 0.1¢ $ O0.1l¢

Q) Income tax benefit is not illustrated because them@any is currently
operating at a loss and an actual income tax ltema$i not realized for the
years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010.eBh# of the loss
situation creates a timing difference, resultingideferred tax asset, which is
fully reserved for in the valuation allowance.

(2) Diluted earnings per share for the years endedidbee31, 2012, 2011 and
2010 does not include common stock equivalentdaltigeir anti-dilutive
nature as a result of the Company's net lossabdge respective periods.
Accordingly, basic earnings per share and dilueetiiags per share are
identical for all periods presente

As of December 31, 2012, the Company eséisidnat pre-tax compensation expense for all uadeshare-based awards, including both
stock options and restricted stock units, in theam of approximately $2,877 will be recognizedtigh the year 2016. The Company expect
to satisfy the exercise of stock options and futlis¢ribution of shares of restricted stock by isgunew shares of common stock.

17. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company is organized into reportingnsegts based on the nature of the products andcssruifered and business activities from
which it earns revenues and incurs expenses farthadiscrete financial information is available aadularly reviewed by the Company's chief
operating decision maker. The Company's segmendtshair product and service offerings are summadrtzsow:

Towers and Weldments

The Company manufactures towers for wintdities, specifically the large and heavier winde¢osvthat are designed for 2 MW and large
wind turbines. Production facilities, located in hM@awoc, Wisconsin and Abilene, Texas, are situatedose proximity to the primary U.S.
domestic
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17. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

energy and equipment manufacturing hubs. The teititias have a combined annual tower productiopecity of up to approximately 500
towers, sufficient to support turbines generatirgrerthan 1,200 MW of power. This product segmesd ancompasses the manufacture of
specialty fabrications and specialty weldmentsiaring and other industrial customers.

Gearing

The Company engineers, builds and rematwifeg precision gears and gearing systems for wihdnd gas, mining and other industrial
applications. The Company uses an integrated matuniag process, which includes machining and fiimig processes in Cicero, lllinois, and
heat treatment in Neville Island, Pennsylvania.

Services

The Company offers a comprehensive rangefices, primarily to wind farm developers anérapors. The Company specializes in nor
routine maintenance services for both kilowatt eredjawatt turbines. The Company also offers commste field services to the wind
industry. The Company is increasingly focusingeff®rts on the identification and/or developmenpodduct and service offerings which will
improve the reliability and efficiency of wind tures, and therefore enhance the economic benefits tustomers. The Company provides
wind services across the U.S., with primary serlacations in South Dakota and Texas. In Februa@fyl2the Company put into operation the
Abilene Service Facility, which is focused on seiwy the growing installed base of MW wind turbirsssthey come off warranty and to a
limited extent, industrial gearboxes requiring fg&m repair and testing.

Corporate and Other

"Corporate and Other" is comprised of ailjgsts to reconcile segment results to consolidegsalts, which primarily includes corporate
administrative expenses and intercompany eliminatio

The accounting policies of the reportal@gnsents are the same as those referenced in Ntideggription of Business and Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies" of these consola&thfinancial statements. Summary financial infaioraby reportable segment is as follows:

Towers and
Weldments Gearing Services Corporate Eliminations Consolidated
2012:
Revenues from
external custome $ 135,22: $ 53,56¢ $ 21,92( $ — 3 — $ 210,70
Intersegment
revenues(1l — 2,09¢ 18¢€ — (2,280) —
Operating profit
(loss) 2,76¢ (7,626 (4,18Y (8,260 8 (17,299
Depreciation and
amortization 3,67¢ 10,95t 1,841 65 — 16,537
Capital expenditure 62¢ 3,17¢ 1,30 627 — 5,73¢
Assets held for sal 8,047 — — — — 8,04:
Total asset 58,84: 71,37: 13,97¢ 308,33t (309,616 142,91(
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Towers and
Weldments Gearing Services Corporate Eliminations Consolidated

2011:
Revenues from

external

customer: $ 116,86 $ 52,75( $ 16,23t $ — 9 — $ 185,85
Intersegment

revenues(1l 58 1,54¢ 55 — (1,659 —
Operating profit

(loss) 5,18 (20,737 (5,247 (9,599 (43 (20,429
Depreciation and

amortization 3,50¢ 9,92 937 167 — 14,53¢
Capital expenditure 52¢ 287 3,82¢ 66 — 4,70¢
Assets held for sal 8,052 — — — — 8,052
Total asset 76,23" 80,64 15,75 317,41 (317,15) 172,89:

Towers and
Weldments Gearing Services Corporate Eliminations Consolidated

2010:
Revenues from

external

customer: $ 76,11t $ 48,78 $ 11,99¢ $ — 9 — $ 136,89
Intersegment

revenues(1l 35 213 92 — (340 —
Operating (loss (11,436 (13,679 (34,749 (9,369 ©)] (69,227
Depreciation and

amortization 3,41¢ 9,97( 2,90¢ 16¢ — 16,46
Capital

expenditure: 2,11z 1,39¢ 3,28: 99 — 6,89:
Assets held for sa — — — 6,84 — 6,84
Total asset 77,95: 88,99¢ 9,29¢ 345,64! (338,38() 183,50¢
Q) Intersegment revenues generally include a @i@&up over costs and primarily consist of sales

from Gearing to Services. Gearing sales to Sentmteded $2,094, $1,546, and $213 for the
years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 ctasghe.

The Company generates revenues entirety fransactions completed in the U.S. and its lovedl assets are all located in the U.S. All
intercompany revenue is eliminated in consolidatiduaring 2012, three customers each accounted éoe than 10% of total net revenues.
These three customers accounted for revenues (3585%28,618 and $22,731 respectively, and wererted within the Towers and
Weldments segment. During the years ended DeceBib@012, 2011, and 2010, five customers accountedl/%, 76% and 78%,
respectively, of total net revenues.

18. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
Retirement Savings and Profit Sharing Pl

The Company offers a 401(k) retirementsgwiplan to all eligible employees who may eleatdotribute a portion of their salary on a
pre-tax basis, subject to applicable statutorythtions. Participating non-union employees aretdbgo receive safe harbor matching
contributions equal to 100% of the first 3% of haaticipant's elective deferral contributions aféd®bof the next 2% of the participant's elec
deferral contributions. In accordance with the edtive bargaining agreements
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place at its two union locations, the Companyisdlk-based union employees are eligible to recaidescretionary match in an amount up to
50% of each participant's first 4% of elective defecontributions, and the Company's Pennsylvéaised union employees are eligible to
receive a discretionary match in an amount up @%4.0f each participant's first 3% and 50% of thet 2846 of elective deferral contributions.
The Company has the discretion, subject to apgkcstiatutory requirements, to fund any matchingrtoation with a contribution to the plan
of the Company's common stock. Starting in secaradtgr of 2011 and through the fourth quarter df122@he Company funded matching
contributions in cash. Beginning with the first giga 2012, the Company resumed funding matchingriganions in the form of the Compan
common stock. Under the plan, elective deferratslaasic company matching will be 100% vested diraks.

For the years ended December 31, 2012, a6d 2010, the Company recorded expense under pleseof approximately $661, $636
and $636, respectively.

Deferred Compensation Ple

The Company maintains a deferred compeamsatan for certain key employees and nhonemployeetdrs, whereby certain wages
earned, compensation for services rendered, antetinary company-matching contributions may biemled and deemed to be invested in
the Company's common stock. Changes in the fairevaf the plan liability are recorded as chargesredits to compensation expense.
Compensation expense associated with the defeoragensation plan recorded during the years endedrblger 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010,
was ($12), ($45) and ($154), respectively. Thevalue of the plan liability to the Company is imded in accrued liabilities in the Company's
consolidated balance sheets. As of December 32 20d 2011, the fair value of plan liability to tiempany was $12 and $39, respectively.

In addition to the employee benefit plapsatibed above, the Company participates in cectastomary employee benefits plans,
including those which provide health and life iresure benefits to employees.

19. NEW MARKETS TAX CREDIT TRANSACTION

On July 20, 2011, the Company received&2j@ proceeds via the NMTC Transaction. The NMTi@nEaction qualifies under the
NMTC program and included a gross loan from AMCR&Broadwind Services in the principal amount 0®$DO0, with a term of fiftee
years and interest payable at the rate of 1.4%umeum, largely offset by a gross loan in the ppgatamount of $7,720 from the Company
COCREF, with a term of fifteen years and interesigide at the rate of 2.5% per annum.

The NMTC regulations permit taxpayers t@irol credits against their federal income taxesufoto 39% of qualified investments in the
equity of community development entities. The NMT@ansaction could generate $3,900 in tax creditscivthe Company has made availé
under the structure by passing them through tot&@laPne. The proceeds have been applied to the @ayrpinvestment in the Gearbox
Facility assets and operating costs, as permitteénuthe NMTC program.
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The Gearbox Facility must operate and b@mpliance with various regulations and restritsior seven years to comply with the terms
of the NMTC Transaction, or the Company may beldiamder its indemnification agreement with Cap@ale for the recapture of tax credits.
In the event the Company does not comply with tliegalations and restrictions, the NMTC programdeedits may be subject to 100%
recapture for a period of seven years as provideka IRC. The Company does not anticipate thataxgredit recapture events will occur or
that it will be required to make any payments t@i@d One under the indemnification agreement.

The Capital One contribution, includingoan origination payment of $320, has been incluedther assets in the Company's condense
consolidated balance sheet. The NMTC Transacticindies a put/call provision whereby the Company tmapbligated or entitled to
repurchase Capital One's interest in the thirdtgoaf 2018. Capital One may exercise an optigoutioits investment and receive $130 from
Company. If Capital One does not exercise its ptiba, the Company can exercise a call option athien fair market value of the call. The
Company expects that Capital One will exercisepiliteoption at the end of the tax credit recaptumegal. The Capital One contribution other
than the amount allocated to the put obligation mélrecognized as income only after the put/sadixercised and when Capital One has no
ongoing interest. However, there is no legal ottiarafor Capital One to exercise the put, and thenany has attributed only an insignificant
value to the put option included in this transatttructure.

The Company has determined that two passHfi financing entities created under this tratisactructure are variable interest entities
("VIE's"). The ongoing activities of the VIE's—cetiting and remitting interest and fees and comglywth NMTC program requirements—
were considered in the initial design of the NMT@saction and are not expected to significanfigcafeconomic performance throughout
life of the VIE's. Management also considered theti@actual arrangements that obligate the Compaudgliver tax benefits and provide
various other guarantees under the transactiootstr) Capital One's lack of a material intereghaunderlying economics of the project, and
the fact that the Company is obligated to absasbde of the VIE's. The Company has concluded tiatequired to consolidate the VIE's
because the Company has both (i) the power totdllese matters that most significantly impactabsvities of each VIE and (ii) the
obligation to absorb losses or the right to recéierefits of each VIE.

The $262 of issue costs paid to third parin connection with the NMTC Transaction are rded as prepaid expenses, and are being
amortized over the expected seven year term diiM&C arrangement. Capital One's net contributio82600 is included in Long Term
Debt, Net of Current Maturities in the condensedsotidated balance sheet. Incremental costs totaiaithe transaction structure during the
compliance period will be recognized as they aceiired.

20. RESTRUCTURING

During the third quarter of 2011, the Compaonducted a review of its business strategidspanduct plans based on the outlook for the
economy at large, the forecast for the industtiserives, and its business environment. The Compamgiuded that its manufacturing footpi
and fixed cost
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base were too large and expensive for its medium-teeds and has begun restructuring its facififyacity and its management structure to
consolidate and increase the efficiencies of ierafons.

The Company is executing a plan to redtgcacility footprint by approximately 40% througfe sale and/or closure through the end of
2014 of facilities comprising a total of approxirlgt600,000 square feet. To date, the Companydahed agreement to close or reduce its
leased presence at five facilities and achievevanteal reduction of approximately 250,000 squast.fThe Company believes the remaining
locations will be sufficient to support its Towensd Weldments, Gearing, Services and general cagand administrative activities, while
allowing for growth for the next several years.

As part of this plan, in the third quartér2011, the Company determined that the Brandailifyashould be sold, and as a result the
Company has reclassified the Brandon Facility ldnading and fixtures valued at approximately $&0rom Property and Equipment to
Assets Held for Sale. In addition, the related biddness associated with the Brandon Facility ¢gg&3lwas reclassified in the third quarter of
2011 from Long-Term Debt Net of Current Maturitaesd Current Maturities of Lon@erm Debt to Liabilities Held for Sale. The Compdrad
previously recorded an impairment charge of $13j826e fourth quarter of 2010 to bring these asgefair value, and no further impairment
charges have been recorded. The Company entecedrirdgreement to sell the Brandon Facility on &ayr 25, 2013. For more information,
refer to Note 23 "Subsequent Events" of these dimtzded financial statements.

In the third quarter of 2012, the Compadgnitified a $352 liability associated with the plad sale of one of its Cicero, Illinois
manufacturing facilities. The liability is asso@dtwith environmental remediation costs that wdemiified while preparing the site for sale.
The expenses associated with this liability haventrecorded as a restructuring charge. This faabes not meet the criteria for Held for Sale
classification.

To date, the Company has incurred $5,96®sfs in conjunction with its restructuring pldime Company expects to incur restructuring
costs associated with the restructuring plan togedin estimated $14,872. Costs are expected wwdad5,959 in capital expenditures and
$8,913 in expenses, of which $3,717 is anticipatdaze non-cash expenses and $5,196 is anticipateel tash expenses.
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Net proceeds from associated asset sales, projectelapproximately $7,200, will be used to fuadttcosts

2011 2012 Total Total

Actual Actual Incurred Projected
Capital expenditures
Gearing $ 5 % 2,07: $ 2,077 $ 5,13¢
Corporate — 524 524 824
Total capital expenditure 5 2,59¢ 2,601 5,95¢
Cash expense
Cost of sales
Gearing 131 30¢ 43¢ 3,091
Services — 22t 22t 42t
Total cost of sale 131 53z 664 3,51¢
Selling, general, and administrative expen:
Towers — 13C 13C 13C
Gearing 35 52C 55k 55k
Services — 4C 40 40
Corporate 40¢€ 49 45E 95t
Total selling, general and administrative expet 441 73¢ 1,18( 1,68(
Nor-cash expense
Gearing 247 1,16¢€ 1,41 3,60¢
Services — 58 58 58
Corporate 50 — 50 50
Total nor-cash expense 297 1,22¢ 1,521 3,71
Grand tota $ 874 $ 5,092 $ 5,966 $ 14,87

21. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL SUMMARY (UNAUDITED)

The following table provides a summary elested financial results of operations by quadethe years ended December 31, 2012 and
2011 as follows:

2012 First Second Third Fourth
Revenue: $ 54,44: $ 56,31. $ 55,04¢ $ 44,90¢
Gross profit 2,232 1,65¢ 2,71t 23C
Operating los! (3,94)) (4,159 (3,527) (5,670
Loss from continuing operations, net of (3,860 (4,23)) (3,939 (5,879
Net loss (3,860) (4,23)) (3,939) (5,87¢)
Loss from continuing operations per sh

Basic and Dilutec (0.2¢) (0.30 (0.2¢) (0.47)
Net loss per shar

Basic and Diluter $ (020 % (030)$ (020 $ (0.4)
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21. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL SUMMARY (UNAUDITED) (Contin ued)

2011 First Second Third Fourth
Revenue: $ 43,53( $ 39,33: $ 47,89¢ $ 55,09:
Gross profit 2,57¢ 2,93 712 964
Operating los! (3,979 (4,31)) (6,244 (5,907
Loss from continuing operations, net of (4,059 (4,40 (6,58€) (5,709
Net loss (5,180 (4,459 (6,586€) (5,729
Loss from continuing operations per sh:

Basic and Dilutec (0.3¢) (0.47) (0.60) (0.47)
Net loss per shar

Basic and Diluter $ (04 $ (042 $ (060 $ (0.40

22. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
Shareholder Lawsuits

On February 11, 2011, a putative clas®aatias filed in the United States District Count tlee Northern District of Illinois, Eastern
Division (the "Court"), against the Company andaierof its current or former officers and directofhe lawsuit was purportedly brought on
behalf of purchasers of the Company's common dtetikeen March 17, 2009 and August 9, 2010. A Idaithiiff was appointed and an
amended complaint was filed on September 13, 204 amended complaint named as additional defeadantain of the Company's current
and former directors, certain Tontine entities, deffrey Gendell, a principal of Tontine. The coaipt sought to allege that the defendants
violated Section 10(b) of the Securities Exchangedk 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), ane ROb-5 promulgated thereunder,
and/or Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act by isswingausing to be issued a series of allegedly faftgl/or misleading statements concerning
the Company's financial results, operations, andgects, including with respect to the January Z&dndary public offering of the
Company's common stock. The plaintiffs alleged thatCompany's statements were false and misleddioguse, among other things, the
Company's reported financial results during the|zeriod allegedly violated generally accepteadaating principles because they failed to
reflect the impairment of goodwill and other intiélg assets, and the Company allegedly failedgoldse known trends and other information
regarding certain customer relationships at Braoté&dn support of their claims, the plaintiffsiel in part upon six alleged confidential
informants, all of whom are alleged to be formeptyees of the Company. On November 18, 2011, tiragany filed a motion to dismiss.
On April 19, 2012, the Court granted in part andield in part the Company's motion. The Court diseusall claims with prejudice against
each of the named current and former officers ebdmep). Cameron Drecoll and held that the plaistifad failed to state a claim for any alle
misstatements made after March 19, 2010. In acidittee Court dismissed all claims with prejudicaiagt the named Tontine entities and
Mr. Gendell. The Court denied the motion with regpe certain of the claims asserted against thregamy and Mr. Drecoll. The Company
filed its answer and affirmative defenses on MayZ12. On June 22, 2012, the plaintiffs filed aiomfor class certification which is not
fully briefed. The parties have reached agreemeptinciple on a settlement of the matter in theant of $3,915, which is payable by the
Company's insurance carrier. The parties are ctlyrengaged in negotiating the settlement documents
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Between February 15, 2011 and March 30120tee putative shareholder derivative lawsugsesfiled in the Court against certain of
Company's current and former officers and directansl certain Tontine entities, seeking to chakealleged breaches of fiduciary duty, waste
of corporate assets, and unjust enrichment, inctui connection with the January 2010 secondabjipoffering of the Company's common
stock. One of the lawsuits also alleges that aedakectors violated Section 14(a) of the ExchaAgein connection with the Company's Proxy
Statement for its 2010 Annual Meeting of Stockhadd@wo of the matters pending in the federal caugte subsequently consolidated, and or
May 15, 2012, the Court granted the defendantsomad dismiss the consolidated cases and alseeshés order dismissing the third case.
The Company received a request from the Tontinerdizints for indemnification in the derivative suaitsl the class action lawsuit from
Tontine and/or Mr. Gendell pursuant to various aegrents related to shares owned by Tontine. The @oynmaintains directors and officers
liability insurance; however, the costs of inderwgifion for Mr. Gendell and/or Tontine would not t@vered by any Company insurance
policy. Because of the preliminary nature of thiasesuits, the Company is not able to estimate ssdogange of loss, if any, that may be
incurred in connection with this matter at thiseim

SEC Inquiry

In August 2011, the Company received a sabp from the United States Securities and Exch@ogemission ("SEC") seeking
documents and other records related to certainuatiom practices at Brad Foote. The subpoena vgagdsin connection with an informal
inquiry that the Company received from the SEC avé&mber 2010 arising out of a whistleblower compilagceived by the SEC related to
revenue recognition, cost accounting and intangibk fixed asset valuations at Brad Foote. The Gaomas been voluntarily providing
information to the SEC as a part of that inquirg @nin the process of responding to the subpoetrarespect to the outstanding requests. The
Company cannot currently predict the outcome & itwestigation. The Company does not believetti@atesolution of this matter will have a
material adverse effect on the Company's conselititibancial position or results of operations. @timate regarding the loss or range of loss
if any, that may be incurred in connection withstmatter is possible at this time.

Environmental

The Company is aware of an investigatiomeenced by the United States Attorney's Office themn District of lllinois ("USAQ"), for
potential violation of federal environmental law@n February 15, 2011, pursuant to a search wawitials from the United States
Environmental Protection Agency ("USEPA") entered aonducted a search of one of Brad Foote's iasilin Cicero, lllinois (the "Cicero
Facility"), in connection with the alleged impropisposal of industrial wastewater to the sewesoAin or about February 15, 2011, in
connection with the same matter, the Company rededvgrand jury subpoena requesting testimonytengroduction of certain documents
relating to the Cicero Facility's past compliangthweertain environmental laws and regulationsthegato the generation, discharge and
disposal of wastewater from certain of its procedmtween 2004 and the present. On or about Fgh28aR011, the Company received
another grand jury subpoena relating to the samstigation, requesting testimony and the
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production of certain other documents relatingddain of the Cicero Facility's employees, enviremtal and manufacturing processes, and
disposal practices. On April 5, 2012, the Compaoeived a letter from the USAO requesting the petdn of certain financial records from
2008 to the present. The Company has completedsponse to the subpoenas and to the USAO's rediresCompany has also voluntarily
instituted corrective measures at the Cicero Rgcilicluding changes to its wastewater disposatiices. On April 12, 2012, the Company
received a letter from the USAO advising it thaa@iFoote is a target of the criminal investigatidthe Cicero Facility, and requesting that
Brad Foote agree to a tolling of the applicabléuséaof limitations for any criminal charges refaito the investigation. Subsequently, Brad
Foote has agreed to the tolling of the applicatdtute of limitations for any criminal charges talg to the investigation through April 18,
2013. There can be no assurances that the contloktbe investigation will not result in a determation that the Company has violated
applicable environmental, health and safety lawsragulations. Any violations found, or any crinlioa civil fines, penalties and/or other
sanctions imposed could be substantial and mdieaatl adversely affect the Company. The Compaiyraeorded a liability of $675 at
December 31, 2010, which represented the low eiitd ektimate of remediation-related costs and es@e as of December 31, 2012, those
initial costs have been incurred, and additionatzbhave been expensed as incurred. No additiem@diation related expenses are anticipate
or have been accrued; however, the outcome ohtrestigation, the liability in connection therewitind the impact to the Company's
operations cannot be predicted at this time. Nionasé regarding the loss or range of loss, if dngt may be incurred in connection with this
matter is possible at this time.

23. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Stockholders Rights Plan

In February 2013 the Company's Board oé&wrs approved the adoption of a stockholdergsiglan (the "Rights Plan") designed to
preserve its net operating loss carryforwards @ghdrdax benefits under Section 382 of the InteR@lenue Code. In connection with the
adoption of the Rights Plan, the Board of Directbeslared a non-taxable dividend of one preferredespurchase right (a "Right") for each
outstanding share of Broadwind common stock tabmpany's stockholders of record as of the clogmisiness on February 22, 2013. After
the Rights Plan takes effect on February 22, 2aa@ person or group that acquires beneficial ownprsf 4.9% or more of the Company's
common stock without Board of Directors approvalidobe subject to significant dilution in the owsleip interest of that person or group.
Stockholders who currently own 4.9% or more ofdhéstanding shares of Broadwind common stock vatltrigger the preferred share
purchase rights unless they acquire additionaleshdihe Rights Plan is subject to shareholder approhe Company intends to submit the
Rights Plan for stockholder approval at its 2013éal Meeting of Stockholders.
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23. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (Continued)
Sale of Brandon Facility

On February 25, 2013, the Company enteredan agreement to sell the real property, traderés and certain personal property
comprising the Brandon Facility for $12,300, an amichat exceeds the carrying value of the relatsits. The purchaser is required to mi
$500 earnest money deposit within three businegs aliéer the effective date of the agreement. Treamnent is subject to customary due
diligence inspections and ratification by the pasér's board of directors. Subject to these coaticigs, the Company anticipates that the
transaction will close in the first half of 2013.
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Assignment of Deposit Account dated April 28, 2@@9ween Tower Tech Systems Inc.
and Great Western Bank (incorporated by referem&xhibit 10.6 to the Company's
Current Report on Formr-K filed May 1, 2009]

Subordination Agreement dated April 27, 2009 betwtbe Company and Great Western
Bank (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7Th® Company's Current Report on
Form &K filed May 1, 2009

Commercial Guaranty dated April 27, 2009 from thler@any to Great Western Bank
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to tlwer@any's Current Report on Form 8-K
filed May 1, 2009

Change in Terms Agreement dated December 22, 28®8&bn Tower Tech Systems Inc.
and Great Western Bank (incorporated by referem&xhibit 10.69 to the Company's
Annual Report on Form -K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2(

Letter Agreement dated December 22, 2009 amon@depany, Tower Tech Systems |
and Great Western Bank (incorporated by referem&xhibit 10.70 to the Company's
Annual Report on Form -K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2(

Change in Terms Agreement dated February 16, 28t/Geen Tower Tech Systems Inc.
and Great Western Bank (incorporated by referem&xhibit 10.71 to the Company's
Annual Report on Form -K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2(

Letter Agreement dated February 16, 2010 amongtmpany, Tower Tech Systems Inc.
and Great Western Bank (incorporated by referem&xhibit 10.72 to the Company's
Annual Report on Form -K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2(

Letter Agreement dated April 5, 2010 among the Camyp Tower Tech Systems Inc. and
Great Western Bank (incorporated by reference tulitx10.1 to the Company's Quarterly
Report on Form 1-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2C

Amendment to Mortgage dated as of April 5, 201@veen Tower Tech Systems Inc. and
Great Western Bank (incorporated by reference tuilitx10.2 to the Company's Quarterly
Report on Form 1-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2C

Business Loan Agreement dated April 5, 2010 betvwemmer Tech Systems Inc. and Gt
Western Bank (incorporated by reference to ExHiBiB to the Company's Quarterly
Report on Form 1-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2C
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Exhibit
Number Description
10.5¢ Change in Terms Agreement dated April 5, 201@vbeh Tower Tech Systems Inc. and
Great Western Bank (incorporated by reference tulitx10.4 to the Company's Quarterly
Report on Form 1-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2C
10.5¢ Loan and Security Agreement dated as of Augus@B2 among the Company, Brad
Foote Gear Works, Inc., Broadwind Towers, Inc.,&wind Services, LLC and AloStar
Bank of Commerce (incorporated by reference to EkA0.1 to the Company's Current
Report on Form-K filed August 23, 2012
10.5¢ First Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement\Atadver, dated as of February 13,
2013, among Broadwind Energy, Inc., Brad Foote G¥arks, Inc., Broadwind
Services, LLC, Broadwind Towers, Inc., 1309 Sabitero Avenue, LLC, 5100 Neville
Road, LLC and AloStar Bank of Commerce (filed hathj
10.57 Amended and Restated Lease for Industrial/ManufegfiBpace dated as of May 1, 2010
between Tower Tech Systems Inc. and City Centte(..(incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.5 to the Company's Quarterly Report omk10-Q for the quarterly period
ended March 31, 201!
10.5¢ Form of Indemnification Agreement (incorporatedrbference to Exhibit 10.6 to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Formr-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2C
21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant (filed herew
23.1 Consent of Grant Thornton LLP (filed herewi
31.1 Rule 13i-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer @il herewith
31.2 Rule 13i-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer @t herewith
32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewitt
32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewitt
T Indicates management contract or compensationgslarrangemen
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d)f the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendele registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by ¢hundersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on the 2@ay of February, 2013.

BROADWIND ENERGY, INC.

By: /sl PETER C. DUPREY

PETER C. DUPREY
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Examge Act of 1934, as amended, this report has besigned below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant andri the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ PETER C. DUPREY President and Chief Executive
Officer and Director Febzrg?gy 21,
Peter C. Dupre (Principal Executive Officer
- (Principal Financial Officer and Febzrt(ﬁréy 21,
Stephanie K. Kushner Principal Accounting Officer
/s/ DAVID P. REILAND

. . . February 27,

Director and Chairman of the Boe 2013

David P. Reilanc

/s/ TERENCE P. FOX o February 27,

irector 2013

Terence P. Fo

/sl CHARLES H. BEYNON o February 27,

irector 2013

Charles H. Beyno

/sl WILLIAM T. FEJES, JR. o February 27,

irector 2013

William T. Fejes, Jr
/sl THOMAS A. WAGNER

S Director February 27,

2013

Thomas A. Wagne
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Exhibit 10.56
Execution Versiol
FIRST AMENDMENT TO LOAN AND SECURITY AGREEMENT AND WAIVER

This FIRST AMENDMENT TO LOAN AND SECURITY AGREEMENRND WAIVER (this “ Amendment) is entered into as of
February 13, 2013, among BROADWIND ENERGY, INCDelaware corporation (* Parefjt BRAD FOOTE GEAR WORKS, INC., an
lllinois corporation (“ Brad Foot®, BROADWIND SERVICES, LLC, a Delaware limited bidity company (“ Broadwind Service$,
BROADWIND TOWERS, INC., a Wisconsin corporationBfoadwind Towers and, together with Parent, Brad Foote and Broadwi
Services, each a “ Borroweand collectively the “ Borrowery, 1309 South Cicero Avenue, LLC, a Delaware leditiability company (“
South Cicerd), 5100 Neville Road, LLC, a Delaware limited liaity company (“_Neville” and, together with South Cicero, each@uaranto
" and collectively the “ Guarantot¥, and ALOSTAR BANK OF COMMERCE, a state bankingsiitution incorporated or otherwise organizec
under the laws of the State of Alabama (the “ Lerie

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Borrowers and the Lender are partighdt certain Loan and Security Agreement dateaf Asigust 23, 2012 (as
amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise raddifom time to time, the * Loan Agreeméntapitalized terms used herein and not
otherwise defined shall have the meanings asctibedch terms in the Loan Agreement), pursuanthichvthe Lender has agreed to make the
Commitments available to the Borrowers from timéitiee pursuant to the terms and conditions thereof;

WHEREAS, an Event of Default has occurred undeus#ab) of Section 10.1 (Events of Default) of tlian Agreement as a result
Parent’s failure to achieve a Fixed Charge CoveRag@® of not less than 1.00 to 1.00 for the peobd fiscal quarters ending December 31,
2012, as required by Section 8.9 of the Loan Ageger{the “ FCCR Event of Defadly;

WHEREAS, the Borrowers have requested that the ¢e(a) waive the FCCR Event of Default and (b) agoeamend certain terms
and conditions of the Loan Agreement; and

WHEREAS, subject to the satisfaction of the conditionsfegh herein, the Lender is willing to amend theah Agreement and wai
the FCCR Event of Default as set forth herein.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoingmises and other good and valuable consideratierreteipt and sufficiency
of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties bdreteby agree as follows:

1. Amendments to the Loan AgreemenSubject to the satisfaction of the conditioneffectiveness referred to in Section 4
hereof, the Loan Agreement is hereby amended sl

1.1. Section 1.1 (Defined Terms) of the Loan Agreemsiiitdreby amended by inserting the following definiof
“Brandon Facility Disposition” in the appropriatpphabetical order:




“ Brandon Facility Dispositiofi means the sale of all or substantially all of Bover’'s tower manufacturing facility located in
Brandon, South Dakota.

1.2. Section 9.2 (Conduct of Business) of the Loan Agret is hereby amended by inserting the words thad
Brandon Facility Disposition” immediately after thrds “Sell, lease or otherwise dispose of anghefCollateral other than a Permitted Asse
Disposition” appearing in such Section.

1.3. Clause (a) of Item 16 (Financial Covenants) offeems Schedule is hereby amended and restateslentitety as
follows:

“(@) Fixed Charge Coverage RatioAt the end of each fiscal quarter of Parent, m@mcing with the fiscal quarter ending
December 31, 2012, Parent shall have a Fixed Cl@ogerage Ratio of not less than 1.00 to 1.00Herperiod of 4 fiscal quarters
then ending; providedhowever, that the foregoing shall not be required at the @f the fiscal quarter ending March 31, 2013 smle
Borrower shall have consummated the Brandon Fad@iisposition prior to such date.”

2. Waiver. Subject to the satisfaction of the conditioneffectiveness referred to in Sectiohereof, notwithstanding anythi
to the contrary contained in the Loan Agreemeriherother Loan Documents, the Lender hereby wahe§CCR Event of Default.

3. No Other Amendments or WaiversThe execution, delivery and effectiveness of thinendment shall not operate as a
waiver of any right, power or remedy of the Lendeder the Loan Agreement or any of the other Loanuinents, nor constitute a waiver of
any provision of the Loan Agreement or any of ttieeo Loan Documents except solely with respechéotaiver of the FCCR Event of
Default. Except for the amendment and waiver @ghfabove, the text of the Loan Agreement andtakér Loan Documents shall remain
unchanged and in full force and effect and eachid®eer and each Guarantor hereby ratifies and awosfits obligations thereunder. This
Amendment shall not constitute a modification @& ttoan Agreement or any of the other Loan Documengscourse of dealing with the
Lender at variance with the Loan Agreement or tihewoLoan Documents such as to require furtheicadiy the Lender to require strict
compliance with the terms of the Loan Agreementtaredother Loan Documents in the future, excegxasessly set forth herein. Each
Borrower and each Guarantor acknowledges and estpragrees that the Lender reserves the rightithdaes in fact, require strict compliai
with all terms and provisions of the Loan Agreemamd the other Loan Documents, as amended helkairBorrower or Guarantor has
knowledge of any challenge to the Lender’s clainsirsg under the Loan Documents, or to the effertass of the Loan Documents.

4. Conditions Precedent to Effectivenes$his Amendment shall be effective as of the diadewritten above upon the
satisfaction of each of the following conditiongpedent in a manner acceptable to the Lender goiésand absolute discretion:

4.1. the Lender shall have received this Amendment, dufcuted by each Borrower and each Guarantorthensame
shall be in full force and effect;

4.2. the Lender shall have received an amendment fes &m$5,000; and
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4.3. except for the FCCR Event of Default, no DefaulEwent of Default shall exist under the Loan Agreetor the
other Loan Documents.

5. Counterparts This Amendment may be executed in multiple cerp#rts, each of which shall be deemed to be gmati
and all of which, taken together, shall constitate and the same agreement. In proving this Amentim any judicial proceedings, it shall
not be necessary to produce or account for moredha such counterpart signed by the party againstm such enforcement is sought. Any
signatures delivered by a party by facsimile traission or by electronic mail transmission shaldeemed an original signature hereto.

6. Reference to and Effect on the Loan Documerltfpon the effectiveness of this Amendment, onaftet the date hereof,
each reference in the Loan Agreement to “this Agret”, “hereunder”, “hereof” or words of like impaeferring to the Loan Agreement, and
each reference in the other Loan Documents tol‘t/em Agreement”, “thereunder”, “thereof” or wordklie import referring to the Loan
Agreement, shall mean and be a reference to the Ageeement as amended hereby.

7. Entire Agreement This Amendment and the other Loan Documentstitatesthe entire agreement and understanding
between the parties hereto with respect to theséi@ions contemplated hereby and thereby and sdgeesdl prior negotiations, understandings
and agreements between such parties with respeuattotransactions.

8. GOVERNING LAW. THE VALIDITY, INTERPRETATION AND ENFORCEMENT OHHIS AMENDMENT SHALL
BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THENTERNAL LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK.

9. Loan Document This Amendment shall be deemed to be a Loan ieati for all purposes.
[remainder of page intentionally left blank]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have exetatel delivered this Amendment as of the day aad fjst written above.

BORROWERS:
BROADWIND ENERGY, INC.

By: é" ;—Z—JL
Name: Stephanle K. Kushn(
Title:  Chief Financial Office

BRAD FOOTE GEAR WORKS, INC.

§" ;z_x!’,_.

By:
Name: Stephanle K Kushn(
Title:  Authorized Representati

BROADWIND SERVICES, LLC

v g g __d__;-'- 3

o g ':-:‘I‘-_--.- i -~

By: ATl
Name: Stephanie K. Kushne

Title:  Authorized Representati

BROADWIND TOWERS, INC.

By: é" ;—Z—JL
Name: Stephanle K. Kushn(
Title:  Authorized Representati

GUARANTORS:
1309 SOUTH CICERO AVENUE, LLC

KA
Name StephanleK Kushn(
Title:  Authorized Representati

5100 NEVILLE ROAD, LLC

v g g __d__;-'- 3

o g ':-:‘I‘-_--.- i -~

By: ATl
Name: Stephanie K. Kushne

Title:  Authorized Representati

First Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement\aadlve!




LENDER:

ALOSTAR BANK OF COMMERCE

N :

Name: Christopher Nairni
Title:  Vice Presiden

First Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement\aadlve!
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EXHIBIT 21.1

Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Subsidiaries State of Incorporation/Formation
Brad Foote Gear Works, In lllinois
Broadwind Services, LL( Delaware

Broadwind Towers, Inc Wisconsin
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EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We have issued our report dated Februarg@¥3 with respect to the consolidated finandiaesnents included in the Annual Report of
Broadwind Energy, Inc. on Form 10-K for the yeadet December 31, 2012. We hereby consent to tleedacation by reference in the
Registration Statement of Broadwind Energy, IncForm S-3 (File Nos. 333-176066 and 333-159487)Forth S-8 (File Nos. 333-160039,
333-181168, 333-181170 and 333-181901).

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

Grant Thornton LLP
Chicago, IL
February 27, 2013
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EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION
I, Peter C. Duprey, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10flBroadwind Energy, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortdnstate a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsofimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-(f)) for the registrant hage:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatheg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pnegzh

(b) Designed such internal control over financial répgr, or caused such internal control over finahi@gorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmuoce with generally accepted accounting princijples

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsatisclosure controls and procedures and preséntai report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyedis report, based on such

evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regigisanternal control over financial reporting tloatturred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofigttal quarter in the case of an annual repod tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasir's internal control over financial reportinggan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer anglalve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumnmittee of the registrant's Board of Directfspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(&)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal contratiofmancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regrg's ability to record, process, summarize apobrt financial information; ar

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that ined management or other employees who have ais@mifole in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 27, 2013

/sl PETER C. DUPREY

Peter C. Duprey
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION
I, Stephanie K. Kushner, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10flBroadwind Energy, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortdnstate a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsofimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-(f)) for the registrant hage:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatheg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pnegzh

(b) Designed such internal control over financial répgr, or caused such internal control over finahi@gorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmuoce with generally accepted accounting princijples

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsatisclosure controls and procedures and preséntai report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyedis report, based on such

evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regigisanternal control over financial reporting tloatturred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofigttal quarter in the case of an annual repod tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasir's internal control over financial reportinggan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer anglalve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumnmittee of the registrant's Board of Directfspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(&)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal contratiofmancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regrg's ability to record, process, summarize apobrt financial information; ar

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that ined management or other employees who have ais@mifole in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 27, 2013

/sl STEPHANIE K. KUSHNER

Stephanie K. Kushner
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)
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EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report onfdr0K of Broadwind Energy, Inc. (the "Company") for thear ended December 31, 2012
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissthe {Commission™) on the date hereof (the "Repptt'Peter C. Duprey, President and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify rpuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley AQOOR ("Section 906"), that:

(i) the Report fully complies with thequirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) efSkcurities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the "Exchange Act"); and

(ii) the information contained in the Refpfairly presents, in all material respects, fihancial condition and results of operations
of the Company as of, and for, the periods presentéhe Report.

February 27, 2013

/sl PETER C. DUPREY

Peter C. Duprey
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer

This certification accompanies the Reparspant to Section 906 and shall not be deemedi fijethe Company for purposes of Sectiol
of the Exchange Act.

A signed original of this written statemesadjuired by Section 906 has been provided to tiragany and will be retained by the Company
and furnished to the Commission or its staff upsouest.
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EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report onfdt0K of Broadwind Energy, Inc. (the "Company") for thear ended December 31, 2012
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissthe {Commission") on the date hereof (the "Reppit'$tephanie K. Kushner, Chief
Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursutmSection 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 20@&2¢tion 906"), that:

(i) the Report fully complies with thequirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) efSkcurities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the "Exchange Act"); and

(ii) the information contained in the Refpfairly presents, in all material respects, fihancial condition and results of operations
of the Company as of, and for, the periods presentéhe Report.

February 27, 2013

/sl STEPHANIE K. KUSHNER

Stephanie K. Kushner
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

This certification accompanies the Reparspant to Section 906 and shall not be deemedi fijethe Company for purposes of Sectiol
of the Exchange Act.

A signed original of this written statemesadjuired by Section 906 has been provided to tiragany and will be retained by the Company
and furnished to the Commission or its staff upsouest.
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